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Our mission extends beyond fields and farms. Every initiative we take is driven by a commitment to 

enhance lives, uplift rural communities, and support the nation’s vision of Atmanirbhar Bharat. Whether 

it’s job creation, green energy integration, or contributing to national self-reliance, we aim to touch every 

soul connected to our journey.

At Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited (HURL), we believe that progress isn’t just about 

numbers—it’s about nurturing the roots that sustain life and cultivating growth that uplifts communities, 

industries, and the nation. Our annual report theme, “From Soil to Soul: HURL Powers Progress,” reflects 

this belief and captures the holistic impact of our work—from empowering farmers with world-class 

fertilizers to energizing India’s agricultural economy.

It all begins with the soil—the foundation of life and livelihood. Through our eco-friendly, e�cient, and 

cutting-edge fertilizer plants in Gorakhpur, Barauni, and Sindri, HURL is revitalizing India’s agricultural 

heartland. By ensuring timely availability of high-quality urea, we are strengthening food security and 

making farming more sustainable and productive.

To Soul

HURL Powers Progress

Backed by the might of leading Maharatna CPSEs —Coal India Limited, NTPC Limited, Indian Oil 

Corporation Limited and other two CPSEs viz. Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited and Hindustan 

Fertilizers Corporation Limited—HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED has emerged as a symbol of 

modern industrial resurgence. Our story is one of innovation, resilience, and responsibility. With state-of-

the-art plants and a future-ready outlook, we are not only meeting India’s fertilizer needs but also setting 

new benchmarks in project execution, environmental compliance, and operational excellence.

From Soil
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Maharatna PSU, under the administrative control of Ministry of Coal, Government of 

India. It is the single largest coal producing Company in the world.

Coal India Limited

Maharatna PSU, under the administrative control of Ministry of Power, 

Government of India. It is India’s largest Energy conglomerate.

NTPC Limited

Maharatna PSU, under the administrative control of Ministry of Petroleum and Natural 

Gas, Government of India. It is India’s largest Oil & Gas refining and marketing Company.

Indian Oil Corporation Limited

Central Government undertaking under the administrative control of Ministry of 

Chemical & Fertilizers, Government of India. In 1978, the operating fertilizers plants at 

Sindri, Gorakhpur, Talcher, Ramagundam, Korba & Jodhpur mining organization were 

formed into FCIL. 

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited

Central Government undertaking under the administrative control of Ministry of 

Chemical & Fertilizers, Government of India. It emerged as a separate company following 

reorganization of the erstwhile FCIL and NFL group of companies In 1978, the operating 

fertilizer plants at Durgapur, Barauni and Namrup were formed into HFCL.

Hindustan Fertilizers Corporation Limited

OUR PROMOTERS
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COMPANY SECRETARY

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

M/s R K Patel & Co. 

Cost auditors, Vadodara

M/s Kumar Naresh Sinha & 

Associates, Company Secretaries, 

NOIDA 

COST AUDITORS

Ms. Poonam Jeswani 

[w.e.f. 19.07.2024]

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Smt. Iti Matta 

M/s Surendra Subhash & Co., 

Chartered Accountants, New Delhi

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s AMAA & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants, New Delhi

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS

NSDL Database Management 

Limited, Mumbai

BANKERS

State Bank of India, New Delhi

Punjab National Bank, New Delhi

New Delhi - 110092

EXIM Bank, New Delhi

E-mail: info@hurl.net.in

Bank of India, New Delhi

Union Bank of India, New Delhi

Bank of Baroda, New Delhi

Sindri Plant, Dhanbad, Jharkhand

HDFC Bank, New Delhi

Canara Bank, New Delhi

CIN No.-U24100DL2016PLC358399

Indian Bank, New Delhi

Axis Bank, New Delhi

Core-4, 9th Floor, SCOPE Minar, 

Laxmi Nagar, District Centre, 

Website: www.hurl.net.in

Barauni Plant, Begusarai, Bihar

IOC Global Capital Management 

IFSC Limited (IGCMIL), Gujarat

LOCATION OF PLANTS

Tel: +91-11-22502267, 22502268

Gorakhpur Plant, Gorakhpur, Uttar 

Pradesh

IndusInd Bank, New Delhi

IDBI Bank, New Delhi

REGISTERED OFFICE / 

CORPORATE OFFICE
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Dear Shareholders,

The Financial Year 2024-25 (FY25) was a 

y e a r  o f  t r e m e n d o u s  g r o w t h  a n d 

t r a n s f o r m a t i o n  f o r  H U R L  f r o m 

commissioning of the fertilizer projects to 

a nationally significant organization. With 

the three state-of-the-art Ammonia-Urea 

units constructed at Gorakhpur, Sindri and 

Barauni, HURL has delivered over 33 Lakh 

MT of Urea in FY 25, making a vital 

contribution to India’s food security with 

self-reliance in the fertilizer sector and 

‘‘Letter to 
SHAREHOLDERS
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Dur ing  2024-25 ,  we cont inued to 

strengthen policies that support career 

growth, promote work-life balance, ensure 

health and safety, and foster a culture of 

learning and inclusion. Beyond production, 

Corporate Environment Responsibility 

(CER) initiatives of undertaking Skill 

Development of unemployed youth under 

the flagship project “SAKSHAM” with CIPET 

to collaborations with NSDC, have 

empowered youth, sustained livelihoods 

and strengthened communities. HURL’s 

e�orts of training Self Help Groups (SHGs) 

women and providing them with drones 

exemplifies agricultural transformation and 

women’s empowerment.

I would like to acknowledge the continued 

support of the Government of India, 

particularly the Department of Fertilizers, 

Ministry of Chemical & Fertilizers. We also 

thank our esteemed Promoters, customers, 

partners, and collaborators for their trust 

and cooperation. I also appreciate the 

guidance of our Board of Directors during 

this important phase and acknowledge  

the commitment of our employees,   

whose e�orts have driven this year’s 

achievements. I look forward to your 

continued support and co-operation.

saving valuable foreign exchange through 

import substitution.

Notwithstanding the challenges faced 

during the year, I am happy to state that 

y o u r  C o m p a n y  t u r n e d  i n  a  g o o d 

performance. Revenue from operations 

during the year grew by 5.71% over FY2023-

24 (FY24) and Net Profit was higher by 

3.85% in comparison to FY 24. The credit 

rating of the Company has improved to 

“AA-/Stable” from the previous rating of 

“IND A+/Positive”. 

The FY25 has also marked significant 

diversification of the Company, with 

geographical expansion into new States 

and robust sales of value-added products 

under the APNA brand, and a strategic 

foray into imports as per requirements. 

These are steps towards becoming a 

comprehensive provider of nutrient 

solutions, aligned with India’s evolving 

agricultural needs. The Company has also 

extended its footprints in North East and 

formed its Joint Venture Company, with 

proposed fertilizer unit at Namrup, Assam. 

This reflects not just our growth, but our 

commitment to national priorities. 

As we look to the future, HURL will 

continue to grow in scale, capability and 

impact. HURL will keep on supporting 

India’s mission of national building and 

contribute towards goals of environmental 

stability and ecological stewardship with 

persistence & unwavering commitment 

while creating long-term value for all its 

stakeholders.

The journey of your Company is from SOIL 

to SOUL, to HURL Powers Progress!

With best wishes,

Yours sincerely,

Animesh Jain

Chairman
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JOURNEY OF HURL

JV agreement (JVA) executed between 
CIL, NTPC, IOCL, FCIL and HFCL in the 
year 2016. HURL incorporated as Public 
Limited Company, having its registered 
o�ce in Kolkata on 15.06.2016. The JVA & 
Supplementary JVA were executed on 
16.05.2016 and 31.10.2016, respectively.

Foundation stone laying of Gorakhpur 
project by Hon’ble Prime Minister of 

India on 22.07.2016.
Environment Clearances (EC) received 
for all three projects – Gorakhpur 
project on 31.07.2017, Barauni & Sindri 
projects on 29.08.2017.

The Registered O�ce of the Company 
shifted from Kolkata to New Delhi on 
05.12.2019.

Foundation stone laying of Sindri 
project by Hon’ble Prime Minister of 

India on 25.05. 2018.

Foundation stone laying of Barauni 
project by Hon’ble Prime Minister of 

India on 17.02. 2019.

Pre-commissioning activities 
commenced at Gorakhpur plant.

Pre-commissioning activities 
commenced at Sindri & Barauni plant.

Gorakhpur plant was dedicated to the 
Nation by Hon’ble Prime Minister of 
India on 07.12.2021.

Commercial Date of operation (COD) 
declaration at Gorakhpur plant on 

03.05.2022.

COD declaration at Sindri & Barauni 
plants on 15.04.2023 and 30.04.2023 
respectively.

Sindri & Barauni plants were dedicated 
to the Nation by Hon’ble Prime Minister 

of India on 01.03.2024 and 02.03.2024 
respectively.

Full-fledged Operations of all 3 plants 
achieved. The Company ventured into 
Import Business.

2016 

2016   

2017   

2018   

2019   

2019   

2020   

2021   

2021  

2022   

2023   

2024   

2025   
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Performance Highlights for the 

FY 2024-25

SINDRI UNIT

Urea Production

12.47 Lakh MT
Urea Sales

12.42 Lakh MT

Urea Production

8.55 Lakh MT
Urea Sales

8.59 Lakh MT
BARAUNI UNIT

11

GORAKHPUR UNIT

Urea Production

12.01 Lakh MT
Urea Sales

12.04 Lakh MT
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Highest ever Revenue from operations of  ₹15,745 Cr.

Highest ever PBT of ₹1,837 Cr.

Highest ever Cash generation of ₹3,425 Cr. 

Improvement in Credit Rating Long-Term: 

AA-/Stable (Upgraded from IND A+/Positive)

4449

-61

14987

1324

15910

1375

Revenue (in ` Cr.) PAT (in ` Cr.)
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BULK PRODUCTS

Bharat Urea Bharat MOP Bharat TSP

Bharat DAP Bharat NPK-20:20:0:13 Bharat NPK-15:15:15 

Single Super Phosphate

OUR PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
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NON BULK PRODUCTS

Apna Gold
Bentonite 

Sulphur 90% 

Apna Magic
Magnesium 

Sulphate

Apna Calgrow
Calacium Nitrate

Apna PDMsri
Potash Derived 
from Molasses

Apna Calgrow B+
Boronated

Calcium nitrate

Apna Power
Mycorrhizal
biofertilizer

Apna Mono Zinc
Zinc sulphate 

Mono hydrate 33%
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HURL TERRITORIES

Upcoming States

Exis�ng States

Jammu 
and 

Kashmir

Ladakh

Chandigarh

HURL PLANTS
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AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

India’s Rising Star Award 2024 in the Fertilizer category 

from Indian Brand and Leadership Conclave 2024 

Fame & Golden Bird National Conference & 

Awards Ceremony 2023-24 for Emerging Brand 

of the Year in Fertilizer Industry.

 North Eastern Railway’s Premier 

Customer Awards for ‘Premier Customer 

under Platinum Category’
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AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

11th CII-SCALE Awards 2024 National Award Supply Chain and 

Logistics Excellence under Chemical/Fertilizer Category

Business Leader of 

the Year Award 2025 

for Emerging 

Company of the Year 

(Fertilizer Sector)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As on 25.08.2025

In his illustrious career spanning over 34 years of experience, Shri Jain has made outstanding contributions in 

areas of Information & Technology, CMD & Director (Technical) Secretariat, ERP, Corporate Planning, Coal 

Mining etc. He has also worked extensively in the area of Business Development both in India and abroad, 

merger and acquisition, risk management, strategic management and corporate a�airs.

On the academic front, Shri Jain is a qualified Mechanical Engineer from National Institute of 

Technology(NIT) in India and holds a Master’s Degree in Information Systems and Engineering Management 

from George Washington University, USA. He has completed a mini-MBA from Management Center Europe, 

Belgium and has attended global leadership programs at University of Maryland, USA, IIM Kolkata and IIM 

Ahmedabad. Shri Jain loves traveling and has traveled over 30 countries in 6 continents.

Shri Animesh Jain is working as Executive Director (Business Development and Consultancy), NTPC Ltd.,  

w.e.f. 10.03.2025. He is responsible as head of Corporate Planning and the Business Development (Domestic 

& International) & Consultancy division of NTPC and look after company’s business development strategy 

by acquisition, diversification into power related & other business, consultancy in the fields of Power Project 

Engineering, Project Management, O&M, Environment Engineering, Mining, etc.

In his responsibility as Executive Director of World Energy Council India, from 2021 to 2023 he has developed 

a holistic view of the power sector including the energy transition underway both in India and globally.

Prior to his present posting, Shri Jain has served as CEO, NML & Regional ED (Coal Mining), NTPC Ltd. for a 

period of about one & half year where he was responsible for development & operation of 8 coal mines (86 

MMTPA capacity, coal reserves) and coal evacuation to NTPC’s power stations for fuel security, business 

diversification. He has also served as Head of Project at Chatti Bariatu Coal Mining project.

Shri Jain has served as Managing Director of Bangladesh India Friendship Power Company Ltd (BIFPCL) in 

2020-21. Prior to assuming the role of Managing Director at BIFPCL, he was responsible for establishing 

operations of NTPC Limited in Myanmar. Apart from being Country Head for NTPC Limited in Myanmar, he 

contributed to the power sector initiatives for BIMSTEC region as a member in inter-governmental 

committees. 

Shri Animesh Jain
(Chairman), w.e.f. 16.08.2025

Shri Raghunadhan has demonstrated expertise in managing complex polymer marketing functions and 

delivering results. He is known for insight and leadership in strategy, marketing, and mergers & acquisitions 

(M&A).

Shri AV Raghunadhan is an Engineering Graduate from Jawaharlal Nehru Technological University.  He is 

presently working as Executive Director (New Business) at Indian Oil Corporation Limited (Indian Oil). He is 

presently heading the New Business Group which is involved in overseas international business 

endeavours, product exports, and new initiatives in emerging energy verticals. He has been working with 

Indian Oil since 1993 and has rich and versatile experience of over three decades, spanning logistics, polymer 

marketing, technical services, projects and strategy. During his versatile career at Indian Oil, Shri 

Raghunadhan has played a pivotal role in developing Petrochemical Perspective Plan for the country.

 Shri AV Raghunadhan
(Vice-Chairman), 

w.e.f. 22.08.2025
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He is also Managing Director of Assam Valley Fertilizer and Chemical Company Limited (AVFCCL).

Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty is a Managing Director at Hindustan Urvarak and Rasayan Limited with rich and 

diverse experience of around 36 years primarily in Marketing of Agri Inputs he has held post of CMD at 

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL) and key leadership positions at HIL and Rashtriya 

Chemical & Fertilizers Limited (RCF). Shri Mohanty has done his Master’s in Business Management from 

Behrampur University, Odisha and Executive Development  from IIM Lucknow and Advance Management 

Programme from IIM, Kolkata. He has been conferred honorary Doctorate Degree (D.Litt) by Dr. Radhakrishnan, 

Teacher’s Welfare and R&D Centre a�liated to University of South America. He has been received numerous 

prestigious awards, including “Marketing Man of the Year” (1995), “Best Employee” (2012), Influential 50 Rural 

Marketing Professionals of India”, “UDYOG RATTAN AWARD” and “EXCELLENCE AWARD”, “HINDI GAURAV” 

(2016), “BHARAT JYOTI AWARD”, “State Business Leadership Award 2022” and the “Chanakya Award” (2022). He 

is also holding the charge of Director, FAI the Co-Chairman of the FICCI Crop Protection Committee and an 

Executive Member of the Governing Body of SCOPE and a certified international trainer and lead speaker on 

marketing and rural marketing, contributing articles, and delivering talks on agriculture inputs marketing. He is a 

regular faculty member for di�erent Seminars organized by Fertilizer Association of India (Eastern Zone) Known 

for his astute leadership qualities that makes him true gem in the industry.   

 Shri S.P. Mohanty 
Managing Director

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari Executive Director (Finance) of NTPC Limited, a Maharatna CPSE engaged in the 

business of Power Generation, Power Trading, and Coal Mining.

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari joined NTPC as an Executive Trainee in 1990 and has more than 31 years of diverse 

experience in almost all aspects of Finance and Accounts which includes long-term resource mobilization from 

domestic and foreign lenders, Budgeting, Finance Concurrence, Investor Services, and Superannuation Trusts. 

He also has substantial exposure of working as Head of Finance at the Thermal Power Project, and Hydropower 

Project. Presently he is head of the Concurrence Function and Superannuation Trusts at the Corporate Centre, 

NTPC.

 Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari
Director

Shri Chiranjib Patra is a Mining Engineer from IIEST Shibpur. He has experience of 34 years in the coal mining 

industry including experience as Mine Planning & Design Consultant.

He is presently holding the position of ED (Corporate A�airs & Business Development) at CIL as part of the 

Business Development Division of CIL. In in present profile, he is undertaking diversification initiatives in Coal-

to-Chemical Projects, Acquisition of Critical Mineral Assets, Thermal Power Projects and Renewable Projects.

His experience includes, working in underground coal mine, preparation & appraisal of Coal & Metal mining 

projects and R&D projects for subsidiaries of Coal India Limited (CIL), IISCO-SAIL, MOIL India Limited, etc., 

preparation of policy documents for CIL viz. model bid documents for development and extraction of coal from 

mines on risk-gain, hiring, turnkey & mine-developer-cum-operator (MDO) basis, support to Ministry of Coal 

(MoC) for allocation of coal blocks, vetting of Mining Plans & technical matters, working as a consultant to ECL, 

BCCL and SECL for undertaking CBM projects, implementation of pilot scale R&D project on underground Coal 

Gasification in Eastern Coalfields Limited.

  Shri Chiranjib Patra 
(Vice- Chairman), 

w.e.f. 16.08.2025
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He had joined Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) in 1996 and has rich experience of finance, corporate 

planning, corporate treasury and corporate strategy.

Shri Nitin Kumar has joined the Board of HURL w.e.f. 22nd August 2025. He is a Chartered Accountant and also 

holds Executive Masters from the Indian Institute of Foreign Trade (IIFT). 

He had also carried out IOC’s maiden USD bond issuance in 2010 and India’s first 10-year Singapore Dollar bond in 

2012 (the issuance was adjudged “the Indian Capital Market Deal of the Year 2012” by International Financing 

Review Asia). He has extensive experience of fund raising from national and international markets in terms of 

bonds, syndicated loans, bilateral revolving lines, export credit agency loans, buyer’s credit, packing credit in 

foreign currency, collateralised borrowing, working capital loan, commercial paper, inter corporate deposits, 

cash credit etc. He has developed corporate policy for exchange and interest rate risk management, financing of 

group entities, strategy of asset monetisation and has been part of various due diligence processes for M&A 

transactions.  

Shri Nitin Kumar played a key role in establishing “SPRINT” – a transformational project in 2025 in IOCL. 

Currently, he is in-charge of Corporate Finance and Treasury in IOCL.

Shri Nitin Kumar 
(Director), 

w.e.f. 22.08.2025

Shri Sanjay Shrivastava has assumed the position of Executive Director (Finance), Coal India Limited(CIL), w.e.f. 

26.08.2025. which is a Maharatna enterprise under the Ministry of Coal. He has an illustrious career spanning over 

three decades in corporate finance, strategic planning, and financial governance. He is a seasoned finance 

professional and member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India. He also holds a Master’s degree in 

Commerce from Nagpur University.

Prior to his tenure at CIL, Shri Sanjay Shrivastava held key positions at South Eastern Coalfields Ltd., subsidiary of 

CIL, where he contributed significantly across various financial functions.

His core competencies span a wide array of domains such as corporate accounting, cost control, treasury and 

fund management, taxation, budgeting and forecasting, statutory compliance, digitization of financial 

operations, and enterprise risk management. He has successfully led enterprise-wide Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP) implementations and championed initiatives that enhanced financial transparency and enabled 

real-time reporting.

With a rare blend of tactical acumen and strategic foresight, Shri Sanjay Shrivastava continues to contribute 

meaningfully to CIL’s financial strength and its global stature as the world’s largest coal-producing company.

  Shri Sanjay Shrivastava 
(Director), 

w.e.f. 16.08.2025

He has also worked in the commercial wing of Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), Department of 

Expenditure, National Pharmaceutical Pricing Authority, Department of Personnel and Training and 

Department of Commerce. He possesses wide experience in Government accounts and finance, costing, trade 

remedy laws, audit, establishment etc.

Shri Naresh Arya Director (Finance), Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited (FCIL) and Hindustan Fertilizer 

Corporation Limited (HFCL)  is an Indian Cost Accounts Service O�cer. He is a Chartered Accountant and M.A. in 

Economics. He is presently working as Director in Fertilizer Industry Coordination Committee (FICC) in the 

Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Govt. of India.

 Shri Naresh Arya 
Director
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Dear Members,

thOn behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me immense pleasure to present the 9  Annual Report on the performance of your 
Company along with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year (FY) ended on March 31, 2025 together with Auditor’s 
Report (Revised) and comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) thereon.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

 The key highlights on the financial performance of the Company for the FY ended March 31, 2025 with comparative position of 
 previous year’s performance are as under:

 The financial statements for the FY 2024-25 have been prepared in pursuance of the provisions of the applicable Indian 

 Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

 Standards) Rules, 2015.

 The revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2025 was mainly on account of sale of neem coated Urea, sale of 
 Ammonia, subsidy from Government of India, revenue on account of traded goods including import. 

 Your Company’s production activities are supported by three state-of-the-art Ammonia Urea plants located at Gorakhpur 

 (Uttar Pradesh), Sindri (Jharkhand) and Barauni (Bihar). Each of the three Plants are having Ammonia unit with installed 

 capacity of 2,200 Metric Tonnes Per Day (MTPD) and Urea unit with installed capacity of 3,850 MTPD. The three plants have 

 annual installed capacity of approx. 12.7 Lakh metric ton (LMT) each, for production of ‘Neem’ coated prilled urea using ‘Natural 

 gas’ as feedstock. Gas Authority of India Limited (GAIL) and Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) are supplying Natural Gas to 

 these three plants. 

2. PLANT OVERVIEW AND OPERATIONS: 

Sl. No.

(Amount in ₹ Lakh)

Financial Performance

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Total Income [(1) + (2)]

Total Expenses

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [(3) – (4)]

Tax Expense

Profit / (Loss) After Tax [(5) – (6)] 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of Taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income [(7) + (8)]

Earnings per equity Share

Net Worth

Year ended 31.03.2025

15,74,560.35

16,410.30

15,90,970.65

14,07,233.87

1,83,736.78

45,529.44

1,38,207.34 

(649.95)

1,37,557.39

1.73

11,03,634.43

Year ended 31.03.2024

14,89,475.46

9,268.09

14,98,743.55

13,18,986.60

1,79,756.95

47,308.37

1,32,448.58

17.23

1,32,465.81

1.83

9,66,077.04

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FY 2024-25

Apna Nano Urea launched by Smt. Anupriya Patel, The Hon’ble Union Minister of State for 
Health & Family Welfare and Chemicals & Fertilizers at FAI Annual Seminar 2024
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 The major portion of the three plants at Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni have been constructed under LSTK contract. M/s Toyo 

 Engineering Corporation, Japan in consortium with M/s Toyo Engineering India Pvt. Ltd. is the LSTK contractor for the 

 Gorakhpur project. The Ammonia unit technology licensor is M/s KBR, USA and the Urea unit technology licensor is M/s Toyo, 

 Japan for the Gorakhpur project. While, M/s Technip, France S.A. in consortium with Technip India Limited and L&T 

 Hydrocarbon Engineering Limited is the LSTK contractor for both Sindri and Barauni projects. The Ammonia unit technology 

 licensor is M/s Haldor Topsoe, Denmark and the Urea unit technology licensor is M/s Saipam, Italy for both these projects.

 All the three Urea Plants of the Company have been commissioned and started their commercial operations viz. Gorakhpur 

 unit on 03.05.2022, Sindri unit on 15.04.2023 and Barauni unit on 30.04.2023. All of these plants have excellent connectivity both 

 by road and rail, and entire urea is being supplied as per the direction and allocation from the Department of Fertilizers (DoF), 

 Ministry of Chemical & Fertilizers (MoC&F). The Company has tied up with Railways for urea transportation under the ‘Gati 

 Shakti’ scheme of the Government of India.

 During FY 2024-25, your Company’s Urea Plants achieved composite urea production of 33.03 LMT against 35.51 LMT during the 

 previous year i.e. FY 2023-24. The composite specific energy consumption of urea production was 5.25 GCal/MT against 5.20 

 GCal/MT in the previous year. The highlights of operational performance of all the three Plants for the Financial Year (FY) 2024-

 25 vis-à-vis the previous year is as under: 

A. Gorakhpur Plant: The highlights of operational performance of Gorakhpur Plant are as follows:

S. N. Operational Parameters

1 

2 

3  

Production of Urea (MT)

Production percentage to Installed capacity (%)

Sale of Urea (MT)

FY 2024-25

12,01,008

95

12,04,513

FY 2023-24

13,50,128

106

13,37,041

 During FY 2024-25, the Gorakhpur plant demonstrated remarkable consistency in operations, despite a planned load 

 reduction due to critical maintenance activities and energy optimization trials. Further, the energy consumption was 

 marginally reduced in comparison to the previous year.

 During the year, the Gorakhpur plant’s in-house Quality 

 Control Laboratory has been assessed and accredited in 

 accordance with Standard ISO/IEC 17025:2017 by National 

 Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories 

 (NABL). The NABL certification was received on 11.11.2024 and is 

 valid for a period of four years. This Certification confirms 

 compliance with international testing standards and 

 provides the credibility of product quality.

B. Sindri Plant: The highlights of operational performance of 

 Sindri Plant are as follows:

S. N. Operational Parameters

1 

2 

3  

Production of Urea (MT)

Production percentage to Installed capacity (%)

Sale of Urea (MT)

FY 2024-25

12,47,035

98

12,42,508

FY 2023-24

10,91,406*

90

10,55,088

 During FY 2024-25, the Sindri plant demonstrated remarkable consistency in operations.

C. Barauni Plant: The highlights of operational performance of Barauni Plant are as follows: 

 * w.e.f. date of COD i.e. 15.04.2023.

1 

2 

3  

Production of Urea (MT)

Production percentage to Installed capacity (%)

Sale of Urea (MT)

FY 2023-24FY 2024-25

8,55,394

67

8,59,098

9,47,703*

83

9,31,243

S. N. Operational Parameters

 * w.e.f. date of COD i.e. 30.04.2023.
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HURL Signed License Agreement for Nano Urea with Ray Nano Science & Research Centre LLP

3. NEW PROJECTS BEING UNDERTAKEN:

 Your Company is also expanding its footprints in the alternate fertilizers in-line with the policies of the 

 Government of India. In this direction, following projects are being actively considered by the Company:

 During the FY 2024-25, due to major equipment pre-mature failures, including the Primary Reformer, Waste Heat Boiler No.2, 

 and Urea Reactor liner, there was a significant impact on urea production and energy consumption in the Barauni Plant. After 

 the close of the year, during the annual turnaround in May 2025, Primary Reformer tubes were replaced along with fresh 

 catalyst in a timely manner. Waste Heat Boiler No.2 and the Urea Reactor liner were thoroughly inspected and minor repair was 

 carried out in Urea Reactor. After the annual turnaround, the Barauni plant has been operating e�ciently at the requisite load 

 and energy consumption.

 With the commissioning of HURL units, the country has moved one step closer to the “Atma Nirbharta” in Urea Production and 

 there is a substantial reduction in the import of Urea in the FY 2024-25. 

 

 B. Nano Urea: To meet the growing demand for urea and reduce dependency on imports, the Government of India is 

  actively promoting the usage of alternative fertilizers. Nano Fertilzers are revolutionary agri-input that supplies nitrogen 

  to plants e�ciently. Your company is setting up a Nano Urea plant of 75 KL (Kilo Litre) per day capacity at its Gorakhpur 

  Unit. License Agreement has been signed with M/s Ray Nano Science & Research Centre and Project Management 

  Consultant (PMC) has been appointed for the proposed project. The appointment of LSTK contractor for setting up the 

  plant is being taken up.

 A. Namrup IV Ammonia Urea Fertilizer Project: During the FY 2024-25, the Union Cabinet has approved the proposal for 

  setting up of a new Brownfield Ammonia-Urea Complex of 12.7 Lakh Metric Tonnes (LMT) annual capacity of Urea 

  production within the existing premises of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL), Namrup Assam, 

  with an estimated total project cost of Rs.10,601.40 Crore with Debt Equity ratio of 70:30 through formation of a Joint 

  Venture (JV), under the New Investment Policy, 2012. The project aims to boost domestic urea production and enhance 

  fertilizer security in the Eastern region. In the proposed JV, equity shareholding shall be held by Government of Assam 

  (40%), BVFCL (11%), HURL (13%), National Fertilizers Limited (NFL) (18%) and Oil India Limited (OIL) (18%).
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 C. Ammonia Sulphate: There is a significant market volume of Ammonium Sulphate in the region, wherein HURL has strong 

  presence. In line with the directives of Department of Fertilizers, the Company is planning to set up an Ammonium 

  Sulphate manufacturing plant with a capacity of about 400 MT per day at its Barauni Unit. Detailed Feasibility Report 

  (DFR) is under approval for the proposed project. 

 D. Sulphur coated Urea: The Cabinet Committee on Economic A�airs (CCEA) has approved the launch of Sulphur Coated 

  Urea, branded as “Urea Gold,” and has decided to price it at the same level as Neem Coated Urea. Sulphur Coated Urea is 

  anticipated to significantly contribute to improving soil health, ensuring controlled nutrient release, and enhancing crop 

  productivity. Your Company is planning to set up a pilot plant for manufacturing of Sulphur Coated Urea at its Barauni 

  Unit. 

 E. NPK Fertilizers: NPK fertilizers are a type of multi-nutrient fertilizer that contains three essential plant nutrients: 

  Nitrogen (N), Phosphorus (P), and Potassium (K). NPK fertilizers are widely used in agriculture to improve soil fertility and 

  boost crop yields, making them a key component of balanced nutrient management in farming. Your company is 

  examining the feasibility to establish an NPK fertilizer plant of about 1000 MT/Day capacity at its Sindri Unit.

4. SALES & MARKETING: 

 During the FY 2024-25, the total Neem coated urea sold was 

 33.06 LMT i.e. sale of urea produced during the year (33.03 LMT 

 cumulatively for all the three plants) and the opening stock. 

 Your Company has maintained its strong presence in the Urea 

 segment and with its diversification strategy, it has expanded 

 non-urea product o�erings during the year. The Company has 

 achieved sale of 2.27 LMT during FY 2024-25 of the non-urea 

 domestic products such as Biofertilizers, Micronutrients, 

 Single Super Phosphate, Nano Urea, Potash Derived from 

 Molasses and Phosphatic Fertilizers. Further, the Company has 

 successfully ventured into business of imported fertilizers and 

 1.36 LMT of Diammonium Phosphate (DAP) and Triple 

 Superphosphate (TSP) were imported to meet Rabi season’s 

 demand in the Country. These imported fertilizers were timely 

 and seamlessly distributed across India, fully adhering to all 

 regulatory guidelines.

 The Company reinforced its commitment for supporting India’s agricultural growth through strategic branding, farmer-

 centric marketing and active participation in activities aligning with key government initiatives such as PM PRANAM, Namo 

 Drone Didi scheme, PMKSK, and Atmanirbhar Bharat etc. Some of these initiatives undertaken during the FY 2024-25 were as 

 under:

 A. Branding and Promotion: To promote alternative fertilizers like Fermented Organic Manure (FOM), Liquid Fermented 

  Organic Manure (LFOM), Nano Urea and bio-fertilizers, HURL has organized awareness campaigns, farm demonstration, 

  and Kisan sangoshthi across the States where the Company has its operations. These initiatives enhanced HURL's brand 

  visibility, deepened trust amongst the farmers & channel partners and significantly improved market penetration of the 

  Company’s products.

 B. Channel Strategy: The company has expanded dealer 

  network to 2,351 (including private & Institutions), which 

  will cater to 92,657 retailers. This setup helps HURL ensure 

  its products are easily available to farmers in di�erent 

  regions, supporting their agricultural needs e�ciently. To 

  keep channel partners updated on the Company’s 

  business plans, regular two-way interactions were held 

  through various Dealers’ and Retailers’ meetings across all 

  marketing regions of the Company.

 

First vessel loading and Unloading - launch of Import business

Liquid Fermented Organic Manure (LFOM) 

distribution through dispenser machine
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Demonstration by Drone Didi on Nano urea application via drone and distribution of training certificates

Ø Under the Namo Drone Didi scheme, the Government empowers the women-led Self-Help Groups (SHGs) by 

providing them with drones for agricultural use, specifically for spraying liquid fertilizers and pesticides. In the 

previous year, HURL has trained 66 Self Help Group (SHGs) women and its executives, and also provided 60 drones to 

women SHGs. In FY 2024-25, the Company has continued its support for the maintenance of these drones and other 

services, which is a significant step towards agricultural transformation and women’s empowerment. 

 D. Expansion of Marketing territory: During the year, the Company started operations in Maharashtra, with continued 

  operations in the existing marketing territories viz. Assam, Bihar, Chhattisgarh, Haryana, Jharkhand, Madhya Pradesh 

  (M.P.), Odisha, Punjab, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh (U.P.) and West Bengal. To enhance operational e�ciency and market 

  access, new State o�ces were set up in Kolkata, Bhopal (M.P.), Patna (Bihar), Lucknow (U.P.), Raipur (Chhattisgarh) and 

  Zirakpur (Punjab), stimulating closer engagement with farmers and channel partners.

Ø HURL has been engaged in setting up 1,472 

Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samriddhi Kendra 

(PMKSK) across the Country which provide 

 C. Logistics: The Company has strategically worked on logistics management, and has achieved significant cost saving with 

  methodical planning and optimized transportation routes. The freight under-recovery has been reduced over the years, 

  i.e. from Rs.90 PMT (per metric tons) in FY 2022-23 to Rs.26 PMT in FY 2023-24, and further down to Rs.23 PMT in FY 2024-25. 

 E. Participation in Government Initiatives: HURL has actively aligned with key Government of India initiatives aimed at 

  transforming agriculture, empowering rural communities and promoting sustainable practices. Few such initiatives are 

  detailed below:

Ø HURL promoted use of FOM and LFOM 

under the PM-PRANAM and GOBARdhan 

schemes, and distributed them free of cost 

to boost awareness and adoption of 

organic inputs for improved soil health. The 

Department of Fertilizers (DoF), Ministry of 

Chemicals and Fertilizers has recognized 

HURL’s  e�orts  in  coordinat ing the 

Promotion, Marketing, and Innovation of 

FOM, LFOM, and PROM under the Market 

Development Assistance (MDA) scheme. In 

this regard, a senior HURL o�cial has been 

nominated as the Senior Coordinator by 

DoF to lead and support these activities at 

the national level. 

Jeep campaign across business territories of 

HURL for product promotion.
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Sl. No. Name of the Shareholder

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Coal India Limited (CIL) 
CIL jointly with Shri Debasish Nanda
NTPC Limited (NTPC)
Ms. Renu Narang (holding share on behalf of NTPC)
Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL)
Ms. Manisha Gangwar (holding share on behalf of IOCL)
Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited (FCIL)
Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited (HFCL)
                                                                                   Total

No. of Shares Held (of Rs.10/- each) 

as on 31.03.2025
264,29,84999

1
264,29,84999

1
264,29,84999

1
16,667
8,333

792,89,80,000

 During the FY 2024-25, the Company has received the following awards:

7. SHARE CAPITAL:

services such as agri-inputs, information and support for farmers. 

 F. Sustainable farming: The Government of India strives for self-reliance in the fertilizer sector and improvement in soil 

  health for sustainable farming. In order to support this vision, the Company through ‘Community Radios’ programme 

  disseminated information on Government schemes like PM-PRANAM and balanced fertilizer use among farmers.  

5. AWARDS & ACCOLADES: 

6. PROJECT COST & ITS FINANCING: 

Ø HURL is also actively working to install Point of Sale (PoS) machine at PMKSKs, enabling real-time tracking of 

subsidized fertilizer distribution by the government.

 In addition to the above awards, Shri S.P. Mohanty, Managing Director, HURL received Elite 100 Changemakers of Odisha 2024 

 Award, from Interview Times Media Network, for the exceptional contributions in the field of fertilizer and social commitment 

 in transforming world for the greater good on January 25, 2025 at a function held at Bhubaneswar. 

 The total revised project cost approved for the execution of the all the three projects of your Company as on 31.03.2025 is 

 Rs.27,89,460 Lakh i.e. Rs.9,44,320 Lakh for Gorakhpur Project, Rs.8,93,925 Lakh for Sindri Project and Rs.9,51,215 Lakh for Barauni 

 project. This revised project cost was allocated in the equity share capital of Rs.10,156,69 Lakh and debt portion of Rs.17,73,791 

 Lakh, with debt equity ratio of 64:36. 

 List of Shareholders and Shareholding as on March 31, 2025:

 The Authorized share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs.12,00,000 Lakh and the issued, subscribed and 

 paid-up share capital stood at Rs.7,92,898 Lakh. There was no share subscription money pending allotment as on March 31, 

 2025. The entire share capital of the Company is held in the dematerialized mode.

S. 

No.

Date and Place of 

Receipt of Award

1 

2 

3

4

5  

April 21, 2024 at Goa

June 12, 2024 at 

Dehradun

September 20, 2024 at 

Gorakhpur

November 29, 2024, at 

Mumbai

February 19, 2025, at 

Mumbai

Name of the Award

India’s Rising Star Award from Indian Brand and 

Leadership Conclave 2024

Fame & Golden Bird National Conference & 

Award Ceremony 2023-24 

North Eastern Railway’s Premier 

Customer Awards

th11  CII-SCALE Awards 2024 - National Award 

Supply Chain and Logistics Excellence 

Business Leader of the Year Award 2025

Project / Category

India’s Rising Star Award 2024 in the 

Fertilizer category 

Gorakhpur Unit has received a 

prestigious award from the Lucknow 

Division of North Eastern Railway for 

‘Premier Customer under Platinum 

Category’

Excellent position under 

Chemical/Fertilizer Category 

Emerging Company of the Year 

(Fertilizer Sector)

Emerging Brand of the Year 2023-24 

in Fertilizer Industry.
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 As per the World Economic Outlook (WEO), April 2025 of the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economy 

 registered a growth of 3.3% in 2024 and is projected to grow at 2.8% in 2025. In the emerging markets and developing 

 economies, the growth is expected to slow down to 3.7% in 2025. Global inflation is expected to be 4.3% in 2025. 

 India’s agricultural sector has demonstrated remarkable resilience in recent years, marked by consistent growth rates. This 

 stability can be largely attributed to various government initiatives to enhance productivity, promote crop diversification, 

 and increase farmers' income. As per the Economic Survey FY 2024-25 issued by Department of Economic A�airs, Government 

 of India, Indian agriculture sector contributes approximately 16% of the country’s GDP for FY2024 at current prices and 

 provides livelihood support about 46.1% of the population. Not only does its performance directly impact food security, but it 

 The revised amount of contingent liability is Rs. 1,76,781.54 Lakh for FY 2024-25 (PY: Rs. 1,74,214.82 Lakh).

12. GENERAL INFORMATION – GLOBAL & INDIAN ECONOMY, OVERVIEW OF INDUSTRY, AND OUTLOOK OF THE 

 COMPANY:

11. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE 

 END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

 India’s economy growth outlook appears relatively more stable in 2025, supported by private consumption, particularly in 

 rural areas. Despite global economic headwinds, India's growth trajectory remains robust, driven by strong domestic demand, 

 sustained public infrastructure investment, and a resilient services sector. However, external risks persist due to weaker global 

 trade, tighter financial conditions, and geopolitical uncertainties. As per the National Statistical O�ce (NSO), Ministry of 

 Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI) released on May 30, 2025, the Real GDP of the country has been estimated 

 to grow by 6.5% in 2025 as compared to the growth rate of 8.2% in FY 2024. Nominal GDP has witnessed a growth rate of 9.8% 

 in FY 2025 over the growth rate of 9.6% in FY 2024. 

 No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 

 a�ect the financial position of the Company, except that based upon Supplementary audit observation by AMG I, O�ce of the 

 Director General of Audit (Agriculture, Food and Water resources).

 The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for FY 2024-25.

 The ‘Agriculture and Allied Activities’ stands at the intersection of three of the 21st century’s most pressing challenges 

 ensuring food and nutrition security, addressing climate change through adaptation and mitigation, and managing the 

 sustainable use of critical resources like water, energy, and land. To maintain and accelerate agricultural growth, there is an 

 urgent need to upgrade farming technologies, integrate modern skills into agricultural practices, and embrace innovative 

 approaches such as cooperative farming. Equally important are e�orts to minimize input wastage—particularly fertilizers, 

 water, and energy, thereby promoting e�ciency, sustainability, and resilience in Indian agriculture.

10. DIVIDEND:

 In line with cabinet approval dated 13.07.2016 regarding revival of Gorakhpur and Sindri (units of FCIL) and Barauni (unit of 

 HFCL), FCIL and HFCL shall together hold 10.99% equity Shareholding in the company at Commercial operations Date (COD) of 

 the project. Detailed modalities for issue of shares to FCIL and HFCL have been mutually finalized by the Promoters. COD of 

 Gorakhpur project has been achieved on 03.05.2022 and of Sindri and Barauni projects on 15.04.2023 and 30.04.2023, 

 respectively. The process of issue shares to FCIL and HFCL have also been initiated by the Company. However, pending issue of 

 shares during FY 2024-25, there is no change in number of shares held by FCIL and HFCL.

 The total outstanding balance of Term Loan as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs.12,65,259 Lakh. Interest Free loan sanctioned by 

 Government of India was Rs.89,480 Lakh and the outstanding balance as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs.86,126 Lakh.

8. LOANS AND RATING: 

 The details of current and non-current borrowings/secured loans have been disclosed in the Financial Statements at note 

 no.16.

 During FY 2024-25, India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) in December 2024 has revised the ratings of Term loans of Rs.17,73,769 

 Lakh (including Interest-free loan of Rs.89,480 Lakh from the Government of India) to ‘IND AA-/Stable’, from the previous 

 rating of ‘IND A+/Positive’.

9. RESERVES:

 The reserves of the Company under Reserves and Surplus (Retained earnings and other comprehensive income) stood at 

 Rs.2,61,859.27 Lakh as on March 31, 2025 (Previous year Rs.1,23,651.93 Lakh). 
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 Use of fertilizer is indispensable for agriculture. India is the second largest consumer and producer of fertilizers in the world, 

 and it subsidizes fertilizers. The Union Budget for FY 2025-26 allocated Rs.1.67 Lakh Crore for fertilizer subsidy, same as 

 proposed in the Interim Budget, though lower than the revised estimate (RE) of Rs.1.71 Lakh Crore allotted for FY2024-25 (RE). 

 To complement its product diversification, the Company is also preparing to scale up its import operations to ensure the 

 availability of essential non-urea bulk fertilizers such as DAP, TSP, MOP, and various NPK grades for the farming community. 

 Currently, the Company is routing its imports through Kandla port in Gujarat and Paradeep port in Odisha. The Company is 

 evaluating the addition of more ports along both the Eastern and Western coasts of India to improve operational e�ciency 

 and broaden its supply network. 

 In terms of overall sale of fertilizer (i.e. urea and other fertilizer products), the Company registered sale of 34.42 LMT, which 

 translated to a domestic fertilizer market share of approx. 5.5%. Building on this strong foundation, the Company is 

 strategically positioned to further increase its market share by expanding its product portfolio. New product launches in the 

 near future includes, Fermented Organic Manure (FOM), Sulphur 90% Powder, NPK 19:19:19 Foliar, NPK 13:0:45 Foliar, Seaweed-

 based products (in both granule and liquid forms), Bio NPK (Granular), and Phosphate Rich Organic Manure (PROM). 

 Furthermore, HURL is set to diversify into new segments such as Agro-Chemicals, Seeds, and other region-specific fertilizers in 

 response to evolving market demands.

 also influences other sectors, sustaining livelihoods and supporting economic growth. In recent years, the agriculture sector in 

 India has shown robust growth, demonstrating stability despite challenges. 

 In parallel, the Company is pursuing geographical expansion into new States viz. Jammu & Kashmir, Himachal Pradesh, 

 Uttarakhand and Gujarat. In alignment with this, HURL is also strengthening its distribution footprint through a hybrid 

 approach involving Traditional dealers, Farmer Producer Organizations (FPOs), and e-commerce platforms, aimed at 

 increasing HURL’s presence in both rural and urban markets. 

 On the branding and promotion front, apart from participation in the key Government initiatives (mentioned under the ‘Sales 

 & Marketing’ head) the Company is complementing traditional methods with modern digital strategies, including geo-tagged 

 Outlook of the Company and its preparedness to tap opportunities:

 Though, India is moving toward gaining self-su�ciency in urea, it still depends on imports to meet its rock phosphate demand. 

 Phosphatic and potassic (P&K) fertiliser plants are highly dependent on import of raw materials and intermediates like rock 

 phosphate, sulphur, ammonia, sulphuric acid and phosphoric acid. The productivity of this sector is impacted by the 

 availability and pricing of raw materials & intermediates in the international market. Dependency on import often a�ects 

 quality of raw materials and intermediates, which in turn a�ects operations of complex fertiliser plants. 

 The Indian agricultural landscape is undergoing rapid transformation, with growing emphasis on productivity and 

 sustainability. The development of domestic fertilizer manufacturing capabilities will reduce vulnerabilities to global supply 

 chain disruptions. In this context, Atmanirbhar Bharat finds clear expression in the push for fertilizer self-su�ciency, fostering 

 both economic sustainability and inclusive growth.

 Your Company is operating all three of its urea plants e�ciently and has established a robust supply chain network for the 

 evacuation of urea produced at these facilities. In FY 2024-25, HURL has achieved total urea sale of 33.06 LMT, which 

 accounted for approx. 9% market share.

 India stands at the second largest producer of nitrogenous and complex fertilisers in the World. The major fertilisers produced 

 in India include urea, di-ammonium phosphate (DAP), NP/NPK Complex fertilisers and single super phosphate. Urea is the 

 most produced fertiliser and widely consumed fertiliser in the country, which provides nitrogen to the soil and is crucial for 

 plant development. India does not produce enough of it to meet its domestic requirements. During 2024-25, 30.64 million 

 metric tonne (million MT) urea was produced against a production of about 52.0 million MT of total fertiliser products.

 Through strategic interventions such as subsidies, environmental regulations, research investments, and trade policies, 

 Government provides guidance on the agricultural sector toward more sustainable, e�cient, and equitable outcomes, the 

 Government has promoted a recently approved scheme aimed at providing drones to Women SHGs. Furthermore, digital 

 initiatives like the Digital Agriculture Mission (DAM) and the e-National Agriculture Market (e-NAM) have been launched to 

 encourage the adoption of innovative agricultural technologies and improve price discovery mechanisms. Additionally, the 

 government provides income support to farmers through assured remunerative prices for their produce, alongside programs 

 such as the Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samman Nidhi (PM-KISAN). 
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13. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

    (b) Barauni Plant: 

 advertisements on platforms like Facebook and YouTube. Plans are also in place to engage with Krishi YouTubers and conduct 

 digital product demonstrations to enhance outreach and engagement.

     (ii) At present DM stream is in operation with permeate water resulting (output between regeneration) 

      OBR of Anion unit increased significantly (1500 m3 above design OBR) resulting much saving of 

      chemical (NaOH /caustic). Saving of approx 1.5 Rs/M3 of DM water due to increase in Anion OBR or by 

      caustic saving. Water loss (during Anion regeneration) to produce per M3 DM water decreased due 

      to increase on Anion OBR. As Anion unit OBR increased resulting less e�uent generation in DM plant. 

      Pumping (e�uent transfer pump PM-40) cost of e�uent from DM plant to ETP also reduced.

 Further, the Company is taking steps towards setting up of Nano Urea plant, Ammonium Sulphate Plant, Sulphur coated urea 

 Plant, NPK Fertilizer Plant and is participating in formation of Joint Venture Company for Namrup-IV Ammonia Urea Fertilizer 

 Plant at Namrup, Assam to leverage the opportunities that are coming up with various Government initiatives and policies in 

 the agriculture sector.

     (i) The following three projects were commissioned, which helped o�set auxiliary power consumption 

      and contributed to HURL’s commitment to sustainability:

   (i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

 The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

 (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

 A.  Conservation of Energy:

    (a) Gorakhpur Plant: 

     (i) The Plant has transitioned from a full-load power configuration to an optimized setup comprising 1 

      GTG + STG + HRSG-1 & 2, which has lead to energy saving.

     (iv) A modification was implemented in the CO₂ compressor sealing system by replacing nitrogen with 

      instrument air. This reduced nitrogen consumption by 144 Nm³/hr (16.5%). 

   (ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy;

   All the three plants are designed with state-of-the-art technology and advanced energy conservation measures, 

   including gas turbines for power generation, waste heat recovery steam generation. These plants are expected to be 

   amongst lowest specific energy consuming fertiliser plants in the Country and expected to achieve the best energy 

   consumption of less than 5.0 Gcal per MT of urea.

     (ii) A revised operating philosophy was implemented in the Ammonia Cooling Tower (ACT) and Urea 

      Cooling Tower (UCT) sections, leading to energy saving. Instead of operating cooling tower pumps 

      with two turbines & one motor as standby, the plant shifted to one turbine-driven pump, one motor-

      driven pump in operation.

     (i) A revised operating philosophy was implemented in the DM Stream (DM Water Plant). Earlier, the 

      DM (Demineralized) water stream was supplied with filtered water as its feed source. However, the 

      process has now been modified to use permeate water from the ETP RO (E�uent Treatment Plant, 

      Reverse Osmosis) system instead of filtered water. As a result of this source change, the activated 

      DM activated carbon feed pump or filtered water pump (18.5 kW) is no longer in service 

      and has been kept as a standby pump. This strategy change lead to energy saving.

     (iii) An in-house modification of the PRDS logic was implemented to address MP steam pressure surges 

      during IS-1 tripping in the Ammonia plant. The change stabilized MS steam header pressure 

      prevented tripping of the Process Air Compressor and Ammonia Refrigeration Compressor, and 

      enhanced safety. This led to faster startups and energy saving.

    (a) Gorakhpur Plant: 
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 B.  Technology Absorption: 

     (ii) Redevelopment of Chilwa Taal, a local water body, with solar lighting - enhancing local 

      biodiversity and aesthetics.

     (ii) Synthesis Gas Compressor Diaphragm successfully repaired indigenously in collaboration with an 

      agency. This has reduced the turnaround time and reliance on OEMs.

14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

15. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

     (iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment - During the FY 2024-25, 

      the capital investment towards the Solar Street lighting system was Rs.35.9 Lakh.

   All the three fertilizer plants are based on eco-friendly natural gas as feedstock and are employing globally proven 

   technologies from reputed licensors. The plants have been constructed on the principle of Reduce-Reuse-Recycle so as to 

   ensure zero liquid discharge. They shall have minimal gaseous emissions with continuous online monitoring systems. The 

   plants have been constructed with state-of-the-art distributed digital instrumentation for enhanced reliability in 

   operations and to minimize interruptions. Further, several advanced safety features have also been included, like double-

   integrity, double-wall ammonia storage tanks, blast-proof central control room, with no open vents for process gas and 

   Ammonia.

   (i) The e�orts made towards technology absorption; and

   (ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development and import 

    substitution;

    (a) Gorakhpur Plant:

     (i) For the first time in India, the KBR-based Purifier Expander was overhauled in-house. This helped in 

      saving significant costs and avoiding an estimated loss of approx. 30% in daily production during a 

      major shutdown.

     (iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 

      the financial year); NIL

 C.  Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo: Earnings – NIL Outgo – Rs.73,170.00 Lakh. 

 No R&D activities were carried out / expenditure incurred during the period under review.

 DIRECTORS:

 As on March 31, 2025, the Company has eight (8) directors of which one is whole-time Director (Managing Director), two 

 Directors nominated by each of the three Promoter companies viz. NTPC, CIL and IOCL and one Director nominated by 

 FCIL/HFCL, combined.

 Directors who were appointed and also whose tenure has ended during the year:

 During the FY 2024-25, the following changes were made in the Board of Directors:

Project

CPP Rooftop Solar

Lake View Rooftop Solar

Solar Street Lighting

Capacity

100 kW

50 kW

150 No.

Date of Commissioning

April 2024

May 2024

Dec 2024

Date of Appointment 

/ Cessation

30.04.2024

03.04.2024

19.04.2024

Reason of Appointment 

/ Cessation

Due to superannuation 

from IOCL

Change in Nomination 

by FCIL / HFCL

S. No.

1. 

2. 

3. 

Name of Director 

and DIN
Shri D.S. Sehgal

(DIN: 09065182)

Shri Padamsing P. Patil

(DIN:09747446)

Shri Anurag Rohatgi

(DIN:9774170)

Nominated 

by

IOCL

FCIL/HFCL

FCIL/HFCL

Appointment / 

Cessation

Cessation

Cessation

Appointment
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Date of Appointment 

/ Cessation

Reason of Appointment 

/ Cessation
S. No.

Name of Director 

and DIN

Nominated 

by
Appointment / 

Cessation

06.05.2024

06.05.2024

10.05.2024

10.05.2024

10.05.2024

14.05.2024

14.05.2024

30.06.2024

18.07.2024

Change in Nomination 

by FCIL / HFCL

Change in Nomination 

by IOCL

Nomination by IOCL

Change in Nomination 

by FCIL / HFCL

Due to superannuation 

from CIL

Nomination by CIL

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12.

13. 

14.

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

Smt. Renu Narang

(DIN:08070565)

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari

(DIN: 10429528)

Shri AV Raghunadhan

(DIN: 10570608)

Shri Subhajit Sarkar

(DIN:09706305)

Smt. Padma Dhulipala

(DIN: 09565836)

Shri Anurag Rohatgi

(DIN:9774170)

Shri Naresh Arya

(DIN: 10627329)

Dr. A.K. Samantaray

(DIN:07090691)

Shri Sagar Sen

(DIN:10711651)

NTPC

NTPC

IOCL

IOCL

IOCL

FCIL/HFCL

FCIL/HFCL

CIL

CIL

Cessation

Appointment

Appointment

Cessation

Appointment

Cessation

Appointment

Cessation

Appointment

NTPC

NTPC

CIL

CIL

NTPC

NTPC

Cessation

Appointment

Cessation

Appointment

Cessation

Appointment

Change in Nomination 

by CIL

Change in Nomination 

by NTPC

Change in Nomination 

by NTPC

04.09.2024

04.09.2024

04.03.2025

04.03.2025

19.03.2025

19.03.2025

Shri K.S. Sundaram

(DIN:10347322)

Shri R Sarangapani

(DIN:10524412)

Shri Sagar Sen

(DIN:10711651)

Shri Chiranjib Patra

(DIN: 10984975)

Shri R Sarangapani

(DIN:10524412)

Shri Animesh Jain

(DIN: 09343563)

 The following was composition of the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 2025:

Name of Director and DIN

Shri Debasish Nanda (DIN: 09015566)

Smt. Padma Dhulipala (DIN: 09565836)

Shri Animesh Jain (DIN: 09343563)

Shri S.P. Mohanty (DIN: 05336787)

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari (DIN: 10429528)

Shri AV Raghunandhan (DIN: 10570608)

Shri Naresh Arya (DIN: 10627329)

Shri Chiranjib Patra (DIN: 10984975)

S. No.

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6.

7.

8.

Designation

Chairman

Vice Chairperson

Vice Chairman

Managing Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

 After the close of the FY 2024-25, the following changes were made in the Board of Directors:

 Directors who were appointed and also whose tenure has ended after the close of the year:

Name of Director 

and DIN

Shri Debasish Nanda

(DIN: 09015566)

S. No.

1. 

2. 

Nominated 

by

CIL

CIL

Appointment / 

Cessation

Cessation

Appointment

Reason of Appointment / 

Cessation

Due to superannuation

Nomination by CIL

Date of Appointment / 

Cessation

Due to superannuation

Nomination by CIL
Shri Mukesh Agrawal       

(DIN: 10199741)
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 Shri Mukesh Agrawal, Chairman, Shri Animesh Jain, Vice-Chairman and Shri Chiranjib Patra, Director have been appointed as 

 Additional Director and shall hold o�ce upto the date of AGM. The requisite details for regularization at the ensuing AGM 

 have been received.

 The details of Directors whose re-appointment / appointment is to be done at the ensuing AGM, are contained in the Notice 

 convening the ensuing AGM of the Company.

 In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Shri Masood Akhtar 

 Ansari, Director shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, have o�ered himself 

 for re-appointment. 

 KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

 The following were the KMP of the Company as on March 31, 2025:

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment / appointment of 

 Directors as detailed hereinabove.

S. N. Name Designation

1 

2 

3  

Shri S.P. Mohanty

Ms. Poonam Jeswani 

Smt. Iti Matta

Managing Director

Chief Financial O�cer (CFO)

Company Secretary (CS) 

17. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

 The remuneration policy of the Company and the procedure and policy for appointment of Senior Management are reviewed 

 and recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee before its approval by the Board of Directors.

 During the FY 2024-25, consequent upon end of tenure, Shri Anurag Shukla (nominated by NTPC) ceased to be CFO & KMP of 

 the company w.e.f. 07.06.2024; and Ms. Poonam Jeswani (nominated by IOCL) was appointed as CFO & KMP and joined the 

 Company w.e.f. 19.07.2024. 

 In terms provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the aforesaid Rules, the details of the top ten 

 employees in terms of remuneration drawn are placed as Appendix-C to this report. 

 During the year under review, none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits stipulated in the 

 Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 Apart from the Managing Director, all the Directors of your Company are nominated by Promoter Companies (which are PSUs) 

 who are Non-Executive Directors. The directors nominated by Promoters on the Board of HURL are being evaluated under well 

 laid down procedure in their respective Companies. Therefore, no performance evaluation of the Non-executive and 

 Board/Committees was carried out. The remuneration of Managing Director is fixed on the recommendation of Nomination & 

 Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, with the approval of the General Meeting and the Board of Directors 

 continuously evaluates his performance.

 HURL is an unlisted public company and a joint venture company three Maharatna company promoters viz. Coal India Limited 

 (CIL), NTPC Limited (NTPC), Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) and the other two promoters are Fertilizer Corporation of 

 India Limited (FCIL) and Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited (HFCL), therefore, in terms of provisions of section 149(4) of 

 the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, HURL is 

 not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board. Therefore, declaration of independence by the Independent 

 Directors in terms of section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 is also not applicable. 

16. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY FOR BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

 In terms of JV Agreement and Supplementary JV Agreement dated May 16, 2016, and October 31, 2016, respectively, and 

 Articles of Association of the Company, the Directors of the Company that are nominated by Promoters are non-executive 

 Directors. During FY 2024-25, no remuneration was paid to the non-Executive Directors. Apart from the nominated Directors 

 the Company has one whole-time Director viz. Managing Director and the remuneration of the Managing Director have been 

 approved by the General Meeting. 

 As required in terms of section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the salient features of the policy relating to the 

 remuneration for the Directors, KMP and other employees is placed on the website of the Company at the web link 

 https://hurl.net.in/overview. The remuneration paid to Directors and KMPs during the FY 2024-25 is detailed in the Financial 

 Statements at Note No. 34.2.
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 During the FY 2024-25, thirteen (13) Board Meetings were held as detailed below with three (3) meetings in quarter ended on 

 June 2025, four (4) meetings in September 2025, two (2) meetings in December, 2025 and four (4) meetings on March, 2025. 

 The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days between two consecutive 

 Meetings.

18. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AGM AND ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS: 

 During the FY 2024-25, the meetings of the Board were held virtually as well as physically. The attendance details at the Board 

 Meetings held during the FY 2024-25 are as follows:

S. N. Date of the Meeting Board Strength

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.  

10.

11.

12.

13.

23.04.2024

17.05.2024

25.06.2024

16.08.2024

23.08.2024

12.09.2024

20.09.2024

01.11.2024

14.11.2024

08.01.2025

20.02.2025 & 21.02.2025 

26.02.2025

29.03.2025

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

No. of Directors Present

7

8

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

8

8

7

8

 The details Director’s attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held during FY 2024-25 are tabled below:

Name of 

Director

Shri Debasish Nanda 

Shri K.S. Sundaram 
(upto 04.09.2024)

Shri D.S. Sehgal 
(upto 30.04.2024)

Smt. Padma 
Dhulipala (w.e.f. 
10.05.2024) 

Shri R Sarangapani 
(w.e.f. 04.09.2024 
and upto 19.03.2025

Meeting Date
Whether 

attended 

last AGM 

held on 

20.09.2024

Total 

Meetings 

held 

during the 

tenure

No. of 

Meetings 

attended

% of 

Atte

ndan

ce

23
.0

4
.2

0
24

17
.0

5
.2

0
24

25
.0

6
.2

0
24

16
.0

8
.2

0
24

23
.0

8
.2

0
24

12
.0

9
.2

0
24

20
.0

9
.2

0
24

0
1.1

1.2
0

24

14
.11

.2
0

24

0
8

.0
1.2

0
25

20
 &

 2
1.0

2.
20

25

26
.0

2.
20

25

29
.0

3.
20

25

Shri Animesh Jain
(w.e.f. 19.03.2025)

Shri S.P. Mohanty

P

P

P

NA

NA

NA

P

  P

P 

NA

P

NA

NA

  P

 P

P

NA

P

NA

NA

P

 P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P

LA

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

P P

 P NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

LA LA P P P P P P

NA NA NA P  P  P  P  P  P  P

PNA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

 P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P  P

Yes

NA

NA

Yes

Yes

NA

Yes

13

5

1

12

7

   1

13

13

4

1

10

7

   1

13

100

80

100

83.3

100

   100

100

Dr. A.K. Samantaray 
(upto 30.06.2024)

Ms. Renu Narang 
(upto 06.05.2024)

Shri Subhajit Sarkar 
(upto 10.05.2024)

P

P 

LA

P

NA

NA

P

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

3

1

1

3

1

0

100

100

0

NA

NA

NA

Shri Padamsing P. 
Patil (upto 
19.04.2024)

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NANA
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Shri Anurag Rohatgi 
(w.e.f. 19.04.2024 & 
upto 14.05.2024)

Shri Masood Akhtar 
Ansari (w.e.f. 
06.05.2024)

Shri AV
Raghunadhan (w.e.f. 
10.05.2024)

P

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

P

P

P

NA

NA

NA

P

LA

P

NA

NA

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

NA

P

P

LA

P

NA

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

NA

P

P

LA

P

NA

NA

P

LA

P

P

NA

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

NA

P

P

LA

P

NA

NA

P

P

P

NA

P

NA

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

NA

1

12

12

12

9

    1

1

12

10

9

9

   1

100

100

83.3

75.0

100

   100

Shri Naresh Arya 
(w.e.f. 14.05.2024)

Shri Sagar Sen (w.e.f. 
18.07.2024 and upto 
04.03.2025)

Shri Chiranjib Patra 
(w.e.f. 04.03.2025)

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

Name of 

Director

Meeting Date
Whether 

attended 

last AGM 

held on 

20.09.2024

Total 

Meetings 

held 

during the 

tenure

No. of 

Meetings 

attended

% of 

Atte

ndan

ce
23

.0
4

.2
0

24

17
.0

5
.2

0
24

25
.0

6
.2

0
24

16
.0

8
.2

0
24

23
.0

8
.2

0
24

12
.0

9
.2

0
24

20
.0

9
.2

0
24

0
1.1

1.2
0

24

14
.11

.2
0

24

0
8

.0
1.2

0
25

20
 &

 2
1.0

2.
20

25

26
.0

2.
20

25

29
.0

3.
20

25
 # NA – Not Applicable, P – Present, LA – Leave of absence

 (i)  Audit Committee – Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, Audit Committee has been 

   originally constituted by the Board of Directors on May 03, 2017. The Committee has been reconstituted as and when

   there has been change in directors. The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025 as well as on the date of 

   this report is as under:

   

 The Board has constituted various Board Committees from time to time, for specific purposes. All the Statutory Committees of 

 the Board have been formed complying to the requirements under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

 Supplementary JV agreement with membership of at least one Director nominated by each of CIL, NTPC and IOCL. The details 

 of such committees constituted by the Board as on March 31, .2025 are as under:

19. BOARD COMMITTEES: 

   During the FY 2024-25, seven (7) meetings of the Audit Committee were held and the details including attendance of 

   members of Audit Committee are as follows:

   The members of the Committee are financially literate. Managing Director and Chief Financial O�cer are permanent 

   invitees, and Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. 

S. N.

1.

2.

3.

4.

Name of the Member

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari

Shri AV Raghunadhan

Shri Naresh Arya

Shri Chiranjib Patra

Designation

Chairman of the Committee 

Member 

Member

Member

Name of 
Director

Ms. Renu Narang (upto 06.05.2024)

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari, (w.e.f. 06.05.2024)

Shri D.S. Sehgal (upto 30.04.2024)

Dr.  A.K. Samantaray (upto 30.06.2024)

Shri AV Raghunadhan (w.e.f. 10.05.2024)

Meeting Date Total 
Meetings 

held 
during the 

tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attend

ance

23
.0

4
.2

0
24

17
.0

5
.2

0
24

20
.0

8
.2

0
24

 1
8

.0
9

.2
0

24

21
.10

.2
0

24

0
8

.0
1.2

0
25

21
.0

2.
20

25

Shri Naresh Arya (w.e.f. 14.05.2024)

P

NA

P

P

NA

NA

NA

P

NA

P

P

NA

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

P

NA

NA

P

LA

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

1

6

1

2

6

5

1

6

1

2

6

4

100

100

100

100

100

80
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   Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the AGM held on September 20, 2024 to 

   answer the queries of the shareholders.

   During the FY 2024-25, Four (4) meetings of the NRC were held and the details including attendance of members of NRC 

   are as follows:

 (ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) – Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

   the NRC has been originally constituted by the Board of Directors on May 03, 2017. The Committee has been reconstituted 

   as and when there has been change in directors. The composition of the NRC as on March 31, 2025 as well as on the date of 

   this report is as under:

   The recommendations of the Audit Committee have been generally accepted by the Board of Directors during the FY 

   2024-25.

   Managing Director is permanent invitee to the Committee, and Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

Name of 
Director

Meeting Date Total 
Meetings 

held 
during the 

tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attend

ance

23
.0

4
.2

0
24

17
.0

5
.2

0
24

20
.0

8
.2

0
24

 1
8

.0
9

.2
0

24

21
.10

.2
0

24

0
8

.0
1.2

0
25

21
.0

2.
20

25

Shri Sagar Sen (w.e.f. 18.07.2024 & upto 04.03.2025) NA

NA

NA

NA

P

NA

P

NA

P

NA

P

NA

P

NA

5

NA

5

NA

100

NAShri Chiranjib Patra (w.e.f. 04.03.2025)

S. N. Name of the Member Designation

1.

2.

3.

Shri Animesh Jain

Smt. Padma Dhulipala

Shri Chiranjib Patra

Chairman of the Committee 

Member 

Member

Name of Director

Shri K.S. Sundaram (upto 04.09.2024)

Shri R. Sarangapani (w.e.f. 04.09.2024 & upto 19.03.2025)

Shri Animesh Jain (w.e.f.19.03.2025)

Dr. A.K. Samantaray (upto 30.06.2024)

Smt. Padma Dhulipala (w.e.f. 10.05.2024)

Meeting Date
Total 

Meetings 
held during 
the tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attend

ance

0
4

.0
6

.2
0

24

25
.0

6
.2

0
24

20
.0

8
.2

0
24

18
.0

9
.2

0
24

Shri Sagar Sen (w.e.f. 18.07.2024 upto 04.03.2025)

Shri Chiranjib Patra (w.e.f. 04.03.2025)

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

NA

P

NA

NA

NA

P

P

NA

NA

P

NA

NA

P

P

NA

3

1

NA

2

4

2

NA

3

1

NA

2

4

2

NA

100

100

NA

100

100

100

NA

   Shri R. Sarangapani, the then Chairman of the NRC was present at the Annual General Meeting held on September 20, 

   2024 to answer the queries of the shareholders.

 (iii) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee - Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

   2013, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board has been originally constituted by the Board of 

   Directors on June 28, 2019 to formulate policy for Enterprise Social Commitment (ESC) and oversee implementation of

    requirements prescribed by Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change on ESC in addition of CSR policy. The 

   composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2025 as well as on the date of this report is as under:

S. No. Name of the Member Designation

1.

2.

3.

4.

Shri AV Raghunadhan 

Shri S.P. Mohanty

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari

Shri Chiranjib Patra

Chairman of the Committee 

Member

Member

Member
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   During the FY 2024-25, four (4) meetings of the CSR Committee were held and the details including attendance of 

   members of CSR Committee are as follows:

 (iv) Other Board level Committee – Some of the other major sub-committees of the Board of Directors including their 

   constitution is as under:

Name of the 

Committee
Roles & Responsibility

Composition as on March 31, 2025 as well as 

on the date of this report is as under

Project 

Management 

Committee

Right Issue 

Committee

To monitor and supervise the Project progress 

and exercise Powers of Board for Project 

M a n a g e m e n t ,  i n c l u d i n g  C o n t r a c t s 

Management, in respect of Powers beyond 

delegation to Managing Director of HURL.

1. Smt. Padma Dhulipala - Chairperson

2. Shri S.P. Mohanty - Member 

3. Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari - Member

4. Shri Chiranjib Patra - Member 

Permanent Invitee:

1. Concerned Head of Project

2. CFO

1. To exercise the powers of the 

 Board for right issue.

2. To carry out all activities related

 to issue and allotment of shares 

 to FClL & HFCL from time to time.

1. Shri Animesh Jain - Chairman

2. Shri AV Raghunadhan - Member

3. Shri Naresh Arya - Member

4. Shri Chiranjib Patra - Member

Permanent Invitee:

1. CFO

Name of Director

Shri AV Raghunadhan (w.e.f. 10.05.2024)

Shri S.P. Mohanty

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari (w.e.f. 06.05.2024)

Shri Sagar Sen (w.e.f. 18.07.2024 and upto 04.03.2025)

Shri Chiranjib Patra (w.e.f. 04.03.2025)

Meeting Date

0
4

.0
6

.2
0

24

25
.0

6
.2

0
24

20
.0

8
.2

0
24

18
.0

9
.2

0
24

P

P

P

P

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

P

P

P

P

NA

P

P

P

NA

P

4

4

4

3

1

4

4

4

3

1

100

100

100

100

100

Total 
Meetings 

held during 
the tenure

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attend

ance

 In its consistent strive and commitment to work for the economic and social development of the communities nearby the 

 upcoming Urea plants, your Company has been consistently working on undertaking various projects as a part of fulfilment of   

 its’ Corporate Environment Responsibility (CER) obligations as required under one of the specific conditions of the 

 Environmental Clearances granted for its projects. 

 During the FY 2024-25, as against the CSR budget of Rs.1124 

 Lakh, administrative overhead expenditure amounted to Rs.56 

 Lakh. Therefore, the Board of Directors decided to contribute 

 the remaining unspent amount of Rs.1068 Lakh towards Prime 

 Minister's National Relief Fund (PMNRF) or any other funds 

 specified in schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Annual Report on CSR activities as required under the 

 Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 

 is annexed and forms an integral part of this report.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

 The Company has Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 

 approved by the Board, which can be accessed on the 

 Company’s website at https://hurl.net.in/policy. HURL has a 

 Board-level CSR Committee in terms of the applicable 

 provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as detailed in para 19 (iii) 

 above.

21. INITIATIVES FOR CORPORATE ENVIRONMENT RESPONSIBILITY (CER) & ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY: 

 Corporate Environment Responsibility (CER)

Hon'ble Chief Minister of Uttar Pradesh during 

plantation drive as part of the 'Ek Ped Maa ke Naam' 

Campaign in Gorakhpur, Uttar Pradesh
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Revamping of Village Sonbarsa as a Model Village

Panchayat Bhawan School Building Class Rooms

Established 16 Pediatric Intensive Care Units(PICUs) at Gorakhpur

Inauguration of PICU units
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Inauguration of PICU units

Supporting 100 Anganwadi Kendras including construction/ renovation of 

buildings/ electrical connections/ toilets in Baliapur block of Dhanbad district

Project SAKSHAM under Skill development training program by CIPET
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 C.  At Sindri, as a part of fulfilment of the Company’s commitment towards the surrounding communities, your Company is 

   regularly supplying drinking water for the benefit of over 1 Lakh population. Another project on 

   Improvement/Augmentation of Education infrastructure/ associated infrastructure in 10 schools surrounding the plant/ 

   township, Supply, supplying and installation and Commissioning of LED and high mast lights is being undertaking on 

   deposit work basis and Installation of Essentials Basic Facilities at Sabalpur Old Age Home Dhanbad, which is being 

   directly executed by Sindri Plant.  

 D.  In addition to the above, the Company is undertaking Skill Development of unemployed youth from all three plant 

   locations (Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni) as a part of commitment during the public hearing and CER policy.  This initiative 

   has been executed by Company under flagship project “SAKSHAM” in collaboration with Central Institute of Plastics 

   Engineering & Technology (CIPET). Another project under the flagship project “SAKSHAM” is being undertaken in 

   collaboration with National Skill Development Corporation (NSDC), for the impactful development of unemployed youth 

   at the three plant locations, by imparting training in di�erent trades. 

 The brief of CER projects at the three Plants of the Company is as under:

 A.  At Gorakhpur, a numbers of CER projects namely “Creation of the Model Village Sonbarsa”, “Creation of Health 

   Infrastructure by establishing 3-bedded Paediatric Intensive Care Units (PICUs) in the 16 Community Health Centres” in 

   Gorakhpur District, “Improvement/ augmentation of education related infrastructure in 26 schools including a 

   Government library”, and “Ramgarh Taal Facelifting & Placemaking” undertaken on Deposit Work Basis in the previous 

   year have been taken forward at an accelerated pace.  Another CER initiative has been undertaken for the “Supply and 

   Installation of 1427 numbers of integrated Solar Street Lights” on 27 routes in the Gorakhpur city.  

 B.  At Baruani, the implementation of the project on Community Plantation is progressing as per the schedule under the 

   flagship scheme of the Government of Bihar namely “Jal Jeevan Hariyali Mission 5.0”, being implemented through the 

   Forest Department, Government of Bihar. The persuasive e�orts of your Company with the district administration have 

   yielded results, whereby the district administration has given its consent for undertaking the CER projects through 

   “Nominated Implementation Partner Route”, duly nominated by the district administration, as may be required from time 

   to time, on a case-to-case basis. Accordingly, a project on creation of education related infrastructure in selected 

   Government schools surrounding the plant/ township is under active consideration of the Company. 

 Your Company has initially committed a corpus of Rs.15,000 Lakh towards this head in the revised project 

 cost approved by the Board of Directors of HURL in April 2023, and as such, the respective teams of three 

 Plants of the Company are focussing on developing suitable CER projects for fulfilling the commitments 

 made during the public consultations including other projects in line with the Company’s CER Policy. 

   The e�orts of your Company for various CER initiatives at Gorakhpur and especially the PICUs have been well applauded 

   by the Gorakhpur District Administration / UP State Government. 

   The Company is undertaking its flagship project in healthcare infrastructure on establishment of Paediatric Intensive Care 

   Units (PICUs) in the Community Health Centres of the Gorakhpur district.  Out of the total 16 PICUs under implementation, 

   7 units have already been dedicated to the people of Gorakhpur by the Hon’ble Chief Minister, Uttar Pradesh and balance 

   9 units will be dedicated to the people of Gorakhpur in the next financial year.

   In addition to the above, two proposals on skill development of the local youths as a part of commitment during the 

   public hearing are under active consideration which are aimed at imparting training to the local youth (male & female) on 

   di�erent trades for creating job opportunities. This has been targeted to be achieved by associating with “National Skill 

   Development Corporation (NSDC)” and “Central Institute of Plastics Engineering & Technology (CIPET)”.  

 Environment & Sustainability

 The Company has proactively aligned with all environmental norms, working closely with the State Pollution Control Boards 

 (SPCBs). All three units have successfully obtained the requisite Consent to Operate (CTO) and other clearances well ahead of 

 stipulated timelines. This proactive compliance has facilitated uninterrupted plant operations while maintaining rigorous 

 environmental standards.

 A notable initiative is the extensive green belt development across all plant sites. As part of the Company’s ecological vision, 

 HURL continues to demonstrate its unwavering commitment to environmental sustainability, regulatory compliance, and 

 ecological stewardship. Through integrated e�orts across its three urea manufacturing units (Gorakhpur, Sindri, and Barauni), 

 the Company has embedded sustainability as a core value in its operations. 
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 By integrating sustainability into operational and strategic planning, HURL is not only complying with legal frameworks but 

 also striving to exceed them. The aim is to create a culture of sustainability that empowers employees, engages communities, 

 and enhances stakeholder value. Moving forward, the Company plans to set more ambitious tree plantation targets, explore 

 renewable energy integration, strengthen wastewater and emission management systems, and collaborate with local 

 authorities and NGOs for community-based environmental projects.

22. SAFETY: 

 The safety and well-being of our employees, customers, and stakeholders have always remained a top priority for the 

 Company. We are pleased to report that significant steps have been made during the year in strengthening our safety 

 practices and embedding a culture of safety throughout the organization.

 HURL has developed and implemented comprehensive safety policies and procedures in alignment with industry best 

 practices and prevailing regulatory standards. These policies are periodically reviewed and updated to ensure continued 

 relevance and e�ectiveness. They are communicated proactively and made readily accessible to all employees via internal 

 communication platforms.

23. IMPLEMENTATION OF IMS:

24. RISK MANAGEMENT:

 These plantations are progressing in phases and will serve as vital green lungs, improving microclimates and promoting 

 sustainable industrial ecology.

 Risk Management is a key aspect of Corporate Governance and aims to improvise the governance practices across the 

 business activities of any organization.

 During the FY 2024-25, a revised Risk Management policy has been put in place, with the approval of the Board of Directors. It 

 ensures that all the current and future material risk exposures of the Company are identified, assessed, quantified, 

 more than 33% of the total plant area at each location is being converted into green belts. The scale of plantation reflects the 

 Company's strategic commitment to enhancing biodiversity and carbon sequestration i.e. 130 acres at Gorakhpur unit, 132 

 acres at Sindri unit and 116 acres at Barauni unit.

 The Company actively fosters environmental consciousness among employees and local communities. The environment-

 related observances that are celebrated annually at all three units are World Forest Day (21st March), World Water Day (22nd 

 March), World Earth Day (22nd April), and World Environment Day (5th June). These events feature awareness campaigns, tree 

 plantation drives, workshops, and stakeholder  engagement activities aimed at cultivating an environmental ethic among 

 employees and the surrounding communities.

 A robust safety reporting system has been established to empower employees to promptly report any safety-related 

 concerns or incidents. This initiative has helped to foster a proactive safety culture where transparency and accountability are 

 encouraged.

 Looking ahead, the Company remains committed to safety excellence. Our safety initiatives will continue to be a core part of 

 our operations, aimed at providing a safe and healthy work environment for all stakeholders.

 HURL's Safety KPIs focus on proactive safety culture and zero-incident goals. Key targets include Safety walks by leaders, 

 monthly audits of high-risk jobs, regular equipment inspections, near-miss reporting, annual HSE training, and best practice 

 sharing. The Company aims for 100% regulatory compliance, zero fatalities, zero LTIFR, complete incident investigations, and 

 dissemination of lessons learned from high-potential incidents.

 During FY 2024-25, as a part of the commitment of HURL towards continuous improvement, the Company have initiated the 

 implementation of Integrated Management System (IMS) certified for Quality, Safety and Environment. The Company has put 

 in place an Integrated Management System (IMS) policy. The Company aims to achieve certifications for its all three units and 

 HQ, which reflect the commitment to sustainable growth and dedication in delivering superior value to the customers and 

 stakeholders.

 Regular safety audits and inspections have been conducted across all company facilities to identify potential hazards, ensure 

 adherence to safety protocols, and initiate corrective measures wherever required. These assessments have been crucial in 

 minimizing risk, enhancing operational safety, and promoting continuous improvement.

 In addition, the Company plans to undertake a�orestation using the Miyawaki Method - a technique that enables rapid and 

 dense forest growth using native species. This approach is expected to significantly improve biodiversity and environmental 

 quality at a faster pace, contributing to long-term ecosystem resilience.
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 appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed and to enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever 

 applicable, through adoption of the best practices. 

 The Company also has exposure in terms of payment in foreign currency to the Contractors and for this Forex Risk 

 Management Policy is in place. An assessment is being made to identify the key risks and mitigation process in respect of other 

 key risks associated.

25. ANNUAL RETURN:

 Pursuant section 92(3) and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company for year ending March 31, 

 2025 is placed at the website of the Company at weblink https://hurl.net.in/return.

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

 The Company has put in place adequate Internal Controls for ensuring e�cient conduct of its business in adherence with laid 

 down policy and applicable standards and industry practice. The internal financial controls are adequate with reference to the 

 Financial Statements.

 The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and 

 reporting in the financial statements.

   Regular meetings, interactions with top management, feedback surveys etc. are conducted to ensure open 

   communication between management and employees.

 c.  Performance based culture: At HURL, performance is at the core of our work culture. The Company continues to refine 

   and implement its Performance-Related Pay (PRP) system, which rewards outcomes across organizational, unit, and 

   individual dimensions. The performance framework includes, Transparent pay revision structures aligned with market 

   benchmarks, Clear and structured career progression policies, and Formal mechanisms to recognize high-performing 

   teams and individuals. This focus on performance has helped foster an accountable work environment where employees 

   understand the link between e�ort, contribution, and reward.

   Your Company is also a member of reputed associations such as Standing Conference of PublicEnterprises (SCOPE), 

   Fertilizer Association of India (FAI), International Fertilizer Association (IFA) and Institute of Directors (IOD). The 

   employees are provided opportunities to participate in industry events / seminars and leadership programs and sessions 

27. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

 The Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors to ensure that the Company’s 

 systems and practices are designed with adequate internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the 

 Company. The Internal Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The Reports of the 

 Auditors along with the management’s responses are placed before the Audit Committee for discussion and necessary action. 

 Your company is dedicated to create a supportive, inclusive and high performing workplace where employees are valued, 

 empowered and given opportunities to learn and grow. Your Company continues to be committed to fostering a workplace 

 culture rooted in inclusivity, performance excellence, and continuous personal and professional development. 

 b.  Employee Welfare: Your company values it human capital and continues to strive for work environment that promotes 

   wellbeing of its employees. Your Company HURL has adopted a holistic approach to welfare. Comprehensive benefit 

   programs were implemented to ensure the physical, mental, and emotional health of employees and their families. Key 

   welfare initiatives included, Group Mediclaim and Personal Accident Insurance coverage, Provision of well-maintained 

   canteens at all locations, Recreational and sports infrastructure, Participation in national cleanliness campaigns such as 

   “Swachhta Pakhwada” etc., Celebration of national and cultural festivals to promote inclusivity etc.

 a.  Employee Strength: During the FY 2024-25, 94 new employees were added to the strength of the family of the company. 

   As on March 31, 2025, there were 862 employees in HURL, out of which, 40 were women employees. Apart from this, as on 

   March 31, 2025, there was 1 employee on deputation from the Promoter Company, IOCL, in terms of the Articles of 

   Association.  

 d.  Employee Engagement: To create a sense of belongingness among employees, your Company regularly organizes 

   engaging events, indoor and outdoor activities and celebrates various festivals/occasions such as ‘Holi Milan’ program, 

   Women’s Day, Annual picnics, Sports meet, Inter-departmental competitions and New year celebrations etc., both at 

   Corporate O�ce and sites. Employees are also encouraged to participate in various sport events, quiz competitions etc., 

   both within and outside organization. 
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   Core training programs included, Functional training tailored to departmental needs, Behavioral and leadership 

   workshops, Mandatory safety and compliance modules, and exposure to international seminars and participation in 

   forums by FAI, IFA, and IOD.

 e.  Training & Development: Our commitment to continual learning is pivotal to staying competitive in today’s rapidly 

   evolving industrial landscape. Further, the Company invested significantly in employee upskilling and capacity building. 

   During the FY 2024-25, more than 700 employees underwent formal training through a combination of internal and 

   external programs and more than 3000 training days have been achieved. 

   Further, new joiners are taken onboard through a well-structured and enriching induction program at the time of joining.

 f.  Grievance Redressal: Your Company promotes a transparent and inclusive work culture where employee feedback is 

   encouraged and respected. The grievance redressal mechanism is well-established and operates on principles of 

   confidentiality, impartiality, and promptness. 

   organized by these associations, which help in staying abreast with the latest industry updates. 

 During FY 2024-25, there were no complaints of sexual harassment. The details are as under:

   Key developments during the year include resolving all grievances raised through CPGRAMS within stipulated timelines, 

   and visits by the top management to various project sites enabled direct engagement with employees, helping gather 

   actionable insights for improving workplace policies and culture.

28. PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

   This open-door approach has significantly contributed to trust-building and strengthened the overall work environment.

 g.  Maternity Benefit: Your company has complied with the provisions relating to Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

 Additionally, e-mail services have been migrated to Microsoft 365, o�ering our employees a more secure, user-friendly, and 

 e�cient communication platform and IP phones have been installed at all locations (HO, Gorakhpur, Barauni and Sindri) 

 enabling seamless interconnectivity between sites and reducing reliance on mobile networks for internal communication.

 The Company has an elaborate mechanism to deal with matters related to Right to Information Act, 2005. As per the 

 requirements of the RTI Act, necessary, updated information including the names of Appellate Authority, Central Public 

 Information O�cer, Assistant Public Information O�cers are posted on the website of the Company. Queries received have 

 been replied within the stipulated time. During the FY 2024-25, 86 RTI applications and 10 appeals were received and disposed 

 o�.

 Your Company has implemented/enhanced various modules of SAP S4 HANA for FICO (Finance and Accounting), MM 

 (Material Management) and SD (Sales & Distribution) modules and integrating GST reporting capabilities into SAP which is not 

 limited to RICEF (Reports, Interfaces, conversions, enhancements & Forms) which includes the customize reports, custom 

 development/enhancement and smart forms etc., for better accounting, review and monitoring.

 Your Company also implemented a secure network infrastructure with Layer 3 (L3) configurations at the switch level and Layer 

 7 (L7) security at the firewall implemented a secure network infrastructure with Layer 3 (L3) configurations at the switch level 

 and Layer 7 (L7) security at the firewall, ensuring enhanced protection and control. A unified SSID (Service Set Identifier) has 

 been deployed across the entire o�ce to streamline wireless connectivity.

 Your Company places a high priority on creating a secure and equitable environment for its female employees. The Company 

 continues to operate in full compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

 Redressal) Act, 2013.

 Actions undertaken during the year include conducting periodic IC meetings for review and compliance, holding sensitization 

 workshops for all employees and IC members and awareness drives to educate sta� on their rights and responsibilities.

 An Internal Committee (IC) has been established at the Corporate O�ce and at all three project locations to monitor and 

 enforce the provisions of the said Act.

30. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT:

29. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) INITIATIVES:

S. No.

1.

2.

3.

Particulars

Complaints received in the year

Complaints disposed o� during the year

Cases pending for more than ninety days

Number

NIL

NA

NA
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 In exercise of powers conferred by the provisions of section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 

 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a 

 turnover of more than Rs.250 Crore and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables 

 Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. In compliance with the above 

 instruction, HURL has boarded on the TReDS platform during the year, to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs 

 by discounting of their receivables and realization of their payment before the due date.

31. VIGIL MECHANISM AND VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

 Vigilance Department of the Company is headed by Chief Vigilance O�cer (CVO) appointed by Department of Fertilizer, 

 Ministry of Chemical & Fertilizers. During the FY 2024-25, a total of 19 complaints were received in the Vigilance Department, 

 all of which were examined and necessary action taken thereon. As a preventive vigilance measure, the Department has 

 carried out 2 surprise inspection and 5 Intensive Examination during the year. In addition to it, many advisories were issued for 

 systemic improvement. During Vigilance Awareness Week, di�erent activities were performed in all the units and HQ, 

 ensuring active participation of employees/their wards, to increase the general awareness about the perils of corruption. 

 During Vigilance awareness week presentation were given on Preventive Vigilance and case studies in which a large number 

 of employees participated.

 In FY 2024-25, the Vigilance Department streamlined the Annual Property Returns (APR) submission process, leading to 

 improved compliance and a significant increase in timely submissions. 

 HURL developed online Vigilance complaint portal w.e.f. 01.11.2023. It is a valuable tool for fostering accountability, reducing 

 corruption, and ensuring ethical conduct within the organisation. 

 The Whistle Blower policy is available at the website of the Company at weblink https://hurl.net.in/vigilancemanuals. 

32. ON-BOARDING ON TREDS PLATFORM:

 (a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

   explanation relating to material departures;

 (e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

   such systems were adequate and operating e�ectively.

 In accordance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms: -

34. GENERAL MEETINGS

 The 8th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company for the year 2024 was held on September 20, 2024 at 1230 Hrs. through 

 Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OVAM) at the Registered O�ce, Core-4, 9th floor, SCOPE Minar, Laxmi 

 Nagar, New Delhi – 110092.

35. AUDITOR:

 STATUTORY AUDITOR:

 HURL is registered with Receivable Exchange of India Limited (RXIL), which is providing RBI licensed TReDS platform.

 No Extra -Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held during FY 2024-25.

 The C&AG have appointed M/s Surendra Subhash & Co. (Firm Registration No. 0001150N), Chartered Accountants, New Delhi 

 as the Statutory Auditors of your Company for the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

33. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

 (c) that the directors had taken proper and su�cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

   accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 

   fraud and other irregularities;

 (b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

   estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of a�airs of the company at the 

   end of the financial year and profit of the company for that period;

 (d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

 The Auditors' Report (Revised) on the Financial Statement of the Company for the period from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 

 is enclosed under 'Auditors Report and Financial Statements for FY 2024-25’ section of the Annual Report. There are no 

 [Pursuant to section 134(3)( c) of Companies Act, 2013]
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 Your Company had appointed M/s AMAA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as the Internal Auditors of the 

 Company for FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 INTERNAL AUDITOR:

 COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITOR:

 SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

 Your Company has appointed M/s Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates, Company Secretaries, NOIDA (CP No. 14984), as the 

 Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 

 2024-25 is placed as Appendix-D to this report. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the 

 Secretarial Audit Report.

36. C&AG REVIEW: 

 The comments of Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India on the Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 

 2025, shall be enclosed under “Auditors Report and Financial Statements for FY 2024-25” section of the Annual Report. 

 qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in their report.

 The Company is required to maintain cost records as prescribed under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

 Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, such accounts and records are made and maintained.

 Your Company had appointed M/s R K Patel & Co., as the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25, in terms of the 

 Companies Act, 2013. 

37. ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT:

38. OTHER DISCLOSURES: The other disclosures for FY 2024-25 are as follows:

 (vi) There were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report for the FY.

 (iv) There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

 (iii) Your Company does not have Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture Company.

 The following reports are annexed and forms an integral part of this report:

 B.  PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: The particulars of contract/ 

   arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in Section 188 (1) of the Companies 

   Act, 2013 are disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 enclosed to this report as Appendix-B. The details of related party transactions 

   have also been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required in terms of the applicable accounting 

   standards. 

 (I)  Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

   India (ICSI) relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’.

 C.  PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: The Information in terms of provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

   with the Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of 

   the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the FY 2024-25 is enclosed to this report as Appendix-C.

 D.  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: The Secretarial Audit Report by M/s Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates, Company 

   Secretaries, NOIDA is enclosed to this report as Appendix-D.

 (v) There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern status 

   of the Company and its future operations.

 (vii) There was one proceeding initiated by the Company i.e. M/s. NICE Projects Limited – NCLT, Delhi under the Insolvency and 

   Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there was one proceeding initiated against the  Company i.e. M/s. DTH Infra Engineers 

   Private Limited – NCLT, Delhi under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

 (ii) Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the financial year. 

 A.  ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES: The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the FY  

   2024-25 is enclosed to this report as Appendix-A. 
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The Board of Directors of your Company acknowledge with deep sense of appreciation, the co-operation received from the 

Government of India, particularly the Prime Minister’s O�ce, Niti Aayog, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilisers, Ministry of Power, 

Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, Ministry of Coal, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Environment, Forests & Climate Change, 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India and State Governments of Uttar Pradesh, Jharkhand and Bihar. 
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee met four (4) times during FY 2024-25 i.e. on 20.08.2024, 12.11.2024, 

 20.02.2025 and 29.03.2025. The composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2025 was as under:

 Your Company is committed towards undertaking socially useful programmes for welfare and sustainable development of 

 the communities in and around its area of operations and other parts of the country. The CSR Policy of the Company lays down 

 the guidelines for undertaking programmes geared towards CSR and indicates the focussed areas wherein the CSR projects / 

 activities could be undertaken by the Company, subject to alignment with the activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Act, 

 as amended from time to time.

 b) CSR Policy – https://hurl.net.in/policy

5. (a)   Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 56196 Lakh 

 (c)   Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

 (e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)+(d)]: Rs. 1124 Lakh 

6. (a)    Amount spent on CSR projects (both ongoing and other ongoing projects): Nil

 c) CSR projects – Not applicable (NA)

 (b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1124 Lakh 

 (d) Amount required to be set o� for the financial year, if any: Nil 

 (c)   Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

 (d)   Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+©]: Rs. 56 Lakh

 (e)   CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

4. Executive summary along with the web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

 rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable

3. Web-links where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on 

 the website of the company: The web-links are as follows:

 (b)    Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Rs. 56 Lakh 

 a) Composition of CSR committee – https://hurl.net.in/compositionofcsrcommittee

S. No. Name of Director

Number of meetings of CSR Committee 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Shri AV Raghunadhan 

(w.e.f. 10.05.2024)

Shri S.P. Mohanty

Shri Masood Akhtar Ansari

(w.e.f. 06.05.2024)

Shri Sagar Sen 

(upto 04.03.2025)

Shri Chiranjib Patra 

(w.e.f. 04.03.2025)

4

4

4

3

1

Designation / Nature 

of Directorship

Chairman of the Committee 

Member

Member

Member

Member

Held during 

the year

Attended 

during the year

4

4

4

4

4

Appendix-A 

Total Amount spent for 

the Financial Year 

(in Rs. Lakh)

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakhs)

Rs.56 Lakh

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account as 
per Section 135(6)

Amount 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
section 135(5)

Name of the FundDate of transfer Amount Date of transfer

Not Applicable Not Applicable
Prime Minister 

National Relief 

Fund (PMNRF).
Rs.1068 Lakh Refer Note
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(f) Excess amount for set o�, if any:

Note: The unspent amount of Rs.1068 Lakh would be transferred to PMNRF before September 30, 2025, in accordance with 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder.

Sl. No. Particular
Amount

(In Rs. Lakh)

(I)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) 
of section 135
Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess Amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii) – (i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any

Amount available for set o� in succeeding financial years [(iii) – (iv)]

Rs.1124 Lakh

Rs.56 Lakh 

Nil

Nil

Nil

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):

During the year FY 2024-25, there was no on-going CSR projects and the approval of the Board of Directors, the Company

would be contributing an amount Rs.1068 Lakh to PMNRF after the close of the FY 2024-25 and before September 30, 2025.

After making the said contribution, the CSR spent shall two percent of average net profit, as per section 135(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013.

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the

Financial Year: No

Sd/-

 (Shri S.P. Mohanty)     

Managing Director   

DIN: 05336787

Date: 16-07-2025

Place: New Delhi

Sd/-

(Shri AV Raghunadhan)

Chairman CSR Committee

DIN: 10570608

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sl. No.

Amount transferred to any 

fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 

135 (5), if any

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account 

under Section 

135 (6) (in Rs.)

Preceding 

Financial 

Year(s)

(in Rs.)

Balance 

Amount in 

unspent CSR 

Account under 

Section 135 (6)

Amount 

spent in 

the 

Financial 

Year

(In Rs.)

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 

succeedin 

financial years 

(in Rs.)

Defici-

ency, if 

any

Amount

(in Rs.)

Date of 

transfer

1

2

3

FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2023-24

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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(ii) The details of “Related Party Disclosures” as per accounting standards are being disclosed in Notes to the accounts in the 

 Financial Statements.

3. Details of contracts or arrangements not in the ordinary course of business: NIL

Note: 

(I) Apart from the above transactions, the Promoter companies viz. NTPC, CIL and IOCL have also deputed their employees to 

 HURL on deputation and secondment basis, which is on actual cost (CTC) basis. The salary benefits paid to such deputed 

 employees is as per the policy of respective promoter companies and are being reimbursed by HURL on actual basis. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Shri Mukesh Agrawal)

Chairman

[DIN: 10199741]

Date: 16-07-2025

Place: New Delhi
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QualificationsEmployee 
Name

Sl. 
No.

Designation
Age
(in 

years)

Appendix-C

Information of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during FY 2024-25

[Pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Nature of 
Employment

(Contractual or 
otherwise)

Remuneration
(in Rs.)

Experi-
ence 

(Years)

Last 
Employment

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Shri. Siba 
Prasad 
Mohanty

Managing 
Director 
(MD)

MBA 
(Marketing)

Regular HURL 78,15,028 36 59
Brahmaputra 
Valley Fertilizer 
Corporation Limited

Shri. Dipten 
Roy

Shri. Sanjay 
Chawla (Upto 
31.12.2024)

Shri. Sunil 
Kumar Singh

Shri. 
Akhilendra 
Singh

Shri. Sanjai 
Kumar Gupta

Ms. Poonam 
(Jeswani w.e.f. 
19.07.2024)

Shri Suresh 
Pramanik 
(Upto 
22.03.2025)

Shri Goutam 
Majee

Sr. Vice President 
& Business Unit 
Head (Gorakhpur)

General Manager 
(CSR, Environment 
& Safety)

Vice President 
(PS&CE, Vigilance 
& Safety)

Vice President 
(Maintenance) 

Vice President & 
Business Unit 
Head (Barauni)

Chief Finance 
O�cer (CFO)

Vice President & 
Business Unit 
Head (Sindri)

VicePresident 
(Technical Service)

BE (Chemical 
Engineering)

B. Tech 
(Mining 
Engineering)

B. Tech 
(Electronics)

ME (Production 
& Industrial)

B. Tech 
(Chemical)

B. Com & 
ICWA

B. Tech
(Chemical)

BE 
(Chemical)

Regular HURL

Deputation 
from CIL

Regular HURL

Regular HURL

Regular HURL

Deputation 
from IOCL

Regular HURL

Regular HURL

76,08,425

57,11,183

56,23,138

54,11,710

53,67,686

53,61,816

52,86,434

52,78,977

37

35

37

30

25

30

29

29

59

59

59

56

55

55

54

54

Sriram Fertilizer & 
Chemicals

Coal India 
Limited

Algeria Oman 
Fertiliser Company

Chambal Fertilizers 
and Chemicals Ltd.

Bhawan 
International 
Projects 

Indian Oil 
Corporation Limited

Indo Gulf 
Fertilizers Ltd.

Haldor Topsoe India 
Pvt. Ltd.

10.
Shri. Rama 
Shanker Lal

Associate 
Vice President 
(Operations)

BS (Process 
Engineering)

Regular HURL 44,46,672 37

Date of 
Joining

29.12.2023

20.09.2018

21.09.2016

08.06.2018

21.04.2021

18.01.2019

19.07.2024

15.03.2021

01.12.2021

25.05.2019 56
Indorama Fertilizers 
& Chemicals Ltd.

It is a�rmed that the employees mentioned above are neither relative of any directors of the Company, nor hold 2% or more of 

the paid-up equity share capital of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Shri Mukesh Agrawal)

Chairman

[DIN: 10199741]
Date: 16-07-2025

Place: New Delhi
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Appendix-D
Form No. MR–3

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not Applicable during the period under 

 review)

HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED (HURL),

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good  orporate 

practices by HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED (HURL) [CIN: U24100DL2016PLC358399] (hereinafter called “the 

Company”).

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

STFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2025

Laxmi Nagar District Centre, 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by the Company for the 

financial year ended on 31-03-2025 according to the provisions of:

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

New Delhi-110092

The Members,

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

 (Not Applicable during the period under review)

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

 Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable during the period under 

 review)

To,

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and

Secretarial Audit Report

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Core-4, 9th Floor, Scope Minar, 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

company and also the information provided by the Company, its o�cers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 

of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 

on 31-03-2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not Applicable during the period 

 under review)

 (a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 

   the Companies Act and dealing with client;

 (i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
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 Following laws/regulations/rules are specifically applicable to the company, as identified by the management:

 3.  The Fertilizers (Control) (Organic, Inorganic and Mixed) Order, 1985 

 5.  Manufacture, Storage & Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India;

(vi) Other applicable laws, if any, which are specifically applicable to the Company based on its sector/industry.

(vii) Compliances/ processes/ systems under other applicable Laws to the Company are being relied on the basis of compliance 

 certificate submitted to the Board.

 1.  The Fertilizers (Control) Order, 1985 

 2.  The Fertilizers (Movement Control) Order, 1973 

 4.  Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling & Trans-boundary Movement) Rules, 2008

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit 

since the same has been subject to review by the statutory auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted (including woman Director) with one Executive (Managing Director) & 

Non-Executive Directors, being nominated by the Promoters. The Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Ministry of Corporate A�airs vide 

Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 5th July, 2017 has exempted a Joint Venture Company from the requirement of having independent 

Directors on the Board of Directors and as such the Company is not required to have Independent Directors on its Board.

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the o�cers and management and subject 

to the clarifications given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 

etc. mentioned above.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, including Committees thereof, along with agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were generally sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the members’ views are captured adequately and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 

the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date: 10-06-2025

We further report that during the audit period Board of Directors of HURL has granted in-principle approval for participation in the 

Ammonia Urea Complex, Namrup IV Fertilizer Plant through formation of Joint Venture Company with the proposed equity 

participation of 13% by HURL.

Place: Noida
For, Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates

Company Secretaries 

        

Sd/-

 Naresh Kumar Sinha

Proprietor

FCS No.: 1807; CP No.: 14984

FRN: S2015UP440500

Peer Review: 6220/2024

UDIN: F001807G000565722

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

The Members,

HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED (HURL),

Core-4, 9th Floor, Scope Minar, Laxmi Nagar District 

Centre, New Delhi-110092

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

 2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

   correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that 

   correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

   reasonable basis for our opinion.

 3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

 4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

   regulations and happening of events etc.

 5.  The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

   of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

 6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the e�cacy or 

   e�ectiveness with which the management has conducted the a�airs of the Company.

 1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

   express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our finding/ audit.

Date: 10-06-2025

Place: Noida

Annexure-A

For, Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates

Company Secretaries 

        

Sd/-

Naresh Kumar Sinha 

Proprietor

FCS No.: 1807; CP No.: 14984

FRN: S2015UP440500

Peer Review: 6220/2024

UDIN: F001807G000565722
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 

in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 

Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind-AS Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is su�cient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

M/s Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan limited

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind-AS financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

a�airs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the 

year ended as on that date.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 

respect to the preparation of these Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

This report supersedes our earlier report dated 23rd April 2025 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.

To

Basis for opinion

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind-AS financial statements of M/s HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to 

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Herein after 

referred to as “Ind-AS financial statement”).

The members of

Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Revised)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 

of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

 Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
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 2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central Government of 

 India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the 

 matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

 financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating e�ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the }

 circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I ) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

 whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating e�ectiveness of such controls.

 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

 regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

 bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

 audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 

audit. We also:

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

 evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

 Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

 attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

 modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

 future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Financial Statements

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

 perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is su�cient and appropriate to provide a 

 basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

 error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

  necessary for the purpose of our audit;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

 disclosures made by management.

1. As required by the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India, in terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of 

 the Act, 2013 we give the compliance in “Annexure -A”
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 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 

  section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued there under.

 b) In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

  examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 

  Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 e) With respect to the Adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

  e�ectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure C”.

  Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating e�ectiveness of the Company’s internal 

  financial controls over financial reporting.

  iii. There were no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

   iv. I) Based on the management representation and to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 

    the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

    share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

    including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

    that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

    any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

    security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

   II) Based on management representation and to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 

    notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 

    foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

    company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

    whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

    the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

  v. Based on such audit procedures which are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

   come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (I ) and (ii) contain any 

   material mis-statement.

5. Based on our examinations which include test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books 

 of account which has a feature of recording the audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all 

 relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of 

 audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements 

 for record retention.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

   foreseeable losses however we have drawn your attention to note no. 34.6 which describes the capital Commitments 

   and contingent liabilities wherein claims against the company not acknowledged as debt.

4. As required by the Section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Company to 

 its Directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess 

 of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate A�airs has not prescribed other details under 

 section 197(16) which are to be commented upon us.

 

  i. The Company has disclosed the details of pending litigations as on 31.03.2025 in the Note 34.6 (c) of the Financial 

   Statements.

 f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 

  and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

  vi. During the year under purview the company has not declared or paid any dividend. Therefore, no case of default could 

   incur in terms of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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 *Para 5 Updated/Amended as per the Instruction/Observation of CAG.

 Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

 For Surendra Subhash & Co.

 FRN: 03173N

 UDIN: 25082170BMOKXK6237

 Sd/-

 CA Surendra Kumar Jain 

 (Partner)

 Chartered Accountants 

 Membership No. 082170

 Date: 24-06-2025 

 Place: New Delhi
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Auditor's RepliesSl. No. Directions/ Sub direction

Whether the company has system in place to process all the 

accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the 

implications of processing of accounting transactions outside 

IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the 

financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes, the company has Su�cient IT system in place to 

process all the accounting transaction. Company is not 

processing any accounting transaction outside the IT 

System. So, there is no financial implication on the integrity 

of the accounts. Currently  Company  is  using  SAP 

Software.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases 

of waiver/ write o� of debts / loans/ interest etc. made by a 

lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay 

the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Presently, there is no case of restructuring, waiver or write 

o� of debt or loan or interest etc. taken by the company.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) Received/receivable for 

specific schemes from central/ state government or its 

agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term 

and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Yes, Company has received Interest Free Loan from 

Ministry of Chemical and Fertilizer, Govt. of India. There is 

no deviation observed in terms and condition for 

utilization of loan granted by central agency.

1.

2.

3.

CA Surendra Kumar Jain 

Membership No. 082170

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24-06-2025

FRN: 03173N

Chartered Accountants 

For Surendra Subhash & Co. 

UDIN: 25082170BMOKXK6237

Sd/-

(Partner)

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

 Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other legal and regulatory 

 requirements” section of our report of even date on the financial statements of Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited for the 
st Year ended 31  March, 2025.
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   (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

    the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property 

    under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

  The procedures of physical verification of the stocks followed by the management are in our opinion, reasonable and 

  adequate in relation with the size of the company and the nature of business.

  (b) Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial 

  institutions which are secured on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns/statement filed by the 

  Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public as per the 

 provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. 

 Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(I) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

   Property, plant and equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025:

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

   a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

    the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification by the Internal Auditors of the 

    Company of its property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased 

    manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipment 

    were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to 

    the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed by the management No material discrepancies 

    were noticed on such verification.

   (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

    the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is 

    the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial 

    statements are held in the name of the Company.

   (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

    the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or 

    Intangible assets or both during the year.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the stocks of inventory have been physically verified by the third party professional firm appointed by 

  the management during the year at reasonable intervals and the discrepancies noticed on such verification between the 

  physical stock and the books records, were properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

  In our opinion, the valuation of the Stock is consistent and proper in accordance with the normally accepted accounting 

  principles.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

 the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 

 loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Hence para 

 (iii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company 

 has not given any loans, investments or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies 

 Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

 2013. Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to 

 loans given and investments made. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.
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 (b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax 

  outstanding on account of any dispute. However, Company has received Enquiry Letter from o�ce of Commissioner, 

  Customs demanding di�erential BCD, SWC, and IGST on import of Mandatory spares of Plant and Machinery for ₹ 75.02 

  crore and Interest thereon out of which ₹ 3.37 Crores deposited on 29.03.2022 and balance of ₹ 71.65 Crores is shown as 

  Contingent Liability.

 (ix) (a) According to the books of accounts and the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company 

  has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or financial institutions.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

  Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 

  government authority.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has obtained term loans 

  during the past years and same has been utilized for the purposes for which the same were obtained.

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 

  Company, Funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 

  Company.

(vii) (a) According to the books of accounts and records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the 

  company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State 

  insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess 

  and other statutory dues where applicable with the appropriate authorities. No amount payable in respect of the 

  undisputed statutory dues as mentioned above were outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months 

  from the date they become payable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central 

 Government for the maintenance of Cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that 

 prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records are being maintained.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 

 the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in 

 the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us no whistle blower complaints have been received by the 

  Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), Accordingly, clause 3(xi)( c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

  Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

  convertible debentures during the year as per requirements of the section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 

  Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

  obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 

  has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 

  2013.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public o�er or further public o�er (including debt instruments) 

  during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given 

  to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company 

  or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the 

  Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

  Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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 (xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section 

 (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx) (a) and 3(xx) (b) of the Order 

 are not applicable.

 (b) The Company has conducted the Internal Audit in two phases, Report of Internal auditor regarding the first half has been 

  provided by the Company and for the second half a draft copy of Internal audit report has been submitted to us and the 

  same has been considered by us;

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year, accordingly, 

 clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system 

  commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(xxi) Consolidated Financial Statements provisions not applicable to this Company. Accordingly, clause3 (xxi) of the Order is not 

 applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are in 

 compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party 

 transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 

 Standards.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not  

 applicable.

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

  Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 

  (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 

 of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 

 our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 

 the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 

 date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 

 when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 

 to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 

 report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

 balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

 (xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of 

 the Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

 transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies 

 Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

For Surendra Subhash & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 03173N

UDIN: 25082170BMOKXK6237

Sd/-

CA Surendra Kumar Jain 

(Partner)

Membership No. 082170

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24-06-2025
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind- AS financial 

 statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 

 are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of 

M/s Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited of even date)

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating e�ectively for ensuring the orderly and e�cient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating e�ectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 

and testing and evaluating the design and operating e�ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind-AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated e�ectively in all material respects.

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of M/s Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited (“the 

Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

procedures that:

1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 

 of the assets of the company;

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

 company’s assets that could have a material e�ect on the Ind-AS financial statements.
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improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating e�ectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India.

For Surendra Subhash & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 03173N

UDIN: 25082170BMOKXK6237

Sd/-

CA Surendra Kumar Jain 

(Partner)

Membership No. 082170

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24-06-2025
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BALANCE SHEET stAS AT 31  MARCH 2025 

Note No. stAs at 31  March 2025 stAs at 31  March 2024

(₹ in Lakh)

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

    (i) Investments

    (ii) Trade Receivables

    (iii) Cash & Cash equivalents

    (iv) Bank Balances (other than (iii) above)

    (v) Other Financial Assets

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other Current Assets

                                               Total Current Assets (B)

                                                        Total Assets (A+B)

9

10

7A

11

12

7

8

13

 41,386.40 

 41,377.95 

 3,44,975.85 

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 2.88 

 514.32 

 21,501.34 

 4,87,893.30 

 28,89,984.72 

 35,476.13  

 

 46,953.43  

 2,97,362.10  

 43,246.87  

 24,270.74  

 33.61  

 400.75  

 23,472.86  

 4,71,216.49  

 

 29,04,053.98 

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

(b) Capital Work in Progress

(c) Intangible Assets

(d) Right of Use Assets 

(e) Financial Assets

(i) Other Financial Assets

(f) Other Non-Current assets

                                      Total Non-Current Assets (A)

21,96,016.50 

 321.76 

 99.79 

 73,699.20 

 24,277.16 

 1,38,423.08 

 24,32,837.49 

21,50,934.55 

 2,895.24 

 224.80 

 71,947.79 

 34,954.42 

 1,41,134.62 

 24,02,091.42 

3

4

5

6

7

8

Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease Liabilities

(iii) Trade payables:

(iii a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities

(c) Provisions

                                                           Total Current Liabilities (C)

                                           Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C)

16

17

18

18

19

23

20

 1,57,114.07 

 492.04 

 

2,308.53 

 95,727.35 

 1,32,357.13 

 4,806.57 

 4,032.09 

 3,96,837.78 

 28,89,984.72 

 1,96,474.34 

 402.86

 

1,619.42 

 91,739.28 

 1,41,025.38 

 4,864.70 

 3,012.99 

 4,39,138.97 

 29,04,053.98 

As per our report annexed
For Surendra Subhash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 03173N

Sd/-
(CA Surendra Kumar Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 082170

Date : 23-04-2025
Place : Delhi

On behalf of the Board

Sd/-
(Debasish Nanda)

Chairman
DIN-09015566

Sd/-
(S.P. Mohanty)

Managing Director
DIN-05336787

Sd/-
(AV Raghunadhan) 

 Director
DIN-10570608

Sd/-
(Iti Matta)

 Company Secretary

Sd/-
(Masood Akhtar Ansari)

Director
DIN-10429528

Sd/-
(Poonam Jeswani)

Chief Financial O�cer

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Equity and Liability

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

Total Equity (A)

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

     (i) Borrowings

     (ii) Lease Liabilities

     (iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions

(c)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities

                                                  Total Non-Current Liabilities (B)

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

7,92,898.00 

 3,10,736.43 

 11,03,634.43 

 11,75,390.15 

 414.33 

 13,244.16 

 63,950.85 

 89,589.97 

 46,923.05 

 13,89,512.51 

7,92,898.00 

 1,73,179.04 

 9,66,077.04 

 13,25,034.23 

 766.46 

 11,661.62 

 64,682.49 

 44,279.12 

 52,414.05 

 14,98,837.97 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS st FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2025

INCOME

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

                                                           Total  Income (A)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Changes in inventories                          

Freight and Handling

Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses

Other Expenses

                                                         Total Expenses (B)

"Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items 

and Tax C=(A-B)"

Exceptional Items (D)

                                Profit/(Loss)  before Tax E=(C-D)

Tax expense (F):

     a) Current Tax

     b) Deferred Tax

                                Profit/(Loss) for the year G=(E-F)

Other Comprehensive Income

A  (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B  (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be

         reclassified to profit or loss

                      Total Other Comprehensive Income (H)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (G+H)

Earnings per equity share (₹)

   (1) Basic

   (2) Diluted

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

 14,89,475.46 

 9,268.09 

 14,98,743.55 

 10,08,596.22 

 17,163.01 

 (23,310.74)

 39,901.59 

 12,054.97 

 1,45,113.34 

 87,713.11 

 31,755.10 

 13,18,986.60 

 1,79,756.95 

 

-   

 1,79,756.95 

 -   

 47,308.37 

 1,32,448.58

 23.03 

 (5.80)

-   

 

-   

 17.23 

 1,32,465.81 

 1.83 

 1.83 

(₹ in Lakh)

15,74,560.35 

 16,410.30 

 15,90,970.65 

 9,65,901.33 

 1,11,634.49 

 634.41 

 44,240.63 

 17,818.46 

 1,31,256.95 

 92,778.86 

 42,968.74 

 14,07,233.87 

 1,83,736.78 

 

-   

 1,83,736.78 

 -   

 45,529.44 

 1,38,207.34

 

(868.55)

 218.60

-   

 

-   

 (649.95)

 1,37,557.39 

 1.73 

 1.73 

For the year ended 

31-Mar-2025

For the year ended 

31-Mar-2024Note No.

As per our report annexed

For Surendra Subhash & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. 03173N

Sd/-

(CA Surendra Kumar Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 082170

Date : 23-04-2025

Place : Delhi

On behalf of the Board

Sd/-

(Debasish Nanda)

Chairman

DIN-09015566

Sd/-

(S.P. Mohanty)

Managing Director

DIN-05336787

Sd/-

(AV Raghunadhan) 

 Director

DIN-10570608

Sd/-

(Iti Matta)

 Company Secretary

Sd/-

(Masood Akhtar Ansari)

Director

DIN-10429528

Sd/-

(Poonam Jeswani)

Chief Financial O�cer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (INDIRECT METHOD)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortisation

Finance Cost

Interest from Bank Deposits

Gain on Mutual Funds Investments

Gain on Foreign exchange transactions

Loss on de-recognition of property, 

plant and equipment

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Operating Profit before working capital 

changes

Adjustment for :

Security Deposits and Bank Deposits

Advances and Other Assets

Inventory

Trade Receivables

Liabilities and Outstanding Expenses

Cash Generated from Operation

Refund of Income Tax Received

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Expenditure on Project Construction

Purchase of Intangible Assets

Investment / Redemption of Mutual Funds

Interest from Bank Deposits

Gain on Mutual Funds Investments

Net Cash from Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Share Capital

Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings

Interest and Other Borrowing Cost

Payment of Lease Obligations

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & 

Cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash equivalents (Opening balance)

Cash & Cash equivalents (Closing balance)

(All figures in bracket represent outflow)

 1,83,736.78 

 92,778.86 

 1,31,256.95 

 (5,016.17)

 (3,803.73)

 1,757.35 

 

0.02 

 (26.81)

 

4,00,683.25 

 5,348.09 

 (1,386.08)

 (5,910.27)

 (47,613.75)

 (9,183.97)

 3,41,937.27 

 536.41 

 3,42,473.68

(45,828.94)

 (2,573.49)

 (181.87)

 5,575.48 

 4,729.25 

 2,652.32 

 (35,627.25)

 

-   

 (1,89,004.34)

 (1,30,693.22)

 (506.57)

 (3,20,204.13)

 

(13,357.70)

 43,246.87 

 29,889.17 

 1,79,756.95 

 87,713.11 

 1,45,113.34 

 (2,252.97)

 (1,585.37)

 920.73 

 0.13 

 (27.98)

 4,09,637.94 

 (34,328.51)

 (3,896.32)

 (11,774.39)

 (57,377.13)

 (1,53,173.50)

 1,49,088.09 

 878.19 

 1,49,966.28

(15,43,295.21)

 15,03,913.46 

 (92.19)

 (45,347.22)

 2,058.46 

 1,029.66 

 (81,733.04)

 

1,04,109.00 

 545.41 

 (1,46,573.21)

 (253.58)

 (42,172.38)

 

26,060.86 

 17,186.01 

 43,246.87  

( A )

( B )

As per our report annexed
For Surendra Subhash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 03173N

Sd/-
(CA Surendra Kumar Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 082170

Date : 23-04-2025
Place : Delhi

Sd/-
(Debasish Nanda)

Chairman
DIN-09015566

Sd/-
(S.P. Mohanty)

Managing Director
DIN-05336787

Sd/-
 (AV Raghunadhan)

 Director
DIN-10570608

Sd/-
(Iti Matta)

 Company Secretary

Sd/-
(Masood Akhtar Ansari)

Director
DIN-10429528

Sd/-
(Poonam Jeswani)

Chief Financial O�cer

(₹ in Lakh)

For the year ended 

31-Mar-2025

For the year ended 

31-Mar-2024

( C )

On behalf of the Board
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NOTE 2: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1.1.   Statement of Compliance

2.3.1   Revenue from contracts with customers

  The Company classifies its assets and liabilities as current/non-current in the balance sheet considering 12 months as the 

  normal operating cycle.

Reporting Entity

Hindustan Urvarak and Rasayan Limited (the “Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and has been incorporated under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India (CIN: U24100DL2016PLC358399). The registered o�ce of the company is 

located at Core-4, 9th Floor, Scope Minar, Laxmi Nagar District Centre, Delhi-110092, India. It is a Joint Venture Company of Coal India 

Limited (CIL), NTPC Limited (NTPC), Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL), Fertiliser Corporation of India Limited (FCIL) and Hindustan 

Fertiliser Corporation Limited (HFCL) incorporated with an objective to establish and operate fertiliser and chemical complexes at 

Gorakhpur and Sindri units of FCIL and Barauni unit of HFCL and market their products, taking into consideration the assets of FCIL 

and HFCL at Gorakhpur, Sindri & Barauni, and trading of other fertilizer and Agri-products.

  The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis of measurement, except for 

  The comparative information disclosed is based on the financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with 

  Ind AS for the year ended 31st March, 2025 for the Statement of Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet as on that date.

Ø  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments in para 

    2.11);

Ø  Assets held for sale - measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell; and

2.2.1   Functional and presentation currency

  Amounts in these financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹) which is Company’s presentation and functional 

  currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh (up to two decimals), except when otherwise indicated.

  The transactions and balances with values below rounding o� norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as 0.00 in 

  the financial statements.

2.2.2   Current and Non-Current Classification 

2.3  Revenue Recognition

NOTE 1:  CORPORATE INFORMATION

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis, following accrual system of 

  accounting, in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the 

  Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules and other relevant provisions of 

  the Act and Rules thereunder, as amended from time to time. 

2.1   Basis of preparation

2.2   Basis of measurement

Ø  Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value.

  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized net of returns, trade allowances, rebates etc. when control of the 

  goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 

  entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a 

  customer. 

  Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable 

  consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold rendered is net of variable 

  consideration on account of various discounts and schemes o�ered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue is 

  recognized net of returns, trade allowances, rebates etc. when performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of 

  control of goods or services to a customer and it is probable to collect the consideration.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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  For interest due from customers, vendor’s etc. interest income is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to its 

  realization exists and is accounted on time proportion basis at contracted rates.

  Dividends are recognised only when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3.2   Subsidy 

  Subsidy on manufactured Urea is recognised at a point in time when control of the goods has been transferred from seller to 

  buyer and there is no unfulfilled obligation, and it is recognised at the price determined according to the provisions of New 

  Investment Policy (NIP) 2012 as notified and amended from time to time by the Government of India(GOI), with the 

  adjustments for escalation/de-escalation in the prices of inputs and other adjustments as estimated by the management in 

  accordance with the known policy parameters/guidelines/instructions in this regard as notified by Government of 

  India. 

  The subsidy recognition is subject to revision on finalisation of monthly/quarterly and annual gas pool rates by Fertilizer 

  Industry Coordination Committee (FICC), an o�ce of Government of India which regulates such subsidy and di�erence if 

  any, in the amount recoverable from Government \of India are recognized in the year in which revised rates are notified by 

  FICC.

  Uniform freight subsidy on Urea has been accounted in accordance with the parameters and rates notified by FICC/GOI.

2.3.3   Other revenue

  Interest income from financial assets is recognised using E�ective Interest Method.

  Sale of scrap/waste material is recognised on disposal.

  A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company 

  fulfils its performance obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 

  before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

  Contract Assets 

  A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of 

  time is required before payment of the consideration is due). 

  Contract liabilities 

  A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 

  consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the 

  Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the 

  payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract Liabilities in respect of advance from customers is disclosed under “other 

  current liabilities”. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.4   Government Grant 

2.4.1   Grant relating to Assets (Capital Grants)

  In case of Government grants relating to depreciable assets, the cost of the assets is shown at gross value and grant thereof 

  is treated as Deferred Income in Other noncurrent liabilities which are recognized as income in the Statement of Profit and 

  Loss over the period and in the proportion in which depreciation is charged. 

  In the event of such property, plant and equipment being disposed o� before completion of its estimated useful life, the 

  outstanding amount of such capital grant is fully credited to profit or loss in the year of its disposal.

  Insurance and other miscellaneous claims are recognized on receipt/acceptance of claim.

  Trade Receivables 

  Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 

  conditions will be complied with.

2.4.2   Grant related to Expense (Revenue Grants)
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  An item of Property, plant and equipment is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

  impairment losses under Cost Model. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

  An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits 

  associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 

  using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease 

  liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its 

  assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

  Revenue grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 

  Company recognizes as expenses the related cost for which the grants are intended to compensate. 

2.6   Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

   (c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, 

    the obligation for which the Company incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used 

    the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

2.5.2   Company as a lessor 

2.4.3   When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the 

  current applicable market rate or NIL interest rate, the e�ect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. 

  The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the 

  di�erence between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as 

  per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities. 

   (a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts 

    and rebates.

2.5   Leases

2.5.2.2  Operating leases Lease income from operating leases such as rental income (excluding amounts for services such as 

  insurance and maintenance) is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic 

  basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying assets is diminished. 

2.5.1   Company as a lessee

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease 

  liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term 

  leases) and low value leases. For these short- term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an 

  operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The interest expense on the lease 

  liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset is separately recognised.

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 

  any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease 

  incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use 

  assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful 

  life of the underlying asset. 

   (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

    operating in the manner intended by management.

  Classification of the grant is made considering the terms and condition of the grant i.e. whether grants relate to assets or 

  otherwise.

2.5.2.1  Finance leases Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment 

  in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 

  net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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  Catalysts which are used in commissioning of new plant are capitalized and are amortized based on the estimated useful life 

  as technically assessed.

  Depreciation on PPE, is provided as per cost model on straight line basis over the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the 

  Companies Act, 2013 except freehold land and the asset referred below.

  Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property, plant and 

  equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized in the statement of profit and loss on 

  consumption. 

   Subsequent cost of replacing parts of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 

  item, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and the cost of the 

  item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised in accordance with the 

  derecognition policy mentioned below.  

  An item of Property, plant or equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 

  from the continued use of assets. Any gain or loss arising on such derecognition of an item of property plant and equipment 

  is recognised in profit and Loss. 

  Costs of the day to-day servicing described as for the ‘repairs and maintenance’ are recognised in the statement of profit 

  and loss in the period in which the same are incurred.

  When major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and 

  equipment as a replacement if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

  Company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous 

  inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

  Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 

  depreciated separately. However, significant part(s) of an item of PPE having same useful life and depreciation method are 

  grouped together in determining the depreciation charge.

  Depreciation on the following assets is provided on their estimated useful lives, which are di�erent from the useful lives as 

  prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, ascertained on the basis of technical evaluation/assessment: 

Asset Type 

Mobile Phones

Printer

Forklift and Hydra

Firefighting Tender and Ambulance

 

Useful life in Years 

2

3

8

15

  Right of use assets is recognised for assets under lease (including leasehold land) which are depreciated as per 2.5.1. 

  Immovable assets constructed over leasehold land are depreciated at the estimated useful life as per Schedule-II or lease 

  period of land (including renewable/ likely renewable period), whichever is earlier except for which useful life is di�erent 

  from schedule II is adopted by the company & tabulated below: -

  Depreciation on individual item of PPE whose actual cost does not exceed five thousand rupees, is provided at the rate of 

  100% in the year of capitalisation and the residual value of rupee one is retained.

  Depreciation on the assets added / disposed o� during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of 

  addition / disposal. 

  The estimated residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation of Property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 

  each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if any.

  The residual value of other Property, plant and equipment is considered as 5% of the original cost.

Asset Type 

Old Refurbished Building i.e. Guest House, Admin Building etc.

Main Plant and associated works

 

Useful life in Years 

15

25
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Investment Property

  Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting date, is 

  classified under capital work- in-progress.

  Borrowing cost incurred during construction period on loans specifically borrowed and utilized for projects is capitalized on 

  quarterly basis up to the date of capitalization.

2.7  Capital Work in Progress

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 

  assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation (calculated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives) and 

  accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

  Income pertaining to construction period such as interest earned on short term deposits attributable to the debt, interest 

  on advance provided to the project contractors, price reduction and sale of goods (including subsidy) during trial run is 

  adjusted against the Expenditure During Construction Period.

2.8  Intangible Assets

  An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised but is tested for impairment at each reporting date.

  Assets under construction/Capital Work in Progress are not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use. 

  However, they are tested for impairment if any.

  Revenue expenses exclusively attributable to projects incurred during construction period are capitalised under Capital 

  Work in Progress as Expenditure During Construction Period and allocated to the Property, Plant and Equipment at the time 

  of Capitalization of the project.

  Technical know-how / license fee relating to production process and process design are recognized as Intangible Assets 

  and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the underlying plant/ facility.

  Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised. Instead, the related 

  expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which the 

  expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with 

  finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives on a straight-line basis pro-rata from the date the asset is available 

  to the Company for its use and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be 

  impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed 

  at each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 

  benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 

  as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 

  statement of profit or loss. 

  Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the di�erence between the net disposal 

  proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

  Cost of Software recognized as intangible asset, is amortised on straight line method over a period of legal right to use or 

  three years, whichever is less; with a nil residual value. However, where such computer software is still in development 

  stage, cost incurred during the development stage of such software are accounted as “Intangible Assets Under 

  Development”. Web development and App development cost are recognized as intangible asset and amortised 

  on straight line method over a period of five years, with a nil residual value.

  Expenditure incurred on research & development, other than on capital account, is charged to revenue.

2.9   Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

  The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 

  principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is 

  unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must 

  be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

  For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the 
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  exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or 

  disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for 

  sales (or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale 

  of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

Ø An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

Ø The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and

Ø Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that 

   the plan will be withdrawn.

2.10   Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

  The Company assesses at the end of each financial year whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

  such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset’s recoverable amount is the 

  higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an 

  individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

  groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset 

  belongs.

Ø The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

  Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount. A previously recognised 

  impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 

  amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 

  not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 

  had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

2.11   Financial Instruments

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

  instrument of another entity. 

  Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value 

  less cost to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.

  PPE and Intangible Assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

Ø The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair 

   value,

2.11.1   Financial assets 

2.11.1.1  Initial recognition and measurement 

  • Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

  For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

  • Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

  All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 

  profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade 

  receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.  Purchases or sales of 

  financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market 

  place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the 

  asset. 

  • Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

  • Debt instruments at amortised cost

2.11.1.2 Subsequent measurement 
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  •  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit 

  or loss.

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest 

  rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

  costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 

  arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. 

2.11.1.2.2  Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

2.11.1.2.1  Debt instruments at amortised cost 

  a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, 

   and 

  In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI 

  criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 

  inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

  Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or 

  loss. 

  If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 

  excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of 

  investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

  A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

  Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 

  Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest 

  income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, 

  cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding 

  FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

  b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

2.11.1.2.3  Debt instruments at FVTPL

  The Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair 

  value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 

  recognition and is irrevocable. 

2.11.1.2.5  Derecognition 

  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value.  

  A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

   a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, 

    and 

   b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

    interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

  FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization 

  as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

2.11.1.2.4  Equity Investments

  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily d

  erecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when: 
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   When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

   arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 

   transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 

   Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that 

   case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 

   on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the 

   form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 

   the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

   a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 

    deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

  •  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17 

  In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

  impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

   b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

  The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 

  Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

   c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17 

  • The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

   received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the 

   Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred 

   nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

2.11.1.2.6  Impairment of Financial Assets

   d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions 

    that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

  •  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

  The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 

  impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

2.11.2  Financial Liabilities

  All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

  directly attributable transaction costs. 

  The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

2.11.2.2 Subsequent measurement 

  The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

2.11.2.2.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

  Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial 

  date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ 

  losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred 

2.11.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

  designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading 

  if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 

  instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined 

  by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as e�ective 

  hedging instruments. 
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  to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value 

  of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

2.11.2.2.3  Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 

  existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially di�erent terms, or the terms of an 

  existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

  liability and the recognition of a new liability. The di�erence between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a 

  financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 

  transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

2.11.3   Reclassification of financial assets

  The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no 

  reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which 

  are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. 

  Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in 

  the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such 

  changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases 

  to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

  reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period 

  following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including 

  impairment gains or losses) or interest.

  The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for

2.11.2.2.2 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

  After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest rate method. Gains 

  and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the e�ective interest rate 

  amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 

  or costs that are an integral part of the e�ective interest rate. The e�ective interest rate amortisation is included as finance 

  costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Original classification 

Amortised cost 

FVTPL 

Amortised cost 

FVTOCI 

Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Di�erence between previous 

amortized cost and fair value is recognised in Profit and Loss (P&L). 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 

E�ective Interest Rate (EIR) is calculated based on the new gross carrying 

amount. 

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Di�erence between previous 

amortised cost and fair value is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

(OCI). No change in EIR due to reclassification. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying 

amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 

Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at 

amortised cost. 

Revised classification 

FVTPL 

Amortised Cost 

FVTOCI 

Amortised cost 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other 

adjustment is required. 

Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognized in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

FVTPL FVTOCI 

FVTOCI FVTPL 

2.11.4   O� setting of financial instruments 

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are o�set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 

  enforceable legal right to o�set the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 

  assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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  Employee benefits which are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting 

  period in which the employees render the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits. All short-term 

  employee benefits are recognized in the period in which in which the services have been rendered.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it 

  is no longer probable that su�cient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

  Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognised to the extent that it 

  has become probable that su�cient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 

  recovered. 

2.14.1  Short-term Benefits

  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary di�erences. Deferred tax assets are generally 

  recognised for all deductible temporary di�erence to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 

  against which those deductible temporary di�erences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 

  temporary di�erence arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other 

  assets and liabilities in a transaction that a�ects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are o�set if a legally enforceable right exists to set o� current tax assets 

  against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability 

  is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

  end of the reporting period.

  Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 

  comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other 

  comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

  The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 

  which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 

  liabilities.

2.14  Employee Benefits

Financial Risk Management

2.12  Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 

  borrowings and exchange di�erences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an 

  adjustment to interest cost.

  General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

  qualifying assets incurred during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or 

  sale less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings are capitalized. Qualifying assets are 

  assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs 

  are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the same are incurred. 

2.13   Taxation 

  Income tax expense for the period represents the sum of tax currently payable, adjustments for tax provisions of previous 

  years and deferred tax. 

  Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period. 

  Taxable profit di�ers from “profit before income tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 

  Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it 

  further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax 

  rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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  A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Gratuity is covered under 

  defined benefit plans (with ceilings on benefits). The company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is 

  calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return of their service in the current 

  and prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value and reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if any. 

  The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the reporting date that have 

  maturity dates approximating the terms of the company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in 

  which the benefits are expected to be paid.

  The retirement benefit obligation recognized in balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit 

  obligation as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets.

  Under defined contribution scheme, provident fund is a post-employment benefit plan established under State Plan. The 

  company pays fixed contribution into fund maintained by Employees Provident Fund Organisation (EPFO) and the 

  Company will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The contributions to the scheme are charged 

  to the statement of profit and loss in the year when employee rendered related services.

  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by converting into the reported currency of the company using the 

  exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. 

  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the end of the reporting period are 

  translated at the exchange rates prevailing as at the end of reporting period. Exchange di�erences arising on the settlement 

  of monetary assets and liabilities or on translating monetary assets and liabilities at rates di�erent from those at which they 

  were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in statement of 

  profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

  Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gain and losses considering the return on plan 

  assets (excluding interest) and the e�ects of the assets ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the 

  other comprehensive income. The company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit 

  liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning 

  of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined 

  benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other 

  expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit and loss.

2.14.2.1 Defined Contribution plans

  Other employee benefits viz. leave encashment etc. are also recognised on the same basis as described above for defined 

  benefits plan. These benefits do not have specific funding.

2.14.2.2 Defined benefits plan

  The application of actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, expected rates of return on assets, 

  future salary increases, mortality rates etc. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to 

  When the calculation results in to the benefit to the company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of the  

  economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contributions to the plan. 

  An economic benefit is available to the company if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of plan 

  liabilities. 

  Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing 

  on the date of the transaction.

2.14.2  Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits

2.14.3  Other Long-term Employee benefits

  When the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is 

  recognised as expense immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

  The company’s reported currency and the functional currency for majority of its operations is in Indian Rupees (INR) being 

  the principal currency of the economic environment in which it operates.

2.15   Foreign Currency Transactions
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  All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

  Diluted Earnings Per Shares is computed adjusting the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share as 

  follows:

   a) profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company is increased by the after-tax amount of dividends 

    and interest recognised in the period in respect of the dilutive potential equity shares and is adjusted for any other 

    changes in income or expense that would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential equity shares; and

   Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when 

  the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in 

  line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation di�erences on items 

  whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of 

  profit and loss, respectively).

  Traded Fertilizers are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net realizable value.

2.16  Inventories

  Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and traded 

  goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work in progress or finished goods includes cost of raw materials, cost of 

  conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value 

  is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated 

  costs necessary to make the sale.

  The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items of stores and spares is ascertained on 

  review and provided for.

2.17   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets 

  Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 

  the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

  Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 

  uncertain events not wholly within the control of the company, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the 

  probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

  Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

  original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and 

  it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

  amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value 

  of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

  Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

  occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

  Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of 

  judgment of management. 

2.18   Cash and Cash Equivalents

2.19   Earnings per share

  Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the period attributable to the equity 

  shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

   b) the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding is increased by the weighted average number of 

    additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential 

    equity shares.

  In the absence of dilutive potential equity shares, Basic EPS and Diluted EPS will remain same.
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2.20   Adjustments pertaining to prior period

  Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods 

  presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of 

  assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

  Individual expense up to ₹ 1,00,000 not being considered material is included in the expenditure of current period.

  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 

  judgements and assumptions that a�ect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and 

  liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the amount of revenue 

  and expenses during the reported period. Application of accounting policies involving complex and subjective judgements 

  and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. Accounting estimates could change from 

  period to period. Actual results could di�er from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

  ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimate are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and, if 

  material, their e�ects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.22.1   Judgements

   b) reliable in that financial statements: 

  In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which 

  have the most significant e�ect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

2.22.1.1  Formulation of Accounting Policies

2.22   Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

  Accounting policies are formulated in a manner that result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable 

  information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. Those policies need not be applied 

  when the e�ect of applying them is immaterial.

    (i) represent faithfully the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company

    (ii) reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and conditions, and not merely the legal form; 

    (v) are complete in all material respects on a consistent basis

    (iii) are neutral, i.e. free from bias; 

   a) relevant to the economic decision-making needs of users and 

2.21  Prepaid Expenses

  In making the judgement management refers to, and considers the applicability of, the following sources in descending 

  order:

  In the absence of an Ind AS that specifically applies to a transaction, other event or condition, management has used its 

  judgement in developing and applying an accounting policy that results in information that is:

    (iv) are prudent; and 

  In making the judgement, management considers the most recent pronouncements of International Accounting Standards 

  Board and in absence thereof those of the other standard-setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to 

  develop accounting standards, other accounting literature and accepted industry practices, to the extent that these do not 

  conflict with the sources in above paragraph.

  Ind AS applies to items which are material. Management uses judgment in deciding whether individual items or group of 

  items are material in the financial statements. Materiality is judged by reference to the size and nature of the item. The 

  deciding factor is whether omission or misstatement could individually or collectively influence the economic decisions 

   (b) the definitions, recognition criteria and measurement concepts for assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the 

    Framework.

   (a) the requirements in Ind ASs dealing with similar and related issues; and

2.22.1.2  Materiality
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  that users make on the basis of the financial statements. Management also uses judgement of materiality for determining 

  the compliance requirement of the Ind AS. In particular circumstances either the nature or the amount of an item or 

  aggregate of items could be the determining factor. Further the Company may also be required to present separately 

  immaterial items when required by law.

  The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 

  a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

  year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 

  statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change 

  due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in 

  the assumptions when they occur. 

2.23   Cash Flow Statement

2.22.2.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

  The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on 

  Statement of Cash Flows. 

  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on 

  quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs 

  to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is 

  required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and 

  volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could a�ect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.24   Abbreviation used:

2.22.2   Estimates and assumptions 

  There is an indication of impairment if, the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 

  amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.  The value in use calculation is based on 

  a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities 

  that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the 

  CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected 

  future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to other mining 

  infrastructures. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the di�erent CGUs, are disclosed and 

  further explained in respective notes.

2.22.2.2  Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j. 

k. 

CGU

DCF

FVTOCI

FVTPL

GAAP

Ind AS

OCI

P&L

PPE

SPPI

LSTK

Cash generating unit

Discounted Cash Flow

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 

Fair value through Profit & Loss

Generally accepted accounting principal

Indian Accounting Standards

Other Comprehensive Income

Profit and Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment

Solely Payment of Principal and Interest

Lumpsum Turnkey Contract
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Gross Carrying Amount:

As at 1 April 2023

Additions

Capitalisation/Deletions

As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024

Additions/Deletions

Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2025

Provision and Impairment

As at 1 April 2023

Charge for the year

Impairment

Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024

Charge for the year

Impairment

Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2025

Net Carrying Amount

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

 Project Development Expenses 

 15,04,235.22  

38,195.35  

(15,42,108.81) 

321.76  

321.76  

43,291.25  

(40,717.77) 

2,895.24

  

-    

-    

-    

-    

-

    

-    

-    

-    

-    

-    

2,895.24  

321.76 

NOTE 4 : CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

NOTE 5 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Carrying Amount:

As at 1 April 2023

Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024

Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2025

Amortisation and Impairment

As at 1 April 2023

Charge for the year

Impairment

Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024

Charge for the year

Impairment

Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31 March 2025

Net Carrying Amount

As at 31 March 2025
As at 31 March 2024

           

 117.13  

92.19  
-    

209.32  

209.32  

181.90  
-    

391.22  

87.50  

22.03  

-    

-    

109.53  

109.53  

56.89  

-    

-    

166.42  

224.80  

99.79 

  

 104.80  

92.19  
-    

196.99  

196.99  

181.90  
-    

378.89  

82.24  

20.14 

 -   

 -    

102.38  

102.38  

55.11  

-    

-    

157.49  

221.40  

94.61 

 

 12.33  
-    

-    

12.33  

12.33  
-    

-    

12.33  

5.30  

1.89  

-    

-    

7.19  

7.19  

1.78  

-    

-    

8.97  

3.36  

5.14 

Total

 Website 

Development Cost 
 Computer 

Software

              

(₹ in Lakh)

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 6 : RIGHT OF USE ASSETS (ROU)

Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1 April 2023
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31 March 2025

Amortisation and Impairment
As at 1 April 2023
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 2024
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31 March 2025

Net Carrying Amount
As at 31 March 2025
As at 31 March 2024

           

 82,420.97 
 1,366.06 

 (1,678.67)
 82,108.36 

 82,108.36 
 176.56 

 -   
 82,284.92 

 8,179.60 
 1,917.30 

 -   
 (1,687.74)
 8,409.16 

 8,409.16 
 1,927.97 

 -   
 -   

 10,337.13 

 71,947.79 
 73,699.20 

 

 80,742.30 
 -   
 -   

 80,742.30 

 80,742.30 
 -   
 -   

 80,742.30 

 6,678.12 
 1,468.01 

 -   
 -   

 8,146.13 

 8,146.13 
 1,468.01 

 -   
 -   

 9,614.14 

 71,128.16 
 72,596.17 

  

 1,678.67 
 1,366.06 

 (1,678.67)
 1,366.06 

 1,366.06 
 176.56 

 -   
 1,542.62 

 1,501.48 
 449.29 

 -   
 (1,687.74)

 263.03 

 263.03 
 459.96 

 -   
 -   

 722.99 

 819.63 
 1,103.03 

Total
 Building- Corporate 

O�ce & Plant Site 
Land and Other 

Assets 

1.  ROU Land and other assets include leasehold land and other assets of Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni Plant. The adoption of the 

 IND AS-116 resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Gorakhpur - ₹ 37,512.18 lakhs (Government Grant ₹ 21,000.00 lakhs) 

 taken on lease from FCIL, Sindri - ₹ 16,513.61 lakhs taken on lease from FCIL and Barauni - ₹ 26,716.51 lakhs taken on lease from HFCL 

 (Government Grant ₹ 10203.49 lakhs).   

2.  Building- Corporate O�ce include leasehold building of corporate o�ce, Guest House & Markeing o�ce taken on lease from 

 ONGC & Others.

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 7 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non Current
Security deposits
Security deposits to Related Parties
Bank Deposits - Margin money against 
bank guarantee/letter of credit

                                                                         TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024 

 1,617.72 
 2.76 

 
22,656.68 

 24,277.16 

*Fixed deposits held as margin money against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA)/Bank Guarantee/Letter of Credit (LC) & others 

which has to be maintained as per contractual obligation. The above balance includes interest accrued as on 31.03.2025 amounting    

₹ 127.49 lakhs (PY ₹ 177.89 lakhs). 

Current
Security deposits
Other Receivables

                                                                         TOTAL

 30.15 
 3.46 

 33.61

 -   
 2.88 

 2.88

(₹ in Lakh)

st As at 31  March 2025 

 1,707.93 
 2.76 

 
33,243.73 

 34,954.42 
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NOTE 7A : TRADE RECEIVABLE (₹ in Lakh)

a) Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

(Expected Credit Loss)

Total (a)

b) Subsidy (Government of India)

                                                            TOTAL (a + b)

st As at 31  March 2024 

  3,207.29 

 -   

 3,207.29 

 

-   

 3,207.29 

 2,94,154.81 

 2,97,362.10 

st As at 31  March 2025 

  3,480.94 

 -   

 3,480.94 

 -   

 3,480.94 

 3,41,494.91 

 3,44,975.85  

NOTE 8 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(I) Capital Advances

(ii) Advances other than capital advances

   CGST/SGST/IGST- Input

                                                                        TOTAL

Other Current Assets

Current Tax Assets

Advance tax, TDS and TCS

Less: Provision for tax

                                                                        TOTAL

 
stAs at 31  March 2024 

4,438.76 

 1,33,984.32 

 1,38,423.08 

 400.75 

 -   

 400.75 

 
stAs at 31  March 2025

3,987.82 

 1,37,146.80 

 1,41,134.62 

 514.32 

 -   

 514.32

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 9 : INVENTORIES

Inventories :

Finished Goods

Neem Coated Urea

Ammonia

Traded Goods

Traded Product (Myc, PDM, CN, FACT etc)

Raw Material

Neem Oil

Chemicals

Others

Packing Material

Spare Parts

                                                               TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024  

  

24,153.03 

 4,902.98 

 29,056.01

 -   

 -

 71.31 

 814.94 

 886.25 

 653.66 

 4,880.21 

 5,533.87 

 35,476.13 

st As at 31  March 2025

  

23,248.53 

 5,173.07 

 28,421.60

 -   

 -

 90.33 

 837.88 

 928.21 

 496.26 

 11,540.33 

 12,036.59 

 41,386.40 

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 10 : INVESTMENTS

Investment in Mutual Funds*

                                                               TOTAL

*Aggregate amount of quoted investment (at fair value)

st As at 31  March 2024 

46,953.43 

 46,953.43 

 46,953.43  

st As at 31  March 2025

41,377.95 

 41,377.95 

 41,377.95

(₹ in Lakh)



Annual Report 2024-25

HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED

89

1.  Fixed deposits held as margin money against BG/LC with validity up to 12 months.

2.  Balance with banks in deposit accounts includes interest accrued up to 31.03.2025 amounting ₹ 62.14  lakhs (PY ₹ 270.74 lakhs).

NOTE 11 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks

          - in Deposit Accounts

          - in Current Accounts

                                                                         TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024

    41,504.62 

 1,742.25 

 43,246.87

st As at 31  March 2025

  26,992.53 

 2,896.64 

 29,889.17 

(₹ in Lakh)

1.  Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: 

Name of Shareholders

As on 31.03.2025

Coal India Limited 

NTPC Limited 

Indian Oil Corporation Limited 

As on 31.03.2024 

Coal India Limited 

NTPC Limited 

Indian Oil Corporation Limited 

 No.of Shares held (Face value of  Rs.10 each)

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000

NOTE 14 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

12,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/- each 

(PY 12,00,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

792,89,80,000 Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/- each 

(PY 792,89,80,000 Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/- each)

st As at 31  March 2024

  12,00,000.00 

 12,00,000.00 

 7,92,898.00 

 7,92,898.00 

st  As at 31  March 2025

 12,00,000.00 

 12,00,000.00 

 7,92,898.00 

 7,92,898.00 

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 13 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Expense

Advance for goods and services

Advance to employees

Advance to Related Parties

Other Deposits and Advances (Gratuity Fund)

Input Tax Credit (CGST/SGST/IGST)

                                                                         TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024

944.57 

 3,663.56 

 2,522.94 

 15.13 

 90.93 

 16,235.73 

 23,472.86

st  As at 31  March 2025

1,460.43 

 1,321.73 

 189.85 

 2.51 

 -   

 18,526.82 

 21,501.34

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 12 : OTHER BANK BALANCES

Balances with Banks

          - in Deposit Accounts

                                                                         TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024

24,270.74 

 24,270.74 

st  As at 31  March 2025

8,245.39 

 8,245.39 

(₹ in Lakh)
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2.  Details of shareholding of promoters:

As at 31.03.2025

Coal India Limited 

NTPC Limited 

Indian Oil Corporation Limited 

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited 

Hindustan Fertilizer and Corporation Limited 

As at 31.03.2024 

Coal India Limited 

NTPC Limited 

Indian Oil Corporation Limited 

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited 

Hindustan Fertilizer and Corporation Limited 

Name of Promoters  No.of Shares held (Face value of  Rs.10 each)

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 16,667 

 8,333 

 7,92,89,80,000

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 2,64,29,85,000 

 16,667 

 8,333 

 7,92,89,80,000 

3. The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value ₹ 10/- per share. The holders of the equity shares are entitled 

 to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share holding at the 

 meeting of shareholders.   

4. Shares to be issued against Right of Use of Land and Other Usable Assets is considered for the rights obtained at Gorakhpur, 

 Sindri and Barauni sites on registration of lease deed and concession agreement with FCIL and HFCL. This share is recognised for 

 ₹ 165,00 lakhs for each Project site viz. Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni. Accordingly, shares to be issued to FCIL and HFCL in line 

 with JV agreement are in the process of allotment.

NOTE 15 : OTHER EQUITY

Balance as at 01.04.2024

Additions during the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Adjustments during the year

Total comprehensive income during the year

Balance as at 31.03.2025

Balance as at 01.04.2023

Additions during the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Adjustments during the year

Total comprehensive income during the year

Balance as at 31.03.2024

 Shares to be issued against 

Right of use of Land and other 

Usable Assets

  1,73,179.04 

 1,38,207.34 

 (649.95)

 -   

 1,37,557.39 

 3,10,736.43 

 40,713.23 

 1,32,448.57 

 17.24 

 -   

 1,32,465.81 

 1,73,179.04 

 Retained 

Earnings

Other 

Comprehens

ive income

Total

 27.11 

 -   

 (649.95)

 -   

 (649.95)

 (622.84)

 9.87 

 -   

 17.24 

 -   

 17.24 

 27.11 

1,23,651.93 

 1,38,207.34 

 -   

 -   

 1,38,207.34 

 2,61,859.27 

 (8,796.64)

 1,32,448.57 

 -   

 -   

 1,32,448.57 

 1,23,651.93

  49,500.00 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 49,500.00 

 49,500.00 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 49,500.00 

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 16 : BORROWINGS

Non-Current

Term Loan from Banks (Secured)

Interest Free Loan from Govt. of India (Secured)

                                                                        TOTAL 

Current

Term Loan from Banks (Secured)

Working Capital Demand Loan (Secured)

Cash Credit (Secured)

Interest Free Loan from Govt. of India (Secured)

                                                                        TOTAL 

st As at31  March 2024 

 12,62,797.39 

 62,236.84 

 13,25,034.23 

 1,46,227.86 

 48,872.01 

 84.43 

 1,290.04 

 1,96,474.34 

st As at 31  March 2025 

 11,09,484.99 

 65,905.16 

 11,75,390.15 

 1,55,773.73 

 -   

 0.34 

 1,340.00 

 1,57,114.07 

Note:

4. Repayment of term loan has been commenced from FY 2022-23 for Gorakhpur unit and FY 2023-24 for Barauni and Sindri units.    

5. Loan from Govt. of India is received as Interest Free Loan (IFL) to meet the expenditure towards Interest during construction 

 period payable to banks against term loan. The total IFL received is ₹ 89480 lakhs. IFL repayment of ₹ 525 lakh for Gorakhpur 

 unit,₹ 424 lakhs for Barauni unit and ₹ 392 lakhs for Sindri unit has been made during FY 2024-25. The present value of loan 

 payable as on 31.03.2025 is shown under current borrowings, government grant in the nature of interest waiver is shown in Note- 

 22 as deferred income.

3. Interest rate on Rupee Term Loan-I is SBI MCLR 1 year (floating) plus 0.50% and Interest rate on Rupee Term Loan-II is SBI MCLR 6 

 month (floating) plus 0.60%.

1. The long-term bank borrowings have been secured by creating charge in the favor of trustee assigned by consortium of banks 

 against the fixed assets, movable and immovable, other than land (where lease deed would be charged), of the Project, both 

 present and future.

2. The short-term borrowings have been secured by creating charge in favour of trustee assigned by consortium of banks against 

 current assets of the company, both present and future. 

 Pari passu charge has been created on project assets in favour of Government of India against IFL.

(₹ in Lakh)

(₹ in Lakh)NOTE 17 : LEASE LIABILITIES

Non current

Lease Liabilities against ROU assets

                                                                        TOTAL 

Current

Lease Liabilities against ROU assets

                                                                        TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

   766.46 

 766.46 

 402.86 

 402.86 

st As at 31  March 2025 

  414.33 

 414.33 

 492.04 

 492.04 

NOTE 18 : TRADE PAYABLES

Current

Trade Payables for Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises (MSME)

Total Outstanding other than MSME

Trade Payable - Related Party

Trade Payables for other than MSME

                                                                        TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

1,619.42 

 1,619.42 

 21,626.75 

 70,112.53 

 91,739.28 

st As at 31  March 2025

2,308.53 

 2,308.53 

 17,001.07 

 78,726.28 

 95,727.35

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 19 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Non Current 

Security Deposits from Dealers

                                                                         TOTAL

Current

    - Non MSME (LSTK)

    - Non MSME (Others)

Security Deposits from Vendors

Earnest Money Deposit

Retention Money from Contractors

Payable to Related Parties

Liability for Employees

Outstanding expenses

                                                                         TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

  11,661.62 

 11,661.62

 1,298.34 

 514.49 

 4,787.15 

 373.25 

 99,332.97 

 1.26 

 41.79 

 34,676.13 

 1,41,025.38  

st As at 31  March 2025 

  13,244.16 

 13,244.16

 

4,056.42 

 145.52 

 5,207.20 

 469.32 

 87,478.94 

 -   

 81.39 

 34,918.34 

 1,32,357.13  

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 20 : PROVISIONS

Non Current

Employee Benefits

   - Earned Leaves

   - Sick Leaves

Enterprise Social Commitment

                                                                         TOTAL 

Current

Employee Benefits

   - Earned Leaves

   - Gratuity

   - Sick Leaves

   - Performance linked pay

   - Salary Revision

                                                                         TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

    

439.03 

 323.49 

 63,919.97 

 64,682.49 

 62.78 

 -   

 45.33 

 384.25 

 2,520.63 

 3,012.99

stAs at 31  March 2025 

  

1,206.09 

 474.71 

 62,270.05 

 63,950.85 

 184.09 

 321.92 

 75.96 

 3,450.12 

 -   

 4,032.09 

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 21 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSET)

Opening Balance

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asset) recognised 

during the year

                                                                           TOTAL

st As at 31  March 2024 

(3,035.04)

 

47,314.16 

 44,279.12 

st As at 31  March 2025 

44,279.12 

 

45,310.85 

 89,589.97 

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 22 : OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred Income- Right of Use Assets

Deferred Income- Interest Free Loan from GOI

                                                                         TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

28,473.93 

 23,940.12 

 52,414.05 

st As at 31  March 2025 

28,042.21 

 18,880.84 

 46,923.05 

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 23 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customers

                                                                              Total

Statutory Dues:

TDS (Income Tax) payable

GST payable

TDS (GST) payable

Contribution to Approved Funds

Other Statutory Dues

                                                                              Total 

                                                                         TOTAL 

st As at 31  March 2024 

2,409.31 

 2,409.31 

 

797.80 

 1,361.46 

 167.08 

 122.67 

 6.38 

 2,455.39 

 4,864.70 

st As at 31  March 2025 

2,332.97 

 2,332.97 

 

409.58 

 1,488.33 

 279.26 

 262.45 

 33.98 

 2,473.60 

 4,806.57 

(₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 24 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Goods

A) Finished Goods

Neem-Coated Urea

Ammonia

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

Subsidy from GOI

Subsidy- Price

Subsidy- Freight

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                  TOTAL (A)

B) Traded Goods

Mycorrhizal (Apna Power)

Single Super Phosphate (SSP)

Calcium Nitrate (Apna Calgrow)

Potassium Derived From Molasses (Apna PDM Sri)

FACTOMFOS

FACT AM

Bentonite Sulphur 90% (Apna Gold)

Nano Urea (Apna Nano Urea)

Magnesium Sulphate (Apna Magic)

Zinc Sulphate 33% (Apna Mono Zinc)

Calcium Nitrate with Boronated (Apna Calgrow - B+)

                                                                  TOTAL (B)

C) Traded Goods - Imported

Bharat - DAP - Di Ammonium Phosphate

Bharat - TSP - Triple Super Phosphate

D) Subsidy from GOI - Imported

Subsidy- Price

Subsidy- Freight

                                                                   TOTAL (C) 

      Revenue from Operations : Total (A + B + C) 

st  Year ended 31  March 2024 

 1,79,134.62 

 5,171.82 

 

10,132.54 

 1,74,173.90 

 

13,25,298.88 

 43,794.22 

 

73,532.48 

 12,95,560.62 

 14,69,734.52 

 12,743.21 

 2,751.49 

 2,106.76 

 694.26 

 285.85 

 1,159.37 

 -   

 -   

 -

-   

 -   

 19,740.94 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 14,89,475.46 

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

 

1,66,798.06 

 2,751.96 

 

-  

 1,69,550.02

 

12,56,213.69    

 43,224.98 

 

14,412.97 

 12,85,025.70 

 14,54,575.72 

 14,186.14 

 11,474.72 

 2,971.02 

 1,349.46 

 8,037.51 

 3,121.57 

 837.44 

 19.42 

 87.81

87.75 

 375.30 

 42,548.14 

 27,251.33 

 6,361.02 

 33,612.35 

 41,156.63 

 2,667.51 

 43,824.14 

 77,436.49 

 15,74,560.35 

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 25 : OTHER INCOME

Interest from :

Deposits with Banks

Mobilisation Advances

Less: Transferred to Finance Cost (Note 31)

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

Gain on Mutual Fund Investments

Gain on Foreign exchange transactions (net)

Deferred Income- Right of Use Assets

Deferred Income- Interest Free Loan from GOI

Miscellaneous income

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

2,058.46 

 214.79 

 4.51 

 

15.77 

 2,252.97 

 1,585.37 

 -   

 577.21 

 4,773.37 

 272.99 

 7,208.94 

 

193.82 

 7,015.12 

 9,268.09 

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

 

4,960.30 

 55.87 

 -   

 

-   

 5,016.17 

 3,803.73 

 -   

 440.34 

 5,059.28 

 2,090.78 

 11,394.13 

 

-   

 11,394.13 

 16,410.30 

(₹ in Lakh)

Cost of Materials Consumed:

Natural Gas

Packing Material

Neem Oil

Chemicals

Raw Water

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                        TOTAL 

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

  

10,35,964.71 

 12,978.78 

 2,105.43 

 1,551.08 

 1,043.06 

 

45,046.84 

 10,08,596.22 

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

  

9,49,266.31 

 11,499.10 

 1,855.66 

 2,091.81 

 1,188.45 

 -   

 9,65,901.33 

NOTE 26 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

NOTE 27 : PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Mycorrhizal (Apna Power)

Single Super Phosphate (SSP)

Calcium Nitrate (Apna Calgrow)

Potassium Derived From Molasses (Apna PDM Sri)

FACTOMFOS

FACT AM

Bentonite Sulphur 90% (Apna Gold)

Nano Urea (Apna Nano Urea)

Magnesium Sulphate (Apna Magic)

Zinc Sulphate 33% (Apna Mono Zinc)

Calcium Nitrate with Boronated (Apna Calgrow - B+)

Traded Goods - Imported

Bharat - DAP - Di Ammonium Phosphate

Bharat - TSP - Triple Super Phosphate

                                                                         TOTAL 

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

  11,055.06 

 2,655.46 

 1,536.84 

 512.69 

 280.17 

 1,122.79 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 17,163.01

 

-   

 -   

 -

 17,163.01  

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

  12,385.53 

 10,759.85 

 2,651.66 

 1,012.93 

 7,519.23 

 3,039.04 

 714.88 

 17.61 

 73.76 

 77.98 

 331.33 

 38,583.80

62,193.84 

 10,856.85 

 73,050.69 

 1,11,634.49 

 

(₹ in Lakh)

(₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 28 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

Changes in Inventories:

Neem Coated Urea

Ammonia

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

 (12,248.07)

 (1,991.16)

 

(9,071.51)

 (23,310.74)

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

 

 904.50 

 (270.09)

 

-   

 634.41 

(₹ in Lakh)

The Company has employees on deputation from CIL, NTPC and IOCL. Deputation cost is being reimbursed.

Unwinding of discount on Lease Liabilities

Unwinding of discount on Interest Free Loan

Interest and Other Borrowing Cost

Less: Interest Income on Bank Deposits (Note-25)

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

stYear ended 31  March 2024 

60.48 

 4,773.37 

 1,45,109.61 

 4.51 

 -   

 

4,825.61 

 1,45,113.34 

stYear ended 31  March 2025

101.72 

 5,059.28 

 1,26,095.95 

 -   

 -   

 1,31,256.95

NOTE 31 : FINANCE COST (₹ in Lakh)

NOTE 29 : FREIGHT AND HANDLING

Freight and Handling Expense

Freight and Handling Expense (Trading Domestic)

Freight and Handling Expense (Trading Imported)

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

41,946.20 

 -   

 -   

 

2,044.61 

 39,901.59

st Year ended 31  March 2025

39,334.33 

 127.20 

 4,779.10 

 

-   

 44,240.63 

(₹ in Lakh)

Salary and other benefits 

Salary

Contribution to Provident Fund

Other Employee Benefits

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

Deputation Cost 

For Employees of CIL

For Employees of NTPC

For Employees of IOCL

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

stYear ended 31  March 2024 

10,428.99 

 485.18 

 251.80 

 11,165.97 

 

355.95 

 10,810.02

 363.74 

 442.78 

 465.31 

 1,271.83 

 

26.88 

 1,244.95 

 12,054.97 

stYear ended 31  March 2025

16,130.43 

 955.52 

 173.63 

 17,259.58 

 

-   

 17,259.58

 236.70 

 167.35 

 154.83 

 558.88 

 

-   

 558.88 

 17,818.46 

NOTE 30 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (₹ in Lakh)
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NOTE 32 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

On Property Plant and Equipment  (Note-3)

On Intangible Assets (Note-5)

On Right of Use of Assets (Note-6)

Less: Transferred to expenditure during 

construction period (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL

st Year ended 31  March 2024 

85,840.34 

 22.03 

 1,917.31 

 87,779.68 

 

66.57 

 87,713.11 

(₹ in Lakh)
st Year ended 31  March 2025 

 90,794.00 

 56.89 

 1,927.97 

 92,778.86 

 -   

 92,778.86

Promotional expenses

Bagging Operations

Manpower Services

Telephone & Internet Expenses

Vehicle Hire Charges

Advertisement and Publicity Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration

Consultancy Expense

Credit Rating Fee

Electricity & Fuel Expenses

Loss on Foreign exchange (net)

Guest House Expenses

Hotel Accommodation Charges

Legal and Professional Expenses

Bank Charges

Insurance Premium

O�ce Expenses

Printing & Stationeries

Recruitment Expense

EDP & IT Expenses

Rent- Building

Project Inauguration Expense

Repair & Maintenance

Security Service Charge

Housekeeping Expenses

Rate & Taxes

Travelling Expenses

Training Expenses

Environment Monitoring Expense

Horticulture Work

Enterprise Social Commitment

CSR Expenses

Canteen Expenses

Hire Charges of Equipments

Miscellaneous Expenses

Less: Transferred to expenditure 

during construction (Note-4)

                                                                         TOTAL 

NOTE 33 : OTHER EXPENSES
st Year ended 31  March 2024 

737.77 

 4,375.98 

 2,923.43 

 130.18 

 463.06 

 32.99 

 1.32 

 26.03 

 15.31 

 4,717.35 

 920.73 

 317.03 

 17.82 

 63.96 

 1,150.16 

 4,787.73 

 69.76 

 42.44 

 20.53 

 444.33 

 70.97 

 698.29 

 6,110.22 

 2,262.97 

 485.69 

 178.58

410.38 

 56.82 

 67.54

228.51 

 6,803.00 

 -   

 527.84 

 23.14 

 565.07 

 39,746.93 

 

7,991.83 

 31,755.10   

 

st Year ended 31  March 2025 

 3,726.16 

 3,466.76 

 2,491.53 

 90.01 

 479.73 

 20.21 

 7.33 

 15.02 

 7.86 

 4,113.66 

 1,757.35 

 211.40 

 61.17 

 96.50 

 1,650.48 

 8,205.18 

 53.54 

 24.88 

 101.72 

 539.70 

 86.26 

 -   

 9,036.23 

 2,151.56 

 662.34 

 476.74

595.97 

 110.74 

 86.73

198.82 

 -   

 1,124.00 

 664.64 

 17.86 

 636.66 

 42,968.74 

 

-   

 42,968.74  

 

(₹ in Lakh)
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  The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

34.1  Accounting for Leases  

  Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) constituted by Government of India with the approval of Union Cabinet had approved 

  allotment of land at all the 3 project locations on a nominal lease rent for a period of 55 years. On receipt of final approval 

  from the Union Cabinet by Department of Fertilizers the land agreement and concession agreement have been signed on 

  Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni Site. Lease deed for land in respect of Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni site was registered on 

  08th May, 2019, 29th August, 2019 and 4th November, 2019 respectively. Accordingly, right of use for land and other usable 

  assets at three sites was recognised for the first time during the year 2019-20 with corresponding lease liabilities shown 

  under Financial Liabilities and Other Equity/Equity and will continue till lease period.  

  The impact of recognition in line with Ind AS 116 (Leases) is shown in Right of Use Assets, Lease Liabilities, Finance Cost, 

  Amortisation Expense, Deferred Income and Deferred Income-Liability.

NOTE 34: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Particulars 

Less than one year 

One to five years 

More than five years 

Total

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

 551.00 

 424.11 

 124.30 

 1,099.41 

34.2  Related Party & Key Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures  

 A.  Related Party Information

S. No.

1

2

3

4

5

Description of relationshipName of the related party

Coal India Limited

NTPC Limited

Indian Oil Corporation Limited

Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited

Promoter Venturers

  B.  Key Management Personnel

Managing Director (MD)

Chief Financial O�cer (CFO) [w.e.f. 19.07.2024]

Chief Financial O�cer (CFO) [w.e.f. 28.09.2022 upto 07.06.2024]

Company Secretary (CS)

Mr. Siba Prasad Mohanty (S.P. Mohanty) 

Ms. Poonam Jeswani

Mr. Anurag Shukla

Ms. Iti Matta

No Independent Directors during FY 2024-25Independent Directors

  Transactions with Related Parties

S. No. For the year ended 31.03.2025

167.35

236.70

154.83

1,17,547.65

254.49

5.03

43.96

1.00

857.02

Name of the related party

Deputation Cost  

NTPC Limited

Coal India Limited

Indian Oil Corporation Limited

Others

Indian Oil Corporation Limited

     - Purchase of Fuel/Natural Gas

     - Purchase of  Lubricants/Diesel

     - Others

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited

     - Rent

Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited

     - Rent

Utility Powertech Limited

     - Purchase of Services 

For the year ended 31.03.2024

442.78

363.74

465.31

1,73,701.49

219.13

166.22

60.78

1.00

852.54

1

(₹ in Lakh)

2
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(₹ in Lakh)

S. No.

1

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

2

I.

As at 31.03.2024

(15.23)

-

(21,595.41)

-

(0.69)

(115.43)

Name of the related party

Promoter Venturers  

NTPC Limited

Coal India Limited

Indian Oil Corporation Limited

Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited

Others

Utility Powertech Limited

As at 31.03.2025

(68.62)

0.48

(16,928.29)

-

(0.79)

(112.81)

Apart from above, lease liabilities are recognised during the year against right of use of land and other usable assets (Note 34.1). The 

balance of lease liabilities as on 31.03.2025 towards Promoter Venturers is as follows:

Value of Shares to be issued against Right of use 

of Land and other Usable Assets (₹ in Lakh) 

FCIL (for Gorakhpur and Sindri) 

HFCL (for Barauni)

Lease Liabilities (Present value of 

lease rent) (₹ in Lakh)

23.81

11.92

33,000.00 

165,00.00

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel  

S. No. For the year ended 31.03.2025

78.56

38.65

57.47

30.37

Name of the related party

Salary and Other Benefits

Mr. Siba Prasad Mohanty, MD

Ms. Iti Matta, CS

Deputation Cost

Ms. Poonam Jeswani, CFO [w.e.f. 19.07.2024]

Mr. Anurag Shukla, CFO [w.e.f. 28.09.2022 upto 07.06.2024]

For the year ended 31.03.2024

18.10

22.17

-

73.54

1

2

(₹ in Lakh)

IGCMIL - During the year, company has availed Buyers' Credit of USD 22.45 million from M/s IOCL Global Capital Management IFSC 

Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of IOCL) for making payment for imported fertilizers.

Outstanding Balance Receivable/(Payable)

34.4Disclosures for Employee Benefits as per Actuary’s Certificate    

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AS AT 31.03.2025 CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 

(a) Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations:

The disclosures as per actuary’s certificate for employee benefits for Gratuity, Earned Leaves and Sick Leaves (funded) are given 

below:    

34.3 Earnings Per Share

S. No.

i.

ii.

iii.

For the year ended 31.03.2025

1,37,557.39

7,92,89,80,000

1.73

Particulars

Net profit after tax attributable to Equity 

Shareholders (₹ in Lakh)

Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares 

Outstanding as on reporting date

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share in 

Rupees (Face value ₹10/- per share)

For the year ended 31.03.2024

1,32,465.81

7,23,77,64,508

1.83

(₹ in Lakh)

Sick Leaves

550.66
Period

Present value of the obligation at the end of the period

Earned Leaves

1390.18

Gratuity

1037.46
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(b) Key results (The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet): 

Sick Leaves

368.82

26.74

163.53

-

-8.43

550.66

-

(550.66)

Period

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the period

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefits paid 

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Present value of the obligation at the  end of the period

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit)

Earned Leaves

501.81

36.38

410.39

-52.79

494.39

1390.18

-

(1390.18)

Gratuity

382.95

27.76

285.46

-41.30

382.58

1037.46

713.31

(324.15)

(d) Actuarial assumptions selected by the company and employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Discount rate 

Salary Growth Rate 

Mortality 

Withdrawal rate (Per Annum)  

7.00 % per annum 

7.00 % per annum 

IALM 2012-14 

10.00% p.a. 

( c ) Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:

Sick Leaves

859

964.88

2.9

25.7

34.3

12559/12559

-

-

1.12

-

100%

-

Period

Number of employees

Total monthly salary (₹ in Lakh)

Average Past Service (Years)

Average Future Service (Years)

Average Age (Years)

Total Leave With Cap/Without Cap (No.s)

Total CTC for Availment/ Rate

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) in years

Average monthly salary

Encashable

Non- Encashable

Expected Future Service taking into account Decrements (Years)

Earned Leaves

859

620.02

2.9

25.7

34.3

49517/49517

964.88/ 3%

22

0.72

75%

25%

-

Gratuity

859

620.02

2.9

25.7

34.3

-

-

22

0.72

-

-

15.00

(₹ in Lakh)

(e)  Benefits valued:

Normal Retirement Age  

Salary 

Earned Leave Benefits on Normal Retirement 

Gratuity Benefits on Normal Retirement 

Sick Leave Benefits 

Vesting Period for Gratuity 

Benefit on early exit 

Benefit on death 

Gratuity Limit (₹ in Lakh)

60 Years 

Last drawn qualifying salary 

1/30 * Salary * Number of leaves.  

15/26 * Salary * Past Service (yr)  

NIL (Non-Encashable) 

5 Years of service 

As above, subject to rules of the company 

As above, subject to rules of the company 

20

 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary 

 increase rate. E�ect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented below may not be 

 representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur 

 in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below: 

(g) Sensitivity Analysis:   

Sick Leaves

 75.96

474.71

550.66

(f) Current Liability (Expected pay-out in next year as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013):
(₹ in Lakh)

Period

Current Liability (Short Term)

Non-Current Liability (Long Term)

Total Liability

Earned Leaves

184.09

1206.09

1390.18

Gratuity

75.86

961.59

1037.46

(₹ in Lakh)
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596.14 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

595.68 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

510.77 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

550.66 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  0% ]

550.66 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  0% ]

Liability with x% 

decrease in Discount Rate 

Liability with x% 

increase in Salary Growth Rate 

Liability with x% 

decrease in Salary Growth Rate 

Liability with x% 

increase in Withdrawal Rate 

Liability with x% 

decrease in Withdrawal Rate

1507.28; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

1506.11; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

1287.66 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

1390.18 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  0% ]

1390.18 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  0% ]

1124.59; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

1123.72; x=1.00% 

[Change  8% ]

961.16; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

1025.30 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (1)% ]

1049.78 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  1% ]

(₹ in Lakh)

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AS AT 31.03.2024 CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 

(a) Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations:

The disclosures as per actuary’s certificate for employee benefits for Gratuity, Earned Leaves and Sick Leaves (unfunded) are given 

below:

368.82
Present value of the obligation 

at the end of the period
501.81

Sick LeavesPeriod Earned LeavesGratuity

382.95

(₹ in Lakh)
(b) Key results (The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet):

Sick Leaves

550.66

511.12; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

Period

Defined Benefit

Obligation (Base)

Liability with x% 

increase in Discount Rate 

 Leaves

1390.18

1288.56; x=1.00%  

[Change  (7)% ]

Gratuity

1037.46 @ Salary Increase 

Rate : 7%, and discount rate :7%

961.82; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

Sick LeavesPeriod Earned LeavesGratuity

212.71

15.42

Present value of the obligation 

at the beginning of the period

Interest Cost

404.92

29.36

290.29

21.05

135.40

-

Current Service Cost

Benefits paid 

179.68

(44.64)

127.76

(51.02)

(b) Key results (The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet):
(₹ in Lakh)

Sick LeavesPeriod Earned LeavesGratuity

5.29

368.82

-

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Present value of the obligation at 

the  end of the period

Fair value of plan assets at end of 

period

(67.51)

501.81

-

(5.13)

382.95

473.95

Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) 91.00 (501.81) (368.82)

( c ) Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:

Sick Leaves

 879

870.72

2.2

26.8

33.2

10888/10888

-

(₹ in Lakh)

Period

Number of employees

Total monthly salary (₹ in Lakh)

Average Past Service (Years)

Average Future Service (Years)

Average Age (Years)

Total Leave With Cap/Without Cap (No.s)

Total CTC for Availment/ Rate

Earned Leaves

879

348.29

2.2

26.8

33.2

34512/34512

870.72/ 3%

Gratuity

879

346.09

2.2

26.8

33.2

-

-
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(d) Actuarial assumptions selected by the company and employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Discount rate 

Salary Growth Rate 

Mortality 

Withdrawal rate (Per Annum)  

7.25 % per annum 

5.00 % per annum 

IALM 2012-14 

10.00% p.a. 

(e) Benefits valued:

Normal Retirement Age  

Salary 

Earned Leave Benefits on Normal Retirement 

Gratuity Benefits on Normal Retirement 

Sick Leave Benefits 

Vesting Period for Gratuity 

Benefit on early exit 

Benefit on death 

Gratuity Limit (₹ in Lakh) 

60 Years 

Last drawn qualifying salary 

1/30 * Salary * Number of leaves.  

15/26 * Salary * Past Service (yr)  

NIL (Non-Encashable) 

NIL 

As above for Leaves 

As above (Sick Leaves- during service only) 

20 

 (f) Current Liability (Expected pay-out in next year as per schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013):

Sick Leaves

 45.33

323.49

368.82

Period

Current Liability (Short Term)

Non-Current Liability (Long Term)

Total Liability

Earned Leaves

62.78

439.03

501.81

Gratuity

-

-

-

 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary 

 increase rate. E�ect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented below may not be 

 representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur 

 in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below: 

(g) Sensitivity Analysis:   

Sick Leaves

 -

0.99

-

100%

-

Period

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) in years

Average monthly salary

Encashable

Non- Encashable

Expected Future Service taking into account Decrements (Years)

Earned Leaves

22

0.40

75%

25%

-

Gratuity

21

0.39

-

-

15

(₹ in Lakh)

Sick Leaves

368.82

344.78; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

396.17 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  7% ]

396.52 ; x=1.00% 

[Change 8% ]

344.08 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

372.93 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  1% ]

364.22 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (1)% ]

Period

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Liability with x% increase 

in Discount Rate 

Liability with x% decrease 

in Discount Rate 

Liability with x% increase 

in Salary Growth Rate 

Liability with x% decrease 

in Salary Growth Rate 

Liability with x% increase 

in Withdrawal Rate 

Liability with x% decrease

in Withdrawal Rate 

Earned Leaves

501.81

468.99; x=1.00%  

[Change  (7)% ]

539.16; x=1.00% 

[Change  7% ]

539.63; x=1.00% 

[Change 8% ]

468.04 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

507.44 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  1% ]

495.50 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (1)% ]

Gratuity

382.95 @ Salary Increase Rate : 5%, 

and discount rate :7.25%

358.20; x=1.00% 

[Change  (6)% ]

411.11; x=1.00% 

[Change  7% ]

411.46; x=1.00% 

[Change 7% ]

357.48; x=1.00% 

[Change  (7)% ]

380.82 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  (1)% ]

384.52 ; x=1.00% 

[Change  0% ]
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Management Risk MeasurementExposure arising from

Financial risk management     

34.5 Financial Instruments 

The Company’s activities expose it to liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk. 

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk :-

Credit risk

Liquidity 

risk

Market risk — 

foreign 

currency

Market risk — 

Interest Rate

Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank 

balances, Trade Receivables and 

security deposits, Mutual funds

Retention Money/deposits from 

contractors, Borrowings & others

Purchase/acquisition of capital goods

Long-term borrowings at variable 

interest rates

Ageing analysis

Rolling cash flow 

forecasts

Prevailing foreign 

exchange 

movements

Sensitivity analysis

Diversified bank deposits & investment in 100% 

debt SBI Mutual fund or in Scheduled Banks 

current account and Financial Assets.

Availiablity of enough cash & cash equivalents & 

reserves, availability of committed credit line 

and borrowing facilities and availiability of 

equity commitment from the promoters. 

Continuous monitoring of cash flows and 

matching of maturities of financial assets & 

liabilities.

Management monitor foreign exchange 

fluctuation to manage the risk relating to foreign 

exchange variance. 

Management regularly monitors the prevailing 

market conditions to address the risk relating to 

interest rate. 

(A) Credit Risk    

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due causing 

financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from company’s activities in investments, dealing in derivatives and receivables from 

customers. The Company ensure that sales of products are made to customers with appropriate creditworthiness. Investment and 

other market exposures are managed against counterparty exposure limits. Credit information is regularly shared between 

businesses and finance function, with a framework in place to quickly identify and respond to cases of credit deterioration. 

The company has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business activities. Credit 

risk is actively managed through advance payments and security deposit etc to avoid concentration of risk. The company restricts its 

fixed income investments to liquid securities carrying high credit rating of State Bank of India."    

(B) Liquidity Risk    

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining su�cient cash and maketetable securities and the availability of funding 

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligation when due. The construction phase has completed 

recently and Company need to maintain liquidity for operations. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity 

position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash requirements, adequate working capital facilities with the 

consortium banks.    

During the year, the Company has access to undrawn fund-based working capital facilities of ₹ 3,84,642 lakh and undrawn non-fund-

based working capital facilities of ₹ 67,500 lakh.    

The following table details the company's remaining contractual maturity for the non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed 

repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flow of financial liabilities based on the earliest 

date on which the company may be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that 

interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The 

contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the company may be required to pay. 

During the year, the Company has access of undrawn term loan facilities amounting to ₹ 1,33,915 lakh.    

(ii) Maturities of Financial liabilities:    

(i) Financing arrangement:    
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(₹ in Lakh)

More than Five YearMarch 31, 2025 One to Five YearLess than One Year

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Non-derivatives

Creditors for captial 

goods/services and others

Lease liabilities

Retention Money/Deposits

Borrowings

Total non-derivative liabilities

Total

 1,37,237.55 

551.00 

 93,155.46 

 1,57,114.07 

 3,88,058.08 

 - 

424.11 

 13,244.16 

 7,81,099.95 

 7,94,768.22 

 - 

124.30 

 -   

 3,94,290.20 

 3,94,414.50 

 1,37,237.55 

1,099.41 

 1,06,399.62 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,240.80 

More than Five YearMarch 31, 2024 One to Five YearLess than One Year

Non-derivatives

Creditors for captial g

oods/services and others

Lease liabilities

Retention Money/Deposits

Borrowings

Total non-derivative liabilities

Total

 1,29,890.71 

 494.18 

 1,04,493.37 

 1,96,474.34 

 4,31,352.60 

 -   

 806.60 

 11,661.62 

 7,79,941.20 

 7,92,409.42 

 -   

 127.39 

 -   

 5,45,093.03 

 5,45,220.42 

 1,29,890.71 

 1,428.17 

 1,16,154.99 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,982.44 

The Company had imported certain plant and machineries and other project items which are denominated in Euro/GBP/JPY/US 

dollars and exposed it to foreign currency risk. The Company monitors the foreign currency rates in the prevailing market to manage 

the risk relating to foreign exchange. The Company has not hedged any foreign currency risk as at the reporting date. At present the 

company s only importing spares and equipment for operations purpose as and when required. The company's exposure to foreign 

currency risks at the end of the reporting period expressed, i.e. solely related to project constuction in INR as follows:

(C) Market Risks    

I) Foreign Currency Risk    

Financial Liabilities

     -   Creditors

st 31  March 2024 

  

 4,794.99

(₹ in Lakh)
st 31  March 2025 

  

1,231.87 

Sensitivity Analysis with respect to financial liabilities of creditors for the project, change in exchange rate shall have an impact on 

the profitability of the company. A change of 1 % in exchange rate would increase/decrease the profit for the year ended 31st March 

2025 by Rs. 12.32 Lakh (increase/decrease the profit for year ended 31st March 2024 by Rs. 47.95 Lakh)    

II) Interest Rate Risk    

The Company's interest rates risk arises from long-term and short-term borrowings with variable interest rates which expose the 

Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company monitors the interest rates in the market and accordingly will pursue 

replacement existing loans and renegotiate interest rate of existing facilities based on improvement in credit rating and market 

scenario.    

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the company's loss for the year 

ended March 31, 2025 would increase/decrease by Rs. 666.25 Lakh (for the year ended March 31, 2024: increase/decrease By Rs. 760.75 

Lakh ). This is mainly attributable to the company's exposure to interest rate on its variable rate borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the 

end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at 

the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting 

interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible 

change in interest rates.    
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Capital Management    

Risk Management    

Net Debt (total borrowings including lease liabilities, cash & cash equivalents) divided by Total 'equity' (as shown in the balance 

sheet)    

The company's strategy is to maintain Debt Equity ratio as agreed with bank. Present Debt Equity ratio is as follows :

The Company's objectives in managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to 

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain optimal capital structure.     

The company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio :    

Particular  

Net Debt  

Total Equity  

Net Debt to equity ratio (in times)  

31-03-2024

 14,79,431.02 

 9,66,077.04 

 1.53 

31-03-2025

 13,03,521.42 

 11,03,634.43 

 1.18 

(₹ in Lakh)

Loan covenants    

Interest coverage ratio of a minimum of 1.50    

As per the financial of FY 2024-25, company has not breached any of the covenants and will be not liable for additional interest 

payout during the FY 2024-25.

Fair Value Mesurements 

DSCR of a minimum of 1.15 and    

Financial instruments by category

FACR of a minimum of 1.20     

As per restated term loan agreement, the company is required to maintain the following ratios (the "Financial Covenants") for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, and if there is an adverse deviation by more than 5%~10% from the level stipulated below in 

respect of any two of the following items default interest at deafult rate shall be payable.     

Ratio of Debt to EBITDA of a maximum of 5.00    

(₹ in Lakh)
st 31  March 2024st 31  March 2025

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Bank deposits with more than 

12 months maturity

Security deposit

Trade receivable

Others

Total

Financial Liabilities

Other financials liabilities 

Borrowings

Total

FVTPL

 41,377.95 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 41,377.95 

 -   

 -   

 -   

Amortised Cost

 -   

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 

33,243.73 

 1,710.69 

 3,44,975.85 

 2.88 

 4,18,067.71 

 2,44,543.54 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,047.76 

FVTPL

 46,953.43 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 46,953.43 

 -   

 -   

 -   

Amortised Cost

 -   

 43,246.87 

 24,270.74 

 

22,656.68 

 1,650.63 

 2,97,362.10 

 3.46 

 3,89,190.48 

 2,47,215.02 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,723.59 
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Others

Total

Financial Liabilities

Other financials liabilities 

Borrowings

Total

2.88 

 4,59,445.66 

 2,44,543.54 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,047.76 

2.88 

 4,59,445.66 

 2,44,543.54 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,047.76 

3.46 

 4,36,143.91 

 2,47,215.02 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,723.59

3.46 

 4,36,143.91 

 2,47,215.02 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,723.59

This explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that is (a) measured at 
amortised cost and (b) measured at fair value for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication 
about the realiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three 
levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed. 

Fair value hierarchy    

31-03-2025

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Bank deposits with more than 

12 months maturity

Security deposit

Trade receivable

Others

Total

Financial Liabilities

Other financials liabilities 

Borrowings

Total

Level 1

 41,377.95 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 41,377.95

-   

 -   

 -   

Level 2

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -

  

-   

 -   

 -   

Level 3

 -   

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 

33,243.73 

 1,710.69 

 3,44,975.85 

 2.88 

 4,18,067.71

2,44,543.54 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,047.76 

Total

 41,377.95 

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 

33,243.73 

 1,710.69 

 3,44,975.85 

 2.88 

 4,59,445.66

  2,44,543.54 

 13,32,504.22 

 15,77,047.76

(₹ in Lakh)

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Bank deposits with more than 

12 months maturity

Security deposit

Trade receivable

Carrying Amount

 41,377.95 

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 

33,243.73 

 1,710.69 

 3,44,975.85 

Fair Value

 41,377.95 

 29,889.17 

 8,245.39 

 

33,243.73 

 1,710.69 

 3,44,975.85 

Carrying Amount

  46,953.43 

 43,246.87 

 24,270.74 

 

22,656.68 

 1,650.63 

 2,97,362.10 

Fair Value

 46,953.43 

 43,246.87 

 24,270.74 

 

22,656.68 

 1,650.63 

 2,97,362.10 

st 31  March 2024st 31  March 2025

(₹ in Lakh)

31-03-2024

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Bank deposits with more 

than 12 months maturity

Security deposit

Trade receivable

Others

Total

Financial Liabilities

Other financials liabilities 

Borrowings

Total

Level 1

 46,953.43 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 46,953.43 

 -   

 -   

 -   

Level 2

  

-

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -

 -   

 -   

 -   

Level 3

   -   

 43,246.87 

 24,270.74 

 

22,656.68 

 1,650.63 

 2,97,362.10 

 3.46 

 3,89,190.48 

 2,47,215.02 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,723.59 

Total

   46,953.43 

 43,246.87 

 24,270.74 

 

22,656.68 

 1,650.63 

 2,97,362.10 

 3.46 

 4,36,143.91 

 2,47,215.02 

 15,21,508.57 

 17,68,723.59 

Fair Value of Financial assets & Liability Measured at amortised cost
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Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;     

 c)  The fair values for borrowings were calculated based on the future cash flows discounted using a current borrowing rate. 

The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described 

below:    

Level 2:  Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 

  indirectly; and     

Level 3:  Inputs based on unobservable market data.    

Valuation Methodology    

All financial instruments are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value as described below:    

 a)  The fair value of investment in Mutual Funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.    

 b)  The fair value of other financial liabilities, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables etc are 

  considered to be the same as the carrying amounts due to their liquidity in nature.     

34.6 Information in respect of micro and small enterprises reported as required by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act):

Particulars 
Amount remained unpaid (Trade Payables & Capital Goods)

a)     Principal amount (Note-18)

b)     Interest due thereon

Total interest paid on all delayed payments during the year 

under the provisions of the Act

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (Where the 

principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid);

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year;

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 

the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 

expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act 2006.

As at 31.03.2024As at 31.03.2025

(₹ in Lakh)

2,308.53
-

-

-

-

-

1,619.42
-

-

-

-

-

34.7 Unit wise revised Project Cost and COD     

The approved revised project cost is tabulated below:

Note: The above information has been disclosed in respect of parties which have been identified on the basis of the information 

available with the Company.     

Name of Project 

Gorakhpur 

Sindri 
Barauni 
Total 

COD

03.05.2022
15.04.2023
30.04.2023

Further Revised cost 

(₹ in Lakhs) (in year 2023)

9,44,320
8,93,925
9,51,215

27,89,460

Original Cost 

(₹ in Lakhs) (in year 2017)

7,08,577
6,97,701

7,04,326
21,10,604

Revised Estimated cost 

(₹ in Lakhs) (in year 2021)

8,60,271
8,13,009
8,38,799

25,12,079

Commitments & Contingent Liabilities & Pending Litigations:     

a)  Commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as on 

 31.03.2025 is ₹ 76,360.06 lakh (PY Rs.90,968 lakh for FY 2023-24).      

b)  Contingent Liabilities: Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt ₹ 1,70,741.80 lakh (PY ₹ 1,74,214.82 lakh).     

LSTK agencies have raised claims of Rs 55005.70 lakhs for Gorakhpur, Rs 45678.99 lakhs for Sindri and 46353.09 lakhs for Barauni 

Project, amounting to total Rs 1,47,037.78 lakhs for all three projects. The said claims have been made towards additional costs impact 

on account of COVID 19 and change in legislation/work events which has been refuted by the Company.     
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NAME OF PARTY
PRESENT 

STATUS

RELIEF 

CLAIMED 

BY PARTY

PENDING BEFORE 

COURT - Lower Court/ 

Arbitration/ HC/SC

CASE NO. OR 

PETITION NO. 

OR 

COMPLAINT NO.

NATURE 

OF 

CLAIM

(₹ in Lakh)

Posted to 03.04.2025 for recording 

claimant's evidence.

Statement of defense was filed. 

Evidence of behalf of the claimant 

is completed. The matter is posted 

to 15.04.2025.

Posted to 20.05.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Posted to 02.05.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Posted to 03.06.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Posted to 05.03.2025 for further 

proceedings. Fresh date not 

provided by the authority.

Posted to 17.06.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Posted to 20.05.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Posted to 20.05.2025 for further 

proceedings.

HURL paid Rs.2.62 crore towards 

di�erential GST and Rs.1.42 crore 

towards interest in the months of 

December, 2024 and January, 2025 

respectively to DVPL, after taking 

legal opinion from Solicitor General 

of India. The discussions between 

HURL and Contractor for 

settlement is going on. Posted to 

27.04.2025 & 28.04.2025 for further 

proceedings.

Arbitral Trbunal, Delhi

Arbitral Trbunal, Delhi

Labour Court, Begusarai

Employees Compensation 

Commissioner, Dhanbad

Arbitral Trbunal, Delhi

Regional Labour 

Commissioner, Central, 

Dhanbad

City Civil Court, Bombay 

Labour Court, Begusarai

Labour Court, Begusarai

Arbitral Trbunal, Delhi

ARB.P.-871/2022

Arb. P. 152/2023

P.W-18/2023

WC 01/2022

MW Claim(27) 

(2023)/LEO/D-

III

S C S No.100735 

of 2024

P.W-07/2024

P.W-09/2024

ARB P.614/2023

Arbitration

Arbitration

Labour / 

Service

Labour / 

Service

Arbitration

Labour / 

Service

Commercial/ 

Merchantile

Labour / 

Service

Labour / 

Service

Arbitration

M/s S.B Protech Pvt. 

Ltd.

M/s D.P.S 

Contractors Ltd.

M/s Sanjeet Kumar 

Ms. Nitu Devi

BGR Energy System 

Ltd

Labour Enforcement 

O�cer (Central) - III, 

Dhanbad

Mumbai Port 

Authority 

Mr. Pawan Pandit & 

27 Others

Md Parvez Alam 

DVPL

 1,951.14 

 3,064.66 

 38.89 

 28.48 

 1,865.79 

 18.44 

 22.73 

 38.89 

 56.65 

 4,227.84 

c) Pending Litigations: 

The balance amount of contingent liabilities includes claims raised by Non-LSTK agencies amounting to ₹16,254.07 lakh, and an 

enquiry regarding customs duty on import of spares, the amount of which has been determined by the Customs Department at 

₹7,164.96 lakh, this has been contested by HURL and is under active consideration by the custom authorities. The total claims from 

government authorities amount to ₹7,449.95 lakh.

Matter disposed on 28.03.2025 and 

awaiting for orders.

Deputy Chief Labour 

Commissioner, Central, 

Dhanbad

IR.NO.26/2024/LE

O (C ) Dhanbad-

III/823592

Labour / 

Service

Labour Enforcement 

O�cer (Central) - III, 

Dhanbad

 5.89 

Pending with District Magistrate. 

No fresh date was given.

District Magistrate, 

Gorakhpur

Stamp 

Duty

DTH Infra Engineers 

Pvt Ltd. 

 3,957.00 

Matter is posted to 02.05.2025 for 

arguments.
NCLT, Delhi

Corporate 

Insolvency 

Resolution 

Process

 181.44 

The contractor did not attend last 

meeting held on 21.02.2025. Fresh 

date is not given.

Facilitation Council, 

Kolkatta

Commercial/ 

Merchantile
 5.16 

M/s. Suraksha 

Security and 

Maintenance Services

Total  15,462.99 

Company 

Application No. 

IB/533/ND/2024
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34.8  Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

Note : The above amount has already been included in contingent liabilities.

Unit

CAPEX Expenditure (in GBP, USD, EUR and JPY)

O&M Expenditure (in GBP, USD, EUR and JPY)

For the year ended 31.03.2024 

41,123.31

2,157.70

For the year ended 31.03.2025

4,022.42

4,940.23

34.10 Previous period’s figures have been rearranged, regroup and reclassified wherever considered necessary to facilitate 

  comparisons.          

  Provision for ESC/CER as on 31.03.2025 is Rs. 62270.05 lakh (PY Rs. 63919.97 lakh).           

34.9  Enterprise Social Commitment/ Corporate Environment Responsibility (ESC/ CER)          

st34.11 Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31  March, 2025          

(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars 

(I) MSME   

(ii) Others  

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  

(iv) Disputed dues – Others  

Total  

Less than 1 year 

- 

4,405.23 

- 

 - 

4,405.23 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment       

(₹ in Lakh)

1-2 years 

 - 

67.64 

- 

- 

67.64 

2-3 years

-

76.94

-

-

76.94

More than 3 years

-

21.52

-

-

21.52

Total 

- 

4,571.33 

- 

- 

4,571.33 

34.12 Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars Less 
than 6 Months 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment        

6 Months to 
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years Total 

 3,41,511.02  
(I) Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables– 

considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 

considered doubtful

Total

More 
than 3 years

 3,35,777.97 

 -

 -

 -

 3,35,777.97 

 5,733.05  

- 

- 

 - 

 5,733.05  

 - 

- 

- 

- 

 -  

-

-

-

-

 - 

- 

- 

- 

 3,41,511.02  

-

-

-

-

 - 

b)  Farmer Connect & Advisory- Reached out to over 2 Lakh farmers through extensive outreach programmes. Organized 

  Swakchhata Pakhwada, PMKSK establishment, TB Awareness and elimination camps and circulated PM PRANAM videos for 

  awareness amongst the stake holders.          

e)  Credit Rating of the company has been upgraded from A+ to AA- by India Rating based on performance of the company 

  which has further resulted in reduction in interest rate on RTL-I & II and Working Capital facilities from 9.50% to 8.55%. This 

  reduction in interest rate will amount to approx. Rs 573 crore saving to the company in interest cost over the balance period 

  of loan. 

34.13   Key Developments          

  a) License agreement signed for setting up of  Nano Urea Plant at Gorakhpur.          

c)  HURL Board has approved Equity contribution of 13% in the JV to be formed for Ammonia Urea complex at Namrup, Assam          

  b) Feasibility study of two new projects Ammonium sulphate Project at Barauni and NPK Plant at Sindri sites is in progress.            

a)   Expanded product portfolio by initiating imports of DAP (Di-Ammonium Phosphate) and TSP (Triple Super Phosphate), 

  marking the company's global footprint. In the domestic segment also, five new products were introduced expanding the 

  sales & reach of the products.           

d)  New Projects :           

(₹ in Lakh)
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34.14  Additional Regulatory Information:       

 I a) UP Government has earmarked land measuring 20 acres in the district of Gorakhpur for the period of 30 years for 

   setting up of state of art skill development centre.       

ii) The company does not hold any Investment Property in its books of accounts, so fair valuation of investment property is not 

 applicable.       

iii) During the year the company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets.       

iv) The company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, Key Management Personnel (KMP) and the 

 related parties that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.       

v) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) - Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2025

I) The Company does not hold any Immovable Property of which Title deeds are not held in name of the Company as at 31 March 

 2025.       

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) Total
Amount in CWIP for a period of

(₹ in Lakh)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended
2,895.24 

- 

2,895.24 

- 

-

-

-

-

-

-

xi)  During the year, CSR amounting to Rs. 1124 lakh accounted for as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.       

xvi) Pending distance notifications to claim freight subsidy, the amount is recognized based on latest freight reimbursements 

 rates i.e. for the FY 2020-21 as declared by Ministry of Fertilizers.       

xiv) The Board has approved pay revision of Pay Structure from CTC based to IDA based pattern. In additon, a PRP policy has also 

 introduced in line with DPE guidelines.        

xiii) Certain minor changes have been made in the accounting policy for improved disclosure and presentation and there is no 

 material impact on financials statement due to these changes as per management.       

xii) The Company has sought confimation of oustanding balances appearing in the books from debtors & creditors. Pending 

 receipt of responses from certain debtors & creditors balances in so far as these have since not been discharged/adjusted/ 

 realized are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential adjustment impact of which in the opinion of the 

 management is not material.       

vi) The Company does not have any intangible assets under development as on date.       

vii) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988.       

viii) The quarterly returns / statement of current assets filed by the company with banks / financial institutions are in agreement 

 with the books of accounts.       

ix) The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.       

x) The Turnover of Trading segment is below 10% of the manufacturing turnover hence Segment Reporting as per IND AS 108 is 

 not applicable to HURL for FY 2024-25, accordingly, the allocation of administrative and marketing overheads to the trading 

 business has not been done in view of the relative volume and turnovers of the manufacturing business and the trading 

 business.       

xv) Pending annual pool rate to be notified by FICC for the FY 2024-25, the subsidy for the urea sold during the year is recognized 

 based on monthly weighted average of delivered gas cost during the year and the subsidy eligibility as per New Investment 

 Policy (NIP-2012). The recognized subsidy for the FY 2024-25 is subject to the finalization of annual pool rate by FICC.       

xix) Provision of Rs. 50/MT for the cumulative quantity of urea sold since inception of the company has been made during the year 

 for procurement of POS machines and execution of PMKSK programme etc.

xviii) During the year 1,09,627 MT of DAP and 26,538 MT of TSP were imported & sold. Based on the Government Notification dated 

 23.09.2024 & 01.10.2024, a claim of Rs. 1,01,19.63 lakh towards DAP has been lodged with DoF on 21.02.2025.

xx) As per the JV Agreement between promoters, equity shares are to be allotted to the promoter’s M/s FCIL and M/s HFCL in lieu 

 of the land leased by them for setting up the plants. The shares will be allotted after finalization of the number of shares by the 

 committee.         

xvii) Pending sale of Urea totalling 5.03 lakh MT through POS device to beneficiaries as on 31.03.2025, subsidy of  ₹ 1,89,111.47 lakh 

 which has accrued on sale to dealers but shall become due for payment upon sale through POS device and same has been 

 recognized in the current period.  
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xxi) There is no impact on the ability of the Company as a going concern.      

 There are no transactions with respect to struck o� companies as mentioned under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.      

xxiii) The company has no cases of any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory time limits.      

xxiv) The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are 

 not applicable to the company as per Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013.

xxv) Disclosure of Ratios

xxii) Relationship with Struck o� Companies      

Ratio Reason for Variance

Improvement in Working capital due to 

e�cient utilization of current assets and 

current liablities during the F.Y. 2024-25.

Numerator Denominator
FY 

2024-25
FY 

2023-24
% 

Variance

14.581.071.23Current LiabilitiesCurrent AssetsCurrent 

ratio

The Ratio indicates the proporation of 

debt fund in relation to equity. The ratio 

has been reduced due to repayment of 

long term loan.

-23.341.571.21Shareholder’s 

Equity (Total 

Equity)

Paid-up debt capital 

(Long term 

borrowings+Short 

term borrowings)

Debt-

equity 

ratio

Improvement in Profitability has 

increased DSCR

0.731.261.27Finance Costs+ 

lease payments+ 

Scheduled principal 

repayments of long 

term borrowings

Profit for the year+

Finance costs+

Depreciation and 

amortiation expenses+

Exceptional items

Debt 

service 

coverage 

ratio

Improvement in Profitability and 

average shareholder equity not in 

percentage of profitability.

-8.6613.71%12.52%Average 

Shareholder’s 

Equity

Profit for the yearReturn 

on equity 

ratio

Inventory Turnover Ratio mainly due 

to inventory maintained in current FY 

2024-25. 

-18.6150.3440.97Average 

Inventory

Revenue from 

operations

Inventory 

turnover 

ratio

Due to better realisation of Debtors. -11.575.544.90Average trade 

receivables

Revenue from 

operations

Trade 

receivabl

es turno-

ver ratio

Net Capital Turnover Ratio due to 

decreased due to repayment of long 

term borrowings.

-23.648.356.38Working 

Capital+current 

maturities of long 

term borrowings

Revenue from 

operations

Net 

capital 

turnover 

ratio

Net Profit Ratio of current year is lower 

due to lower production and sale of urea.

-1.298.898.78Revenue from 

operations

Profit for the yearNet profit 

ratio

EBIT reduced due to lower production.-2.9413.32%12.93%(I)Capital EmployedEarning before 

interest and taxes

Return on 

capi-tal 

employed

Company has no JV or Subsidiary where 

funds are invested

NANANAReturn on 
investment 
Investments 
in subsidiary 
and joint 
venture 
companies

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio has 

increased due to increase in purchase 

value

38.147.3110.09Average

Trade

Payables

Total Purchases (Fuel 

Cost+Other Expenses 

+ Closing Invent ory - 

Opening Inventory)

Trade

Payables

turnover

ratio
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xxvi) The company has not provided nor taken any loan or advance to/from any other person or entity with the understanding that 

 benefit of the transaction will go to a third party, the ultimate beneficiary.

(I) Capital Employed= Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liabilities         

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

 (Debasish Nanda) 

Chairman   

DIN-09015566  

Sd/-

(S.P. Mohanty)

Managing Director

DIN- 05336787

As per our report annexed  

For Surendra Subhash & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

FR No. 03173N

Sd/-

 (CA Surendra Kumar Jain) 

Partner  

Membership No. 082170  

  

Date : 23-04-2025  

Place : New Delhi  

Sd/-

 (AV Raghunadhan)    

Director    

DIN-10570608

Sd/-

(Iti Matta) 

Company Secretary

Sd/-

         (Masood Akhtar Ansari)

Director  

DIN - 10429528

Sd/-

 (Poonam Jeswani) 

Chief Financial O�cer

Return on 
investment 
Investment
s in others 
(Mutual 
Fund)

Company has parked surplus funds in 

mutual funds

5.986.71%7.11%Weighted Average 

Income Earned on 

Mutual Funds

Weighted Average 

Investment in 

Mutual Funds
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The Company received the final comments from the o�ce of the C&AG through o�ce of the Principal Director of Audit, Central 

Expenditure, New Delhi vide letter dated 22.09.2025 with Ref No: 1290-PDA/CE(AF/WR)/AMG-I/A/cs/HURL/2025-26/3476, for the 

F.Y 2024-2025 on Financial statements. Copy of the comments of C&AG is enclosed as Annexure-A.

stThe Management replies to the comments of the C&AG on the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31  March 

2025 have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 09.09.2025. The replies to the comments are provided below.

Management replies on Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India on the Financial Statements of 
stHindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited (HURL) for the year ended 31  March, 2025

S. No. Comments on Financial Position Management Replies

A. 
Comments 
on 
Profitability

A.1 Non-
Current 
Assets ₹ 
24,020.91 
crore

Property 
plant & 
equipment 
(Note-3) ₹ 
21509.34 
crore

Para 13 of Ind AS 8 on Accounting Policies mandates that “an 

entity shall select and apply its accounting policies 

consistently for similar transactions, other events and 

conditions, unless a Standard or an Interpretation specifically 

requires or permits categorization of items for which di�erent 

policies may be appropriate”

This inconsistency resulted in understatement of the gross 

block of fixed assets by ₹1472.41 crore, depreciation by ₹113.83 

crore and net block by ₹1358.58 crore. Consequently, profit for 

the year was overstated by: ₹113.83 crore and the PPE is 

overstated by ₹1472.40 crore.

The above does not include an amount of ₹1330.74 crore 

towards GST paid on the cost of fixed assets (₹657.83 crore for 

Sindri and ₹672.91 crore for Barauni plants) and uncapitalized 

portion of ₹141.67 crore GST on similar capital expenditure at 

the Gorakhpur plant.

The Company applied inconsistent accounting treatment for 

GST capitalization on fixed a across di�erent plants. The fixed 

assets at the Gorakhpur plant were capitalized in the financial 

year 2022-23, wherein GST of ₹611.33 crore was capitalized out 

of the total GST of ₹753 crore incurred. However, the fixed 

assets at the Sindri and Barauni plants were capitalized in the 

financial year 2023-24, but the corresponding GST was not 

capitalized.

As per Para 16(b) of Ind AS 16 on Property, Plant and 

Equipment, the cost of an item of property, plant and 

equipment includes "any costs directly attributable to 

bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 

it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management," which includes non-refundable taxes and 

duties.

As per Section 16 of the CGST Act, a registered person is 

entitled either to (i) capitalize GST as part of the cost of 

fixed assets with depreciation thereon, or (ii) avail 

Input Tax Credit (ITC) in GST returns. ITC once availed 

remains in the Electronic Credit Ledger (ECL), does not 

lapse, and is equivalent to cash since it can be utilized 

against future GST liabilities.

At the time of COD of Barauni and Sindri plants, GST 

was retained as ITC and not capitalized, as the 

Company was exploring diversification into new 

products such as nano urea, ammonium sulphate, NPK 

and sulphur-coated urea, which would attract higher 

GST output liability outside the subsidy mechanism. 

Retaining ITC in the ECL ensures financial flexibility to 

optimize future tax obligations.

It may also be noted that other fertilizer companies 

similarly maintain substantial ITC balances in their 

books. The treatment adopted by HURL is therefore 

consistent with applicable GST provisions and industry 

practice.

Accordingly, the accounting treatment does not result 

in any material understatement or overstatement of 

fixed assets, depreciation, or profit in the financial 

statements. Further, keeping in view the continuing 

GST reforms & the industry demand for refund of GST 

ITC, the issue will be reviewed and action taken 

accordingly during the FY 2025-26. 

C&AG COMMENTS AND MANAGEMENT REPLIES
Date: 09.09.2025

A.2 
Provisions 
(Note-20)- 
₹48.06 crore

The Company imported goods (Equipment and Material & 

Mandatory Spare) of ₹1155.86 crore on which the Custom 

The above does not include provision towards short payment 

of custom duty of ₹71.64 crore payable for project import of 

equipment materials and mandatory spares imported for 

Gorakhpur plant as per demand raised by Customs Authorities.

In respect of the observation, it is submitted that the 

matter pertains to imports under the Project Import 

Scheme during 2019–2022 for Gorakhpur plant. Based 

on the enquiry initiated by the Jawaharlal Nehru 

Custom House (JNCH), Mumbai, HURL representatives 

engaged with the customs authorities for resolution. 
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Department clarified (19.042022) that concessional rate of 

Basic Customs duty 5% only) has been wrongly availed since 

the mandatory condition (value of spare parts need to be 10% 

or less of value of main equipment) has not been complied 

with and as such HURL was not eligible for concessional rate of 

duty.

Thus, provision for di�erential amount of duty & ₹71.64 crore 

(total duty of ₹75.01 crore minus amount of ₹3.37 crore paid) 

was required to be made which was not done. Further, no 

provision was made for applicable interest on the unpaid duty 
stamount, for the period from 19 April 2022 to 31  March 2025, 

worked out to ₹31.71 crore. This has resulted in understatement 

of Provisions with consequent overstatement of profit for the 

year by ₹103.35 crore. Contingent liability is also overstated on 

this account.

Further, pursuant to the detailed review and 

recommendations of the customs o�cials, the case is 

under the process of permanent closure under the 

provisions of the Project Import Scheme.

In view of the recent development, it is submitted that 

all requisite customs duty related statutory dues have 

been discharged and formally acknowledged by the 

authorities. HURL has submitted all required 

documents, including Bills of Entry, Bank Realisation 

Certificates, and Installation Certificates, to facilitate 

closure of the matter. Based on confirmations received 

from the customs o�cials, the enquiry is at the final 

stage of closure. Letter dated 29.08.2025 has been 

issued by Deputy Commissioner, SIIB/JNCH 

Mumbai to Deputy Commissioner Group VI for 

project import closure report which is expected by 
th20  September 2025.

Subsequently, an amount of ₹85.02 lakh was deposited 

on 04.07.25 by HURL towards customs duty as per 

demand generated by the customs authorities on their 

ICEGATE portal. Challan generated on the portal and 

Email dated 29.08.2025 confirming receipt of 

interest on di�erential duty, amounting to Rs.85.02 

lakh is attached as Annexure I.

Accordingly, the Company has complied with all 

applicable requirements, and no financial 

implication remains pending in this regard.

An amount of Rs. 71,64,96,369/- has been disclosed 

in the book of accounts as contingent liability for FY 

2024-25.
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C&AG COMMENTS 

 Thus, provision for di�erential amount of duty & ₹71.64 crore (total duty of ₹75.01 crore minus amount of ₹3.37 crore paid) was 

 required to be made which was not done. Further, no provision was made for applicable interest on the unpaid duty amount, for 

 The above does not include provision towards short payment of custom duty of ₹71.64 crore payable for project import of 

 equipment materials and mandatory spares imported for Gorakhpur plant as per demand raised by Customs Authorities.

 As per Para 16(b) of Ind AS 16 on Property, Plant and Equipment, the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes 

 “any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in 

 the manner intended by management,” which includes non-refundable taxes and duties.

 This inconsistency resulted in understatement of the gross block of fixed assets by ₹1472.41 crore, depreciation by ₹113.83 crore 

 and net block by ₹1358.58 core. Consequently, profit for the year was overstated by ₹113.83 crore and the PPE is overstated by 

 ₹1472.40 crore.

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN URVARAK & RASAYAN LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

 The above does not include an amount of ₹1330.74 crore towards GST paid on the cost of fixed assets (₹657.83 crore for Sindri and  

 ₹672.91 crore for Barauni plants) and uncapitalized portion of ₹141.67 crore GST on similar capital expenditure at the Gorakhpur 

 plant.

 The Company imported goods (Equipment and Material & Mandatory Spare) of ₹1155.86 crore on which the Custom Department 

 clarified (19.04.2022) that concessional rate of Basic Customs duty @5% (only) has been wrongly availed since the mandatory 

 condition (value of spare parts need to be 10% or less of value of main equipment) has not been complied with and as such 

 HURL was not eligible for concessional rate of duty.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of 

Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit 

has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to 

inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

The preparation of financial statements of Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with 

the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are 

responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in 

accordance with standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide 
th rdtheir Revised Audit Report 24  June 2025 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 23  April 2025. 

A.1  Non-Current Assets ₹24,020.91 crore

 Property plant & equipment (Note-3) ₹21509.34 crore

 Para 13 of Ind AS 8 on Accounting Policies mandates that “an entity shall select and apply its accounting policies consistently for 

 similar transactions, other events and conditions, unless a Standard or an Interpretation specifically requires or permits 

 categorization of items for which di�erent policies may be appropriate”.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which 

have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and 

the related audit report.

A.  Comments on Profitability

 The Company applied inconsistent accounting treatment for GST capitalization on fixed assets across di�erent plants. The fixed 

 assets at the Gorakhpur plant were capitalized in the financial year 2022-23, wherein GST of ₹611.33 crore was capitalized out of 

 the total GST of ₹753 crore incurred. However, the fixed assets at the Sindri and Barauni plants were capitalized in the financial 

 year 2023-24, but the corresponding GST was not capitalized.

A.2  Provisions (Note-20)- ₹48.06 crore
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 the period from 19 April 2022 to 31 March 2025, worked out to ₹31.71 crore. This has resulted in understatement of Provisions with 

 consequent overstatement of profit for the year by ₹103.35 crore. Contingent liability is also overstated on this account.

Date: 22.09.2025

Sd/-

For and on the behalf of the 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

Place: New Delhi

(Tanya Singh)

Principal Director of Audit Central Expenditure 

(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources)



HURL EVENTS

Holi Celebration in March, 2025

HURL's 10th Foundation Day Celebration at 

Gorakhpur on 15.06.2025

HURL's Annual Marketing Meet 2025 

at Goa
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HURL EVENTS

Women's day Celebration on 08.03.2025

Visit of the Board of Directors 

at Gorakhpur plant

International Fertilizer Association (IFA) 

Meet 2025 at Monaco, France
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